CITY OF CENTERVILLE COUNCIL
MEETING/WORK SESSION & CLOSED
EXECUTIVE SESSION - AGENDA

Wednesday, April 13, 2011
6:20 p.rs. or shortly thereafter

OPEN FORUM 6:30 p.m.: An opportunity for members of the public to address the City Council on items not on
the current agenda. Items requiring Council action may be deferred to staff or Boards and Commissions for
research and future Council Agendas if appropriate. You will be lirnited to two {2} minutes and we ask that you
conduct yourself in a professional, courteous manner, and refrain from the use of profanity. Failure to abide by this
pelicy may result in the loss of your privilege to speak. Persons wishing to speak will be required to complete a
sign-up sheet and give it to the Mayor or a Staff person by 6:15 p.m.

COUNCIL MEETING

1.

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call

1I. PUBLIC HEARING(S)
II1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
IV.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. March 23, 2011 City Council Meeting Minutes (Pages 1-5)
V. CONSENT AGENDA

1. City of Centerville March 10, 2011 through April 13, 2011 Claims (Check
#26261-26285) (Page 6-7)

2. Centennial Fire District Claims through March 5 through April 1, 2011
(Check #4735-4769) & Check #4728, 4733 & 4734 Voided (Page 8-9)

3. Centennial Lakes Police Department Claims through March 24, 2011
(Check #8308-8336) & Check #8282 VOIDED (Page 10)

4, Ellingson Drainage, Inc. Pay Request #1 — Storm Water Supply Line
(Contract A) - $83,071.80 (Pages 11-13)

5. Res. #11-0XX — Abatement of Special Assessments Certified to PIN #R23-
31-22-24-0028 & R23-31-22-24-0039 for 2011 (Delinquent Utilities)
Associated w/Issuance of Liquor Licenses for Kelly’s Korner (Page 14)

6. P & R Recommendation to Allow the Centennial Soccer Club’s Use of the
Soccer Fields @ Laurie LaMotte Memorial Park as Per Attached Schedule
(Items 1 & 2) — Item 3 Was Not Recommended (Page 15-16)

7. P & R Committee’s Recommendation for Staff’s Implementation of Selling
Concessions @ Laurie LaMotte Memorial Park for the Baseball Season
2011 (Pages 17-19)

8. P & R Committee’s Recommendation to Allow Bald Eagle Water Ski Club:
(Pages 20-21)

a. Parking of Their Trailer @ Trailside Park During Their Ski Show
Season (May-August, 2011) as Per Attached Requirements

b. Installation of a2 Dock@ Trailside Park as Per Attached
Requirements



VI. AWARDS/PRESENTATIONS/APPEARANCES

1. Mr. Steve McDonald, ABDQO, Eick & Meyers — 2010 Annual Andit
2. Mr, Jim VanHoudt, President, Twin Town Homes of Eagle Pass

VII. OLD BUSINESS
1. Downtown Intersections — Concrete Failing — Update From Engineer
VIII. NEW BUSINESS

1. Approval/Acceptance of the 2010 Annual Audit (Pages 22-136)

2. Consideration of Twin Town Home Association of Eagle Pass Request for
the City to Share Costs Associated w/Curbstop Failure - §7,227.17 (Pages
137-139)

3. Centennial Youth Hockey Association Request for Charitable Gambling

License to Operate Pull-tabs, Paddlewheel & Bar Bingo Within Kelly’s
Korner (Pages 140-141)

4, Approval of Connect Anoka County Project Service Agreement —
Broadband Services w/Anoka County (Pages 142-174)

5. Staff Recommendation for Replacement of Bolts (Hydrants & Gate Valves)
in Advance of Trail Project — Burschville Construction, Not to Exceed
$28,625 (Page 175)

6. Res. #11-0XX ~ Authorizing the Closing of Fund #312 (Page 176)

IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS/UPDATES

1. City Administrator
X. RECESS
WORK SESSION MEETING

I ITEMS OF DISCUSSION
1. Budget & Goals

1I. ADJOURN TO CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION (AnnuaE Performance Review of
City Administrater, Mr. Dallas Larson)

III. RECESS TO REGULARLY SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING
REGULARLY SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING
XI. ADJOURNMENT

+*REMINDERS**

Lions Annual Easter Egg Hunt — April 23, 2011, 11:00 am., Laurie LaMotie L

City Council Meeting — April 27, 2011, 6:30 ;'ﬁ Council Chambers — Board o

Bqualization Hearing

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting — Vay 3, 2011, ¢

Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting ~ May 4, 2011, 6:30 p.a., Counct
City Council Meeting — May 11, 2011, 6:30 p.m. Council Chambers




CITY OF CENTERVILLE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
March 23, 2811
6:30 pan.

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the City of Centerville held their regularly scheduled meeting on March
23,2011, at City Hall, 1880 Main Street.

PRESENT: Acting Mayor Jeff Paar
Council Member Ben Felrenbacher
Council Member D. Love
Council Member Steve King

ABSENT:  Mayor Thomas Wilharber

STAFF: City Administrator Dallas Larson
City Attorney Kurt Glaser
City Engineer Mark Statz

L CALL TO ORDER
Acting Mayor Jeff Paar called the March 23, 2011, City Council meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.
_EE. PUBLIC HEARING(S)
.. None.
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Council was presented with 2 set agenda which contained additional checks (#26244-26260 w/Check
#26249 Voided) issued since the packet was completed on March 18, 2011, Request was made to add

Item #4 — Approval of Local #49 Contract under New Business.

Motion by Council Member Fehrenbacher, seconded bv Council Member Love to Approve the
Set Agends as Presented. All in faver. Motion carried unanimously.

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
I. March 9, 2011 City Council Meeting Minutes
Acting Mayor Paar questioned whether there were additions or modifications.

Motion by Council Member Love, seconded bv Council Member Fehrenbacher to approve the
March 8, 2011 City Council Meeting Minutes. All in faver. Motion carried unanimously,

V. CONSENT AGENDA
1. City of Centerville March 9, 2011 through March 18, 2011 Claims (Check #26213-26243) &
(Check #26244-26260 w/Check #26249 Voided)
2. Centennial Fire District Claims through March 4, 2011 (Check #4721-4732)
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VI,

City of Centerville
Council Meeting Minutes
March 23, 2011
Centeunial Lakes Police Department Claims through March 10, 2011 (Check #8278-8307) &
Voided Check #/8278
4. Acceptance of Ms. Jenny Dosch’s Resignation from EDA

Lok

Motion by Council Member Fehirenbacher, seconded by Council Member Love to approve the
Consent Avenda zs presented. All in favor, Motion carried unanimously.

AWARDS/PRESENTATIONS/APPEARANCES
I. Me. Kate McPhercon, Ancka County, Joint Law Enforcement Council

Several individuals from Ancka County (County Attorney, Tony Palumbo; County Attorney’s Head of
Operations, Ms. Kate McPherson; Sheriff”s Department, Deputy Chief Tom Wells; and Commissioner
Rhonda Sivarajeh) were present to discuss the 40 year history of the Joint Law Enforcement Council and
their goal of replacing an cutdated public safety database. A short video was presented explaining the
importance of speed, accuracy, sharing capabilities, archiving and necessity of upgrading the current 12
year old system with all County agencies (Fire, Police, Dispatch/911, Sheriff"s Department and Jails),
Commuissioner Sivarajah explained funding efforts relating to legisiative modifications that would allow
for public safety bonding similar fo the bonding for the 800 megahertz system. Commissioner Sivarajah
stated that all municipalities within Anoka County (21} would cost share an anticipated 3 %4-5 4 million
dollar project by a direct levy made by Anoka County. It is anticipated that a home valued at $200,000
would be charged approximately §3 - $4.00 annually, Commissioner Sivarajah reported that the 800
megahertz system is costing the same home approximately $7.00 annually and that bond will sunset in
2012.

Council Members desired to be assured that by committing to the resolution they are not committing to
costs above and beyond that were brought forward this evening. Commission Sivarajah stated that the
resolution only showed support for the legislative action that would be necessary for funding, Ms.
Sivirajah reported that both the cities of Ramsey and Circle Pines have supported the effort.

Motion by Council Member Love, seconded by Council Member Fehrenbacher to adont Res, #11-
006 Supporting the Ancks County Joint Law Enforcement Council as presented. All in faver.
Motion carried unanimously.

2, Mr. George Eilertson, Northland Securities

Mr. Eilertson discussed with Council the presented resolution for Council’s consideration and the City’s
bond rating from Standard & Poors of AA. Mr. Eilertson explained the factors that are taken into
consideration for the rating system. Mr. Eilertson reminded Council that this new bond would be
combining two previous bonds and allowing the City to take advantage of the lower interest rates and
cost savings for paying agent fees on one bond. Mr. Eilertson stated that Northland Securities had
received a total of six (6) bids from underwriting firms and United Bankers Bank was the most favorable
with an interest rate of 1.86%. Mr. Eilertson explained that due to timing of the transaction, the dollar
amount would need to be increased to $2,760,000 an additional $5,000 allowing for interest from April
1 to April 14, 2011,

Motion by Councii Member Fehrenbacher, seconded by Councii Member Love to adopt Res. #11-
XX — Accepting proposal on the Sale of $2.760,000 General Obligation Improvement Refunding

Page 2 of 5
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YEL.

City of Centervilie
Council Meeting Minutes
March 23, 2011
Bougs. Series 2011 A, Froviding for Thelr Issusnce and Pledging for the Securitv Thereof Certain
Revepues a¢ presented. All in faver, Motion carried unanimously.

OLD BUSINESS

1. Piznning & Zoning Commission
a. Adopting Findings Relating to Amending Chapter 156 (Section 156.025)

City Administrator Larson stated that with presumptions/goals made during the construction of the 2030
Comprehensive Plan, several components were conflicting and that slight modifications or additions of
zoning districts would need to be made for integrity of the plan. Administrator Larson explained that a2
public hearing was already completed and Planning & Zoning is looking for Council’s approval on the
zoning items before them to proceed with a rezoning hearing tentatively scheduled for May.

Administrator Larson stated that similar presumptions were made regarding currently zoned industrial
properties and modifying them to the commercial district with interim uses instead of becoming non-
conforming with no avenues to enlarge structures. It was felt that this would allow an existing business
to maintain its property value, remain a viable business, growth/expansion opportunities while allowing
latitude for alternative uses of the property in the future.

Council Member Love stated that affected property owners have discussed this proposed modification
and ell were supportive and look at it as though it would compliment their current business or
prospective businesses for their property.

Acting Mayor Faar reminded Council Members and residents that High Density can mean High Quality.
Acting Mayor Paar also stated that Council needs to attract businesses to Centerville and retain existing
businesses,

Council Member King presented Council with Sustainable Development information, requested that
Council review it and that it become a part of the official record.

Motion by Council Member Love, seconded by Council Member Fehrenbacher te adopt the
Plapning & Zoning Commission Findings Relating to Amending Chapter 156 (Section 156.025) as
presented. All in faver. King Opposed. Motion carried.

b. Adoption Ord. #44, Second Series — Amending Chapter 156 (Section 156.025) —
Addition of R-3 District

Motion by Council Member Fehrenbacher, seconded bv Council Member Love to adont Ord. #d44,
Second Series — Amending Chapter 156 (Section 156,025 — Addition of R-3 District) as presented,
All in favoer, Motion carried unanimously,

c. Adopting Findings Relating to Amending Chapter 156 (Section 156,630 — Addition
of Interim Uses in B-1 Distriet)

Motion by Council Member Love. seconded by Council Member Fehrenbacher to adopt the
Plapning & Zoning Commission Findings Relating to Amending Chapter 156 (Section 156.030 —
Addition of Interim Uses in B-1 District) as presented. All in favor. Motion carried unanimousiy.

Page 3 of3
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VIIL.

City of Centerville
Council Meeting Minutes
March 23, 2011

d. Adopting Urd. #45, Second Series — Amending Chapter 156 (Section 156.030 -
Addition of Interim Uses in B-1 Distriet)

Motion by Ceouncil Member Fehrephacher, seconded by Counell Member Lave to zdont Opd,
#45, Second Series — Amending Chapter 156 (Section 156,030 — Addition of Inferim Uses in B-1
Distriet} as presented. All In favor. Motion carried unznimouslvy,

Bonestroo 2010 Performanece Review

Mr. Lee Mann, Government Division Leader, Bonestroo Engineering, was present and stated that his
firm serves several municipalities and that the City of Centerville has given them great proiects and
great experiences both the firm and Mr. Mark Statz. Mr. Mann stated that hie has met with both Dallas
and Mark regarding the items stated on the annual review form and greatly appreciates the feedback.

Acting Mayor Paar stated that Council would be taking a five (5) minute recess prior to discussing the
water meter reading system item; 7:52 pam.

Acting Mayor Paar reconvened the meeting at 7:59 p.m.
Water Meter Reading System

City Administrator Larson apologized for not being at the previous meeting to discuss the Planning &
Zoning items and this item. Administrator Larson reviewed the presented information regarding this
item.

Council was very concerned with funding of the proposed project and budget implications.

Mr. Larson reassured them that the proposed project would not affect the budget. The majority of the
funding for the recommended work are monies already taken in and from balances in the Water Fund.
The Council expressed interest in continuing the project to include all water meters over the next couple
of years.

Motion by Council Member Fehrenbacher. seconded by Council Member King to Implement
Staff’s Recommendsation for the Purchase of 2 Replacement Hand-Held Reader and installing
Radio Read Meters for Areas Designated (Hunters Crossing, Pheasant Marsh & Peltier Lake
Drive} — Not to Exceed $35,000 as presented. All in faver. Motion carried unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS
1. Res. #11-006 — Supporting the Anoka County Joint Law Enforcement Council
Previously discussed and adopted,

2. Res. #11-007 — Accepting Proposal on Sale of $2,760,000 G.O. Improvement Refunding
Beonds, 20114

Page 4 of 5
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City of Centerville
Council Meeling Minutes

March 23, 2011
Previously discussed and adopted.
3. Bonestroo 2010 Performance Review
Previously discussed.
4. Approval of Local #49 Union Contract adéing 16 hours of earry over to PTQ at end of year

for what is currently slowed. Dallas Recommends sign contract with then.

Administrator Larson reported that Union discussions occurred and an acceptable agreement was
negotiated for a one year contact that would include additions of an additional 16 hours of carryover
PTO hours allowable annually for a total of 208 hours and a Memorandum of Understanding pertaining
to Commercial Driver’s Licenses (CDLs) as outlined in the presented information. Larson recommended
that the Council approve the contract proposal.

IMotion by Acting Mavor Paar, seconded by Council Member Love to Approve the Local #40
Unign Contract with the Modifications as follows: Extend the Current Contract for One Year,
Emplovees are Aliowed fo Carry Qver a Total of 208 Hours of PTO Time, (Increase of 16 Hours),
and Repew the CDL MOU for 2011 as presented. All in favor. Motion carried unanimously.

ANNOUNCEMENTS/UPDATES

1. City Administrator Larson

Larson - None; Council Members Love — None; Fehrenbacher — New Police Chief is due to be sworn in
tomorrow; King — A proposed County agreement for broadband services has been forwarded to all
municipalities” City Attorneys for their review and input and Acting Mayor Paar reported that Fete des
Lacs is schedule for July 29-31, 2011 with the parade theme being Solid Gold 60°, 70°s & 80°s. The
Centerville Lions, Parks & Recreation Committee and the Parade Committee are all looking for
volunteers. The Parade Committee is currently accepting registrations and completed forms may be
turned into City Hall. The fireworks will be on the 29" with a rain delay date of 30

ADJOURNMENT

Moation by Acting Mavyor Paar, seconded by Council Member Love to Adiourn the meeting of
Mareh 23, 2011 at 8:40 p.m.,. Allin favor. Motion carried unanimously.

Acting Mayor Paar adjourned the regularly schedule meeting of March 23, 2011 at 8:40 p.m.

Transcribed by staff

Page 5 of 5
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CITY OF CERTERVILLE 04/05/11 3:04 P
14,

Page 1
Check Detail - April 13, 2011

Check Check

Dizte # Yender Meme Comments Amount
33177011 GOO137E PERA PERA - PAY PERIOD 7 $3.272 50
3i31/2071 00C138E IRS/EFTPS S8 & MED PAYROLL TAXES - PAY PERIOD 7 $32.244 97
33172011 000138E IRS/EFTRS FED PAYROLL TAXES - PAY PERIOD 7 $2.944 8¢

Check Total 56189 77
343142011 Q00130F MENNESOTA DEPT OF REVENUE SIATE PAYROLL TAXES - PAY PERICD 7 $1.171.89
31312011 026261 188 SYSTEM MONITORING - ALARM SYSTEM $111.04
313172011 026262 QWEST 651-429-4750 - PHONE SERV THRU 4-15-11 $101.23
313142011 026262 QWEST 651-429-3232 - PHONE SERV THRU 4.18.11 §243.80

Check Total 334512
33142011 Qzezen  STANDARD & POORS FINARNCIA] SER  RATING AGENCY FEE FOR GENERAL OBLIG. IMPRY. $7.900.00
441312011 028264 ABDO, EICK & MEYER, LLP CERTIFIED AUDIT SERVICE FOR YEAR ENDED 12-31-2010 $5,000.00
4/13/2011 0z6264 ABDQO, EICK & MEYER, LLP CERTIFIED AUDIT SERVICE FOR YEAR ENDED 12-31-2010 3500000

ChegkTotal $10.000.00

411372011 026265 ANOKA COUNTY PROFERTY RECORDS 2010 PROPERTY TAXES - 14-31-22-43-0059 - TRACIE $31.99
41372011 0262656 ANOKA COUNTY PROPERTY RECORDS 2010 PROPERTY TAXES - 22 31 22 41 0047 - HIDDEN SPRINGS $33.08
411312011 026265 ANOKA COUNTY PROPERTY RECORDS 2010 PROPERTY TAX - 24-31-22-33-0002 - 2085 W CEDAR ST 5233.68

41132011 026265 ANOKA COUNTY PROPERTY RECORDS 2010 PROPERTY TAXES -23 31 22130015 - CITY HALL $233.68
Check Total 532,41

47132011 026266  BLAINE BROTHERS NC SERVICE CALL - 2001 STERLING - REPLACE/REDAIR TIRES $1.204 79
4/13/2011 026267 BONESTROO, ROSENE, ANDERLIK GENERAL - SERV THRU 3-20-11 $140.80
4/13/2011 026267 BONESTROO, ROSENE, ANDERLIK TE GRANT TRAIL - SERV THRU 3-2g-11 $770.00
4/13/2011 026267 BONESTROG, RCSENE, ANDERLIK DT STORM WATER RECLAMATION PHASE | - SERV THRU 3- $2,220.00
4/13/2011 026267 BONESTROQ, ROSENE, ANDERLIK PELTIER LAKE DR AERA ST 7 UT HVIP (2008.001} - SERV $1,847.40
44132011 026267 BONESTROO, ROSENE, ANDERLIK 2009 STR IMPR (20098.02) - SERV THRU 3-28-11 $1.512.00
Check Total $68.480.20

441372011 0z6268 BURMEISTER, GREG REIMBURSE TRAVEL EXP FOR CONCRETE FIELD TEST £307.98
411372011 (026268 CENTENNIAL LAKES POLICE DERT POLICE SERVICES - APRIL 2011 $54.801.83
4/13/2011 (26270 CENTERPCGINT ENFRGY 1880 MAIN ST - SERV THRU 3-22-11 $528.25
4/13/2011 026270 CENTERPQOINT ENERGY 2085 W CEDAR ST - SERV THRU 3-22-11 $684.45
4/13/2011 026270 CENTERPOINT ENERGY 1785 PELTIER LAKE DR - SERV THRU 3-22-11 $14.61
4/13/2011 026270 CENTERPOINT ENERGY 7087 20TH AVE S - SERY THRU 3.22-11 $12.88
4/13/2011 026270 CENTERPQINT ENERGY 68870 LAMOTTE DR - SERV THRU 3-22-11 $78.07
Check Total 5121824

4/13/2011 pre271  CHASE RICHARD REIMBLIRSE TRAVEL EXP FOR CONCRETE FIELD TEST 5457 78
411312011 026272 CiTY CF CIRCLE PINES APRIL 2011 POLICE BLDG PYMT $4,083.33
4132011 (26272 CITY OF CIRCLE PINES APRIL 2011 POLICE BLDG PYMT $2 07557
CheckTotal S8 158 90

4/13/2011 026273 CONNEXUS ENERGY 7100-20TH AVE N - TRAFSG - SERV THRU 3-22-11 $37.54
4/13/2011 026273 GONNEXUS ENERGY 6900 - 20TH AVE - LIFT STAT - SERV THRU 23-16-11 363.98
41132011 026273 CONNEXUS ENERGY STREET LIGHTS - 385653-219699 - SERV THRU 3-28-11 $108.82
411372011 026273 CONNEXUS ENERGY STREET LIGHTS - 385653-219678 - SERV THRU 3-25-11 5108.75
41132011 026273 CONNEXUS ENERGY G800-20TH RADIC FOR SCADA - SERV THRU 2.22-11 514 51
4/13/2011 026273 CONNEXUS ENERGY 6800-20TH RADIC FOR SCADA - SERV THRU 3-22-11 $14.51
41312011 026273 CONNEXUS ENERGY 2085 CEDAR ST- SERV THRU 3-16-11 $341.82
41132011 026273 CONNEXUS ENERGY 7087 -20TH AVE N - SERV THRU 3-16-11 $117.20
Check Total $809.21

444312011 026274 DAVE KICHLER INSPECTIONS INC. ELECTRICAL INSPECTIONS $1.868 40
411312011 076275 ELLINGSON DRAINAGE. ING STORMWATER SUPPLY LINE - REQUEST #1 $83 07180




CITY OF CENTERVILLE

04/05/11 3:04 P

NOTE: THERE WILL BE AN UPDATED LIST OF DISBURSEMENTS FCR APPRCVAL ON 4-13-2011,

ae. e 2. L] = Page 2
Check Detall - April 13, 2011
' Check Check

" Date # Vender Kame Commernts Amount
44152011 026276 KEY AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE CENTER  SUPPLIES! BATTERY §168.15
4/13/2011 028277 LARSON DALLAS USE TO SERIAL CONVFRTER CABLE REIMEURSEMENT §17.33
411342011 026278 MARATHON ASHLAND EUEL - BV, $267.03
4/13/2011 026270 MENARDS - FOREST LAKE SUPPLIES $85 15
4/13/2071 026280 PG SOLUTIONS, INC. 3 YR TREND WMICRO ANTI VIRUS SUPPORT $359.88
411312071 026280 PC SOLUTIONS, INC. 3 YR TREND MICRO ANT: VIRUS SUPPORT $194.94
4/13/2011 026280 PC SOLUTIONS, INC, 3 YR TREND MICRO ANTI VIRUS SUPPORT $194.94
Check Total $779.75
4/13/2011 026281 PETERSON. TEDD BOOT ALLOWANCE - REIMRURSEMENT, $129.05
4/13/2041 075282 PRESS PUBLICATIONS INFO ON ASSESSMENT & CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY $74 40
4/13/2011 026283 SAMS CLUB OFFICE SUPPLIES $59.73
4/13/2011 026283 SAM'S CLUB OFFICE SUPPLIES $50.01
Chegk Total 149,74
4/13i2011 026284  US BANK CORPORATE TRUST SVCS  GEN. OBLIG. IMPRO BOND SERIES 20048 $11,168.75
41132011 026284 US BANK CORPORATE TRUST $VCS  GEN. OBLIG. BMPRO BOND SERIES 20048 $1,085,000.00
Check Total  $1.096.168.75
1302011 026285 WASTE MANAGEMENT 7084 CENTERVILLE BD - DELINQUENT 2010 GARBAGE $1671.62
Jolal Checks $1.284,043.70



CENTENWIAL FIRE DISTRICT

Gheck Regisler - FIRE GL Pepe: 1
Check lssue Delss: 31802011 - 41172041 Apr G1, 2011 11:50AM
Reorl Criterla:
Repoit ype: Summary
L Check Check  Vendor Description Check
Pericd Issue Date  Number Number Payee Armount
et 03512011 4728 BUSDD HERAR INC GLASE MASTER 53881 v
G311 03252011 4748 31187 CONKEXUS ENERGY ELECTRIC 419,23
0311 03252011 4780 170180 GWEST FHONE EXPENSE 5582
03711 03252011 4781 220200 VERIZON WIRELESE CELL PHONES 23686
Gs/11 08252041 4762 240400 XCEL ENERGY ELECTRIC STATION 2 b0B.47
Gartt 0aA/201 4753 10230 ALEX AIR APPARATUS, ING 10 FIREFIGHTER TURKOUT GE 18,420,00
DA/t 040120101 47564  11BBE ASPEN MILLS LUNIFORMS 42,80
G441 044042011 4785 20370 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC MEDICAL SUPPLIES, TRAUMA 1,128.88
Dartt DafOif2011 4756 30040 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC TWO COWMPUTERS 1.662.10
D4ft 040120701 4757 31008 COMCAST INTERNET STATION 1 84.00
0411 0401/2011 4768 40200 DIVERSIFIED TEXTURING & ENGRAVED LABELS 374.00
0441 0401201 4768 BDYZ0 EMERGENCY APPARATUS MAI ENGINE 31 WTC 1,888.40
041 0401201 4760 80121 EMERGENCY AUTOMOTIVE TEVEHICLE MTC 2868
04441 04012011 47681 60116 FAIRVIEW PHARMACY MEDCAL SUPPLIES 217.38
G4rtt 040172011 4762  TODEYE QGRAINGER BATTERIES 233.91
04491 UAAOEG1 4763 130710 MN CHAPTER IAAl FIRE INVESTIGATION CONFER 77500
04411 040172011 4764 180610 ROSS INDUSTRIES, INC FIRE PREVENTION MATERIALS BoET3
Oai1t DE011201 4765 180350 SENTRY BYSTEMS, INC ZRD QTR MONITORING SERV 8§ 98.38
04711 04/04/2011 4766 200210 TITAN ENERGY SYSTEMS STATICHN 1 GENERATOR REPAJ 237475
U4/t 0401201 4767 220200 VERIZOKN WIRELESS WIRELESE CARDE 52.04
041 04/0172014 4768 220250 VIKING TROPHIES, INC PLAQUES Z81.38
G4/t 0401201 4768 220300 vOL. FIREFIGHTERS BENEFIT {NE BENEFITS 287.00
0341 033472011 2011008 210300 LS BANK IFAC TRATNING-DIRECT PAY 1,838.64
Grand Totals:

26 080.54

i = Manual Check, V = Viold Cheok

H



CENTENNIAL FIRE DISTRICT

Check Register - FIRE GL

Check lssue Dates: 3/8/2011 - 3/168/2011

&
Mar 18, 2011 12:54Pk

Report Criteria:
. Repert type: Summary

GL Check Check  Vendor Diescription Check
Period Issue Date  Number Number FPaves Armount
0311 03082011 4735 130740 MNIASIU INTERVIEW TRAINING DB 75.00 M
03/11 03/18/2011 4736 10760 ANOKA CO CENTRAL COMBMUN 2011 ANNUAL USER FEE 800 M 528.0C
0311 08182011 4737 30480 CENTENMNIAL UTILITIES STATION 1 UTILITIES 605.46
03111 03/18/2011 4738 31008 COMCAST INTERNET CENTERVILLE STATI 84,00
03111 03/18/2011 4738 406040 DEEP ROCK WATER COMPARY  BOTTLED WATER 18.81
03111 03/18/2011 4740 70578 GRAINGER DISPOSABLE SHOE COVERS 138.53
G341 0311812011 4741 120331 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INS TR WORKERS COMP INS 2/11-2/12 30,780.00
0311 03/18/2011 4742 120450 CITY OF LINO LAKES FER REIMBURSEMENTS 20,668.64
03/11 031872011 4743 120490 LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC COPIER MTC CONTRACT 166.69
03411 083/18/2011 4744 180080 PAETEC PHONES STATION 2 148.42
03111 03M18/2011 4745 160130 PERFORMANCE PLUS RECRUIT PHYSICALS 3,410.00
03111 03M18/201+1 4746 1616056 INVENTORY TRADING CO., INC  UNIFORMS 100.00
03/11  03/18/2011 4747 180600 CITY OF ROSEVILLE JT POWERS MIS 655.58
03111 03/18/2011 4748 190875 SYSTEMS FURNITURE, INC TABLES & CHAIRS 7,425.68
Grand Totals:

(3
ne
0
I
5
ot
P

64,785.81

wt = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CENTENNIAL LAKES POLICE DEPT

Check Register - Police Gl without invoice numbers
Check Issue Dates: 3/11/2011 - 3/24/2011

Report Criteria:

Report lype, Summary

Page: 1

iher 24, 2011 03:06PM

GL Check Ck Ne Description Check
Period  lssue Date Faves Armount
0311 0&M1/2011 8282 BLAUER TACTICAL SYSTEMS INC TRAINING ALDRICH/ARNTZEN 1,388.00- v
G311 031172011 8308 BLAUER TACTICAL SYSTEMS INC TRAINING ALDRICH/ARNTZEN 798.60
0311 0341842011 8302 MN CHIEFS OF POLICE ASS0C MKN CHIEFS TRAINING 40.00
G311 032442011 8310 AVCAM SEMINAR M GIESE 25.00
0311 03/24/2011 8311 AMSBAN | INC CLEANING SUPPLIES/LINERS/VAC BA 113.61
G311 03242011 8312 ANOKA COUNTY ATTORKNEY FORFEITURE PROCEEDRS 18688 GLDS 51.75
031 03/24/2011 8313 SCOTT ARNTZEN USE OF FORCE EQUIP CONTACTS 24225
O3 03/24/2011 8314 ASPEN MILLS UNFORMS 89.76
0311 D3/24/2011 8315 AWARDS BY HAMMOND, INC NEW CHIEF NAME PLATE 18.00
03/11 03/24/2011 8316 CENTERNNIAL UTILITIES FEB UTILITIES 882,71
03/11 0372412011 8317 CENTURY FENCE CO, INC GATE TRANSMITTERS 187.03
0311 032472011 2318 CONREXUS ENERGY FEB ELECTRIC 2,380.78
03111 D3/z4/2011 8318 DAKOTA COUNTY RECEIVING CENTE DETOX TRANSPORT 67.00
03111 D¥/24/2011 8320 DELL MARKETING LF. REPLACEMENT LAMP PANASONICP 366,36
03/11  03/24/2011 8321 GARY L FISCHLER & ASSOCIATES, P PHASE 2 EVALUATION 286.00
03/11  03/24/2011 8322 CGRAFIX SHOPPE, INC NEW VEHICLE SETUP GRAPHICS 79.46
03111 D3/2472011 8323 HEALTH PARTHERS APRIL HEALTH INS 5,968.80
03111 03/24/2011 8324 HOLIDAY FLEET FUEL 4,128.66
03/11  03/24/201+% 8325 KNOWLAN'S SUPER MARKETS MEETING SUPPLIES 2072
03111 0372412011 8326 CIiTY OF LEXINGTON SUNFIRE FORFEITURE PRCOCEEDS 510.00
03111 03/2472011 8327 MACA SPRING CONF 100.00
03111 0312402011 8328 NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS CELL PHONES 278.85
03111 03/24/2011 8320 PETERSON COMPANIES, INC MARCH SNOW MTC 949 17
0311 0372472011 8330 PITNEY BOWES, INC POSTAGE METER RENTAL 7377
0311 03/24/2011 8331 POST BOARD PEACE LIC RENEWAL 4 QFFICERS 360.00
03/11  03/24/2011 8332 QUILL CORPORATION TONER/NKASISC 240,15
0311 03/24/2011 8333 TELECIDE PRODUCTIONS, INC COMPUTER SUPPCORT 300.00
Q3711 03/24/2011 8334 TOUSLEY FORD 2011 FORD TAURUS 25,868,565
0311 03/24/2011 B335 U S BANK GUARTERLY HBA PMT 13,312.50
03111 0312472011 8336 WALLEN-FRIEDMAN & FLOYD, F A, FEB LEGAL FEES 225.00
Grand Totals:

58.510.8¢

M = Manual Check, V = Vaid Chesk
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Cuener:  City of Cenlerville, 1880 Main 54, Centervilie, M 55038 Date: March 17, 2011

For Period: 2f1/2011 to 3/17/2011 Heouest No: 1
Bonesiro . _ o _
Contracior: Ellingson Dreinage, Inc, 56113 State Hwy, 56, P O, Box 68, West Concord, MM 55885
CONTI TORE REQUEEST POR FAYRKENT

ETORM WATER SUPPLY LINE (CONTRACT A}
BONESTROO FILE RO, D00616-08167-1

SUMMARY

1 Original Contract Amount 4 124,721 .65
7 Chenge Order - Addition 4 0.00
3 Change Order - Deduction 4 0.00
4 Revised Contract Amount 4 124,721.65
5 Vealue Completed to Daie 4 87,444.00
6 Materigl on Hand 4 0.00
7 Amount Farned 4 87,444.00
&  less Retalnage 5% 3 4,372,720
g Subtotsl $ 83,071.80
i1 Less Amount Paid Previously $ .00
i1 Liguidated damages - 3 0.00
12 AMOUNT DUE THIS REQUEST FOR PAYMERT NO. i $ 83,071.80

Recommended for Approval by

BORESTROD

Approved by Contractor: Approved by Owrer:

CLLINGEDON DRAINAGE, IKC, i@\g ;

I“O /éfwﬂﬂ,ﬁﬁ"“wmw ™ \\;%:}f% k @g%fﬁi
Specified Contract Completion Dete: Date: ’5 /f% j ¥
i K

BIG0B167-1RED  xlem .; 1



BASE BT
MOBILIZATION

SAND BAG BARRIER

TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE
INLET SCREEN

14" HDPE or 12° PVC STORM SEWER - DIRECTIONAL
DRILLED

POND EXCAVATION (EV)

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE TV

CLASE 11 RANDOM RIPRAP

CONNECT STORM PIPE TO STEEL CASING

COMMOR BORROV (CV)

WOOD FIEER BLANKET, MODERATE VELOCITY
MNDOT SEED MIX 270

MNDOT SEED MIX 310

FERTILIZER

MULCH MATERIAL, TYPE 1

TOTAL BASE BID:

TOTAL BASE BID:
TOTAL WORK COMPLETEDR YO LATE

B1E0B1E7-1REGT ism

LBS
LBS
LB
TH

12

i
114

12450.00

66.50
15.05
4.00
95,00
16500.00
10.00
2.00
6.80
21,18
0.67

355,00

Corrent

e e pii i
ULERTIYY

1

936
161
185

56
450

$62,244,00
£2,418 00
$740 00
$5,320.00

$0.00

$4.500.00

$0.00
$0.00
30.00
$0.00
£0.00

$87,444.00

£87 66



&

PROJCT PAYMENT STATLS

© OWNER CITY OF CENTERVILLE

BONESTROO FILE NC, 000616-08167-1

CONTRACTGR

ELLINGSON DRAINAGE, INC.

s aof p-4 a3
Wescrintion

NT SUMIMARY

He, From o Favment

Retaingoe

: Completed

i 1
i i | 03/01/2031 03/17/11 i 83,071.80 4 372,20 é 87 444,00 7
Meteriz! on Hang

Total Payment to Date $83,071.80

Original Confract

$124,721.65

‘Retainage Pay No. 1 4,272.20

Chenoe Orders

Totai Amount Earned

$87,444.00

Revised Contract

E1608167-1REQT xlsm 1 3

$1724 721,65




FERG Main Sivees, Centereifls, 00 35038

G55-4589-3532 or Fay 655420 . 862G

STATE OF MINNESOTA
COUNTY OF ANOKA
CITY OF CENTERVILLE

RESOLUTION #11-0

ARESCLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ABATEMENT QF SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS CERTIFIED TO ANOKA COUNTY FOR PID #R23-31-22-24-
302& & R23-31-22-24-0030 FOR THE YEAR 2011 - DELINQUERT UTILITIES

WHEREAS, the Centerville City Council authorized the issuance of liquor licenses for
Kelly’s Korner subject to certain requirements including, but not limited to, paying all
delinquent utilities and property taxes by March 31, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the new owners, 3 & B Center Corp, LLC paid said certified delinquent
utilities prior to the property tax due date to the City with full knowledge that the City
would be abating the certified delinguent amounts as follows: PIN #R23-31.22.24-0028
-$781.31 and PIN #R23-31-22-24-0030 - $406.56 on March 29, 2011; and

WHEREAS, Anoke County Property Tax Division will remove the above stated certified
amounts for the tax year 2011 and re-issue tax statements accordingly; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA the Council directs the City Clerk or Finance Director
to make the above stated request of Anocka County Property Tax Division,

Thomas Wilharber, Mayor
Attest:

Teresa Bender, City Clerk
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TO: Honporable Mayor & City Council Members
EROM: Kim Stephan
DATE: April 7, 2011

SUBJECT: Centennizl Soccer Club’s Reguest to Use Soccer Fields at Laurie LaMoftte
Memorial Park for the 2011 Soccer Season

From the April 6, 2011 Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting Minutes:

The Centennial Soceer Club requested the use of the soccer fields at Laurie LaMotte Memorial Park
for the 2011 soccer season in a letter dated April 6, 2011 with the foliowing three parts to the request;

1. Reguesting two fields, 25 x 40 yard open spsces, focated east of the parking lot and bound
by the bike path, for the UZ — U8 age group, for games only. This request is for Monday ~
Friday from 4 p.m. to dusk, April 28 through July 4, 2011. The Centennial Soccer Club
will set up goals and manage a reservation system to assign teams to specific dates and
times for games.

2. Requesting one field, 70 x 60 yard open space, located south of the skate park, for the Uil
— UI2 age group, for practice only. This request is for Monday — Friday 3:00 p.m. to
dusk, Saturday and Sundeay from § a.m. to dusk, April 1 through October 29, 2011, The
Centennial Soceer Club will set up goals and manage a reservation system to assign teams
to specific dates and times for practices.

3. We wouid like to place 2 small storage locker along the northern boundary of the park.
This would be north of the small fields next to the trees and would hold only soccer field
barriers. We will provide 2 lock for the storage locker as well as a temporary anchor
system for the storage locker.

In past years the committee has approved the Centennial Soccer Club’s request for dedicated use of the
soccer fields at Laurie LaMotte Memorial Park as stated above in request #1, but recommended
amending the request in #2 fo the following days: Monday, Wednesday, Friday and Sunday with the
hours as requested. The thought behind limiting the days for dedicated use by Centennial Scccer Club
in the past were to keep some of the time open in case other organizations asked for dedicated time. In
the past 4 years there have been no other requests and there are other open spaces available at the park.
The committee opted to approve request #2 as is also.

Vice-Chairperson Grahek has been involved in soccer for quite a few vears with his children and was
unaware of any storage lockers on any other fields for soccer equipment; he was under the impression
coaches always brought the equipment with them. Vice-Chairperson Grahek felt unless the Centennial
Soccer Club could show the necessity of having a locker in the park he did not want to set precedent by
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having sports organizations having their own lockers or sheds on park property. The rest of the
committee agreed, but did ask Me. Stephan to ask the club why they felt it necessery. Also, the
proposed location would not work as that is near where the trail is being constructed. Committee
Member Seeley questioned why Centermial Soccer Club has not been invelved or requested to
participate in any of the improvements at Laurie LaMotte Memorial Park, specifically projects which
benefit the soccer fields. Centennial Little League has purchased equipment for grooming the fields,
they contributed to the cost of the improvements to the fields in 2010/2011 and they always clean the
park for Earth Day.  Commitiee Member Seeley would like to see Centennial Soccer Club get
involved somehow.

Motion was made by Chairperson Braneh, seconded by Committee Member Peterson to sppreve
Centennial Soecer Club’s request for use of the soecer fields 2t Laurie LaMotte Memorial Park
ag stated in items #1 and #2, but not recommend item #3 - requesting z storage locker on park
property, pending further information from the Centennial Seccer Club as to why it is seeded.
Avyes — 5, Nays — 2 {Seeley, Amundsen). Motion Carried.
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TO: Honorable Mayor & City Council Members

FRONM: Kim Stephan

BATE: April 7, 2011

SUBJECT: Concession Stand Laurie LalMotte Memorial Park

From the April 6, 2011 Parks & Reereation Committee Meeting Minutes:

Mr. Dallas Larson and Mr. Paul Palzer updated the committee on the progress of attempting to sell
concessions at Laurie LaMotte Memorial Park during the Centennial Little League season. Mr. Mike
Jeziorski provided the committee with the attached memo. Mr. Larson reported it will not be
economically feasible to renovate the warming house for this purpose, but another option would possibly
be to sell concessions from the Centerville Lion’s concession trailer. The Anoka County Health
Department typically issues permits to this type of trailer on a temporary basis only, but feels there is
potential for the City to be licensed for this particular purpose for the summer. The Centerville Lions
need to meet to discuss this item, but the peneral consensus at this time is favorable, The Lions would
receive 25% of the profits in exchange for the use of the trailer. The City would provide the Lions with
proof of insurance and potentially connect the trailer to the warming house sewer and electric.

The committee questioned whether the warming house would then be able to be used for storage of
product and whether a refrigerator would still be required. Part of the business plan would be to purchase
product from a Coke Distributor who would then supply the cooler at no charge. Committee Member
Grahek suggested contacting a Pepsi Distributor else to compare prices. Committee Member Amundsen
suggested having a big bin or fenced area like other non-profit organizations do for recycled cans as &
potential fund raiser.

Motion was made by Chalrperson Branch, seconded by Vice-Chairperson Grzhek, to recommend
to City Council that City Staff proceed with the business plan being formulated to work with the
Centerville Lions to use their concession trailer to sell concessions 2t Laurie LaMotte Memorial
Park for the 2011 Centennial Little League season. All in faver. Motion carried unanimously.

17



TEED Giain Streel, Centereille

P .
AN 55038

Concession Stand Leurie LaWotie Memorial Park - as of 3/310111

Overview

City of Centerville siaff has been working on & fessibility enslyeie for offering concessions st
Laurie LaMotte Memorial Park during the litlle league baseball season. The analysis staried with
evatuating the Laurie Lalotie Memorial Perk warming house site o see if it was suitable for such
an opersation. Staff also identified potential products for sale, distributors, # of emplovees, hours
of operation, money safe guarding technigues, and the number of potential customers.

Potential Locstion - Laurie Lalotie Memoria!l Park (Warming House}

in an effort to determine the sultability of the Laurie LaMolte Memorial Park warming house site
city staff met with Sue Coeplert (763-422-7069, susan.goepferi@coo.ancka mnusg) from the
Anoka County Environmental Service department. She informed the City that they will need fo
purchase a Food License from Anoka County that will then allow the City to sell products to the
public {ticenses range from $150 to $500). She alsc inspected the proposed site in which the City
would like to set up this concession stand operation at. She noted the following:

Class @ Food License — alfows sefiing of pop, chips, candy and hotdogs
= A complete make over of the site is needed

A dedicated sink for hand washing

A three compartment sink for washing utensils

Walls and ceiling need to be finished

Floor should be finished

Light shield

Shelving evaiuated

Commercial Refrigerator and hot dog heater

o CcC o0 000

Class 8 Food License — afiows selfing of pop, chips, and ¢candy
¢« A complele make over of the site is needed

Walls and ceiling need to be finished

Floor should be finished

Light shield

Sheiving evaiuated

Commercial Refrigerator

0009

Class 8 Food License — allows seliing of pop, chips, and candy
e  Sell outside under the warming house roof

Staff has estimaled that a complete concession stand room and appliance upgrade would cost
roughly $8,000 to $11,000.

Potential Location - Laurie LaMotte Memorial Park (Lions Concession Trailer}

Another possible alternative that has recently been discussed is the use of the Lions concession
traifer. Ancka County has indicated that they would authorize the use of the trailer for the entire
haseball season given it meels the required standards. City Staff Is working on sseiting up &
meeting to discuss this possibility with the Lions.

Potential Products

City staff has idenfified a set of items that couid be potentially sold at the concession stand.
Again, City staff's strategy is to start with a limited number of items that can easily be purchasad,
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distributed, made and sold—with the ability {0 increzse offerings at a later time. These items are
en arrey of beversges, hof dogs, chips, and candy. Food Sold from Concession Stends
Minnesota Statules, § 287A.01, subdivision 3(c)(3){vii), provides that all food soid for immedizte
consumption from consession siands is texabls,

Fotentizl Distribuicrs

Sam's Club

The first purchase site thal was evaluasied was the Sam’s Club in White Bear Lake. This store
allows the City to place an order online for pickup. City staff would simply place an order
sometime during the week with staff picking up the order the next day end delivering it to the
Leurie LaMotle Memorial Park site. The benefits of this method include greater access fo
inventory and & limited amount of delivery costs. The potential issues with this distribution
method are finding steff time to initiate the purchases and delivering the product.

# AT PRI VI . ST s T I .
Approvimals oot for Sode = § 28 per can

This is the method the City of Blaine utilizes—~Nate 763-785-6151. The City of Blaine operates
one concession stand at their new lakeside beach. The concession stand is operated by one
individual and managed by their Park and Recreation Department. They sell only packaged
goods—gatorade water, pop, and candy ail of which are purchased at Sam's Club. City staff
purchases and delivers the goods. Their hours of operations are 12-6 everyday during June
through August. They estimate thet they spent $1800 and had revenue of $4100.

Direct Buy - Coke

On 3/25/11 staff met with & representative from Coke. Three options for distribution were
discussed—fountain pop, cooler with pop, and a pop machine. i the City were to upgrade the
concession stand room the cooler distribution method would wark well, Coke would allow the city
to use a branded cooler free of charge and deliver the needed product. The pop machine
alternative would be a bare bones approach—offering only beverages with fimited profit potential.
With the pop machine option, Coke would take care of inventory and money management. The
fourtain pop option was discouraged because of the setup time involved along with the unknown
demand factor.

e AT
- g‘:,é.ﬁ

Xy

Approvimale cosl for Sod

£

nEF GEn

Direct Buy - Watsons ice Cream Kevin Maftson 763-286-6602
They provide freezer and ice cream products.

Direct Buy - Indian Head Foods — Hot dogs and buns, Brett Degainer 612-716-0210
Ejizabeth Brouse of Andover 763-767-5100

Customer Base

The iatest information provided to City staff was that baseball games would played M-TH, with the
possibility of playing all seven days of the week. The hours of these games are 4 fo 9:30.
Minimurm estimates are 70 players / 100 parents for a total of roughly 170 visitors to the park
each night. Regardiess of how exact the estimation is for park visitor's demand for concession
products is difficult to quantify. That said, a preliminary pro-forma financial indicates the
operation should at the very least be able to breakeven from an operations stand point.

Emplovees and Hours of Operation

City staff anticipates hiring twe individuals fo spiit time running the operation. These individuals
will operate the concession stand and operate a simplified accounting/inventory scheme. For
example, each night a tally of what was sold will be reconciled to cash received. Also, each night
the employees will drop off money received into the City Hall utility lock box.
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TO: Honorable Mayor & City Council Members

FROM: Kim Stephan

BDATE: April 7, 2011

SUBJECT: Bald Ezgle Water Ski Shows Reguests

From the April 6, 2011 Parks & Recreation Committes Meeting Minutes:

Ms. Tina Lobin, Bald Eagle Water Ski Shows, made an appearance to update the committee on the
research the club has done over the winter and request approval to move forward. The committee has
been working with the club for the last couple of years to help find them a new home on Centerville
Lake. The club has been offering their shows free to the public for the last 10 years from the
Waterworks site and would like to become more visible, attract new members and become a larger part
of the community. One of the issues for the club is the weeds on Centerville Lake. They have
contacted a company and received an estimate of approximately $3,000 to treat 10 acres. The club has
half of the funds and plans to find sponsors for the other half. The company secures the appropriate
permits through the DNR. Mr. Dallas Larson stated no motion was needed for the committee’s
approval as this is a DNR issue. The club could try and treat 5 acres opposed to 10, but this may not
be adequate for their needs. The club is comprised of all volunteers with funds raised by membership
fees and outside shows. The club recognizes the weed treatment is something that may have to be
done each year.

The club has requested leaving a trailer on the property, parked out of the way, for the duration of the
season which begins sometime in May (weather dependant) and ends usually mid-August. The frailer
is 10 x 12. Council Member King was concerned this is a violation of City Code, if homeowners
couldn’t park trailers on their property then the City should not make an exception, but home owners
can park trailers up to 35° on their property. Vice-Chairperson Grahek was concerned the City would
be setting precedence for other organizations to park equipment on City property. Vice-Chairperson
Grahek supports the project, just not the storing of the trailer on City property. Most of the members
would like to allow the club to park the trailer on site and re-evaluate if it becomes a problem.
Committee Member Amundsen has expressed concern in general with the boat activity causing
damage to the shoreline which goes against the philosophy the Parks & Recreation Committee
followed when constructing Hidden Spring Park.

Motion was made by Committee Member Haiden, seconded by Cemmititee Member Selander to
recommend to City Council that Bald Eagle Water Ski Shows be allowed to park their 10 x 12
trailer at Trailside Park during their Ski Show season between May — August, 2011 contingent
upon complying with City Ordinance, the City is supplied with proof of insurance and Bald
Eagle Water Ski Shows signs a waiver releasing the City of any responsibility. Ayes -5, Nays — 2
{Amundsen, Grahek). Motion Carried.
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Mr. Mark Spitzmueller, Bald Eagle Water Ski Shows, has contacted the St Paul Water Utility and
spoken to Mr. Bill Tschida regarding placing a dock on this property. Mr. Tschida has stated he did
not foresee a problem: he has worked with the City before on this property, though the club would
need to secure & dock permit. The club would be responsible for all fees associated with this project.
The club has had & dock on Centerville Lake for the last 10 vears at Waterworks and has had some
problems with others using the dock for fishing, etc. and the dock being occupied when the ciub
arrived for their practices or shows. Some of this has been alleviated by making the dock collapsible
on itself, the club folds the dock inward when not in use. The club has insurance on all of their
equipment and each skier. Committee Member Amundsen felt allowing a dock on City property
would set precedence in allowing other organizations to install docks on City property and should not
be allowed.

Motion was made by Committee Member Haiden, seconded by Committee Member Peterson to
recommend to City Council the approval for Bald Eagle Water Ski Shows to install 2 dock in
Centerville Lake from Trailside Park to use for their 2011 Ski Shows coptingent upon proof of
insurance, St. Paul Water Utilities permit and subjeet to DNR approval if necessary. Aves — 6,
Nays ~ §, Abstain — I (Amundsen). Motion Carried.

The club has offered to help landscape the area to any degree the committee would like, but they don’t
necessarily need to do anything with the shoreline at this time.  Trimming of some of the lower
branches of trees on the property may need to be done, but that will be determined if the project moves
forward.
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE
CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT LETTER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Certified Public Acrowmonts & Consulunns
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Suite 250
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Management, Honorable Mayor and Council
City of Centerville, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Centerville, Minnesota (the City), for the year ended

December 31, 2010. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have
communicated such information in our letter to you dated August 17, 2010. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following informaticn related to our audit.

Our Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepied in the United States of America

As stated in our engagement Jetter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to
obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly
presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because an zudit is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all
transactions, there is a risk that material errors, fraud or illegal acts may exist and not be detected by us.

QOur responsibility is te plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. As part of cur audit, we considered the internal control over financial reporting of the City. Such
considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such
internal control. We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
Jjudgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not required to design
procedures specifically to identify such matters.

Siguificant Audit Findings

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a contro! does not allow
management or empioyees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fusictions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis,

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose desceribed in the first paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been identified, We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal contro! that we consider to be material weaknesses.

952.835.9090 * Fax 952.835.3261
WWw.REICPAES.Con
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City of Centerville
March 24, 2011
Page 2

Compliznce and Other Matters

As part of obtaming reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we
performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncempliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit. While our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, i
does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements. We noted no instances of
noncomphance with Minnesots statutes,

Summary of Prior Year Findings
200%-1: Segregation of Duties over Utility Billing
Condition: During our audit we reviewed procedures over cash receipts, cash disbursements, payroll,
utility billing and investments. The City was found to have limited segregation of duties in the
transaction cycle relating to utility billing.
Criteria: There are four general categories of duties: authorization, custody, record keeping and
reconciliation. In an ideal system, different employees perform each of these four major

functions. In other words, no ene person has control of two or more of these responsibilities.

Current Year Status: The Finance Director reviews adjustments with utility billing and utility billing registers.

952,835.0000 ¢ Fax 952.835.3261
W WL ACINCPAS. CON
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City of Centervilie
March 24, 2011
Page 3

2609-2  Preparstion of Fingneial Statements

Condition:

Criteria:

Current Year Status:

Asg in prior years, we were requested to drafl the andited financial statements and related
footnote disclosures as part of our regular audit services, Recent auditing standards recuire
auditors to communicate this situation to the Council as an internal control deficiency.
Ultimately, it is management’s responsibility to provide for the preparation of your statements
and footnotes, and the responsibility of the auditor to determine the fairness of presentation of
those statements. It is our responsibility to inform you that this deficiency could result in a
material misstatement to the financial statements that could have been prevented or detected
by your management. Essentially, the auditors cannot be part of your internal control process,

Internal controls shouid be in place to provide reasonable assurance over financial reporting,

Management utilized 2 disclosure checklist to ensure all required disclosures are presented
and the City agreed its financial software to the numbers reported in the financial statements,

2009-3 Mileage Reimbursement Allowance

Condition:

Criteria:

Current Year Status:

During our audit we noted that the City paid an automohile allowance to an employee, and
also reimbursed the same employee for actual mileage incurred while performing work for the
City.

Minnesota statute 471.665, subd. 3, requires that if the City establishes an automobile
allowance for any officer or employee, the allowance be in lieu of all other mileage

reimbursement to that officer or employee.

The City no longer offers an automobile allowance and only pays for mileage reimbursement.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you.

952.835.8000 ¢ Fax 952.835.326]
W W W ESTNC[FS. (oM
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City of Centerville
March 24,2011
Page 4

{(ualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies, The significant accounting policies used
by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of
existing policies was not changed during the year. We noted no transaction entered info by the governmental unit dering the year
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recogrized in the financial
statements in the proper period,

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on management’s
knowledge and experience about past and current evenis and assumption about future events, Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that furure events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were
capital asset basis, and depreciation.

Management’s estimate of depreciation is based on estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimate of historical cost is based on
engineers’ estimates and deflated current value. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these cstimates in

determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial statement disclosures are particularty
sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those
that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements.
In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, ejther
individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole,

Bisagreements with Management

For purposes of this letier, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to cur satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors
report. We arc pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit,

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are inciuded in the management representation letter dated
March 24, 2011,

952.835.9090 ¢ Fax 952.835.3201
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Management Consuliations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to
obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the
governmental unit’s financial slatements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinjon that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all
the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generaily discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with
management each year prior {o retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our
professional relationship and cur responses were not a condition to our retention.

Financizl Position and Results of Operations

Qur principal observations and recommendations are summarized on the following pages. These recommendations resulted from
our observations made in connection with our audit of the City’s financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2010,

Genersal Fund
The Generat fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government, which are not required legally or
by sound principal management to be accounted for in another fund. The General fund balance decreased $162,915 from
2009, The fund balance of $1,068,411 is 52 percent of the 2011 budgeted expenditures. The total General fund budget is
$2,054,700 for 2011. We recommend the fund balance be maintained at a level sufficient to fund operations until the major
revenue sources are received in June. We feel a reserve of approximately 40 to 50 percent of planned expenditures and
transfers out is adequate to meet working capital and small emergency needs. At the current level, the fund balance is above
the minimum but Council has acknowledged the amount. Council adopted a fund balance resolution and the City is in
compliance with this resolution.

The Office of the State Auditor (the OSA) has issued a Statement of Position relating to fund balance stating “a local
government should identify fund balance separately between reserved and unreserved fund balance. The local government
may assign and report some or all of the fund balance as designated and undesignated.” We recommend local governments
adopt a formal policy on the level of unreserved fund balance that should be maintained in the general and special revenue
funds. This helps address citizen concerns as to the use of fund balance and tax levels.

The purposes and benefits of an adequate fund balance are as follows:

¢ Expenditures are incurred somewhat evenly throughout the year, However, property tax and state aid revenues are not
recerved until the second half of the year. An adequate fund balance will provide the cash flow required to finance the
governmental fund expenditures.

¢ The City is vulnerable to legislative actions at the State and Federal level. The State continually adjusts the local
government aid and property tax credit formulas. We also have seen the State mandate levy limits for cities over 2,500 in
population. An adequate fund balance will provide a temporary buffer against those aid adjustments and levy limits.

#  Expenditures not anticipated ar the time the annual budget was adopted may need immediate Council action. These would
include capital cutlay replacement, lawsuits and other items. An adequate fund balance will provide the financing needed
for such expenditures.

¢ A strong fund balance will assist the City in obtaining, maintaining or improving its bond rating. The result will be better
interest rates in future bond sales.

052.835.9090 = Fax 952.8353.3261
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A table sunmnarizing the General fund balances in relation to budgeted expenditures and transfers out follows:
Percent
Fund General of Fund
Balance Budget Fund Balance to
Year December 31 Year Budget Budget
2006 § 1,563,335 2007 $ 2,177,200 72 %
2007 1,435,164 2008 2,441,600 59
2008 1,157,516 2009 2.692.286 43
2009 1,231,326 2010 2,184,430 56
2010 1,068,411 2011 2,054,700 52
Fund Balances as a Percent of Next Year’s Budget
$4,000,000
$3,500,600
$3,000,600
§2.177,20¢ §$2.441,600 _ $2,184,430
$2,500,000 i :
$2,000,000 - 7
$2,654,700
$1,500,000 4
T2% .
$1,000,000
59% 43% 56% 5504
$500,000
$- T T Y T T
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

e Actual Fund Balance == Budget

We have compiled a peer group average derived from information available on the website of the Office of the State Audifor
for Cities of the 4™ class which have populations between 2,500 and 10,006, In 2009, the average General fund balance as a
percentage of expenditures was 63 percent. Based on a comparison to the peer groups, the City’s General fund balance is lower
than average but ciose to the recommended range.
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A summary of the 2010 operations is as follows:

Revenues

Expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Other financing sources
Transfers in
Transfers cut
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 31

City of Centerville

March 24, 2011
Page 7

Original Final
Budgeted Budgeted Actual Variance with
Amounts Amounts Amounis Final Budget
2,157,944 §F 2,027,600 F 2,007,644 5 (19,956)
2,047,594 2,184,430 2,197,049 (12,619)
110,350 {156,830} (189,405} (32,575)
- - 26,480 26,490
(99.500) - - -
(99,500) - 26,450 26,490
14,850 (156,830) (162,915) (6,085)
1,231,326 1,231,326 1,231,326 -
1,242,176 § 1,074,496 § 1068411 b (6,085)

»  Revenues were under budget by $19,956 for the year. Refunds and reimbursements had the largest budget variance,
as this category was under budget by $20,561.

= Expenditures were over budget by $12,619 for the year. This was mainly due to total current expenditures being

over budget by $10,801,

552.835.8090 ¢ Fux 052.835.326]
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A more detailed comparison of General fund revenues and transfers for the past three vears is as follows:
Percent
of Per
Source 2008 2009 2010 Total Capita

Taxes $ 1,908,635 $ 1,961,993 § 1,651,906 81.2 % $ 426
Licenses and permits 333,903 138,121 97,207 4.8 25
Intergovernmental 218,673 182,458 155,003 7.6 40
Charges for services 722 3,607 4,408 6.2 1
Fines and forfeitures 29,797 28,836 36,028 1.8 9
Special assessments 1,915 43,864 28,090 14 7
Interest on invesiments 47,043 16,397 13,677 6.7 4
Miscellzneous 14,981 35,052 21,325 1.0 5
Transfers in 35,877 250,144 26,490 1.3 7

Total revenues and transfers 5 2,591,646 $ 2,654,472 $ 2,034,134 100.0 % b 524

The scurces of General fund revenues are presented graphically as follows:

Fevenues and Transfers in

52,500,000

$2,000,600

51,560,000

$1,000,000

§500,000

$- . .
2008 2009 2010
=efee Tpxes «4F= Licenses and permits - Intergovemnmental e Other
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A summary of the past three vears General fund expenditures and transfers is as follows:
Percent Peer
of Per Group Per
Program 2008 2009 2010 Total Capita Capita
Current
General govermnent 5 531,062 S 500,119 $ 518,632 23.6 % § 134 S 129
Public safety 1,094,263 1,060,601 1,054,045 48.0 272 206
Public works 265,114 366,734 354,194 16.1 91 113
Culture and recreation 86,053 99,408 79,131 3.6 20 5¢
Economic development 3,031 6,533 359 - - 4
Miscellaneous 19,511 16,516 5.830 0.3 2 i3
Total current 2,006,030 2,049,311 2,012,231 91.6 510 515
Capital outlay 629,146 166,916 178,185 8.1 46 310
Debt service 35,660 6,535 6,633 0.3 2 -
Transfers out 204,458 357,900 - - - -
Total expenditures

and transfers 5 2,869,294 § 2580662 § 2,197.049 1000 % 5 567 5 825

The above chart compares the amount the City spends per capita, in comparison to a peer group. The peer group average is
derived from infermation available on the website of the Office of the State Auditor for Cities of the 4% class which have
populations between 2,500 and 10,000,

The function/program of the expenditures and transfers are presented graphically as follows:

Expenditures and Transfers Out

$1,200,000

$1.000,000
$800,000 e,

£600,000

$400,000 B

i,

$200,000

§- = 7
2008 2009 2010

==f=== (Jeneral povemment  <f= Public safety - Public works =4 Other
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Special Hevenue Funds
Special revenue funds are used to account for revenue derived from specific taxes or other earmarked revenue sourees, They
are usually required by statute or local ordinance fo finanee particular functions or activities of government. A summary of

year end fund balances for all special revenue funds follows:

Fund Balances

December 31, Increase
Fund 2010 2009 {Decrease}
Nonmajor
Cable T.V. & 24.662 $ 20,856 $ 3,806

Capital Projects Funds

The capitzl projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those
financed by enterprise funds. A summary of year end fund balances {deficits} for all capital projects funds foliows:

Fund Balances (Deficits)

December 31, Increase
Fund 2010 2009 {Decrease)

Major

2009 Street & Utility Improvernents 5 47,918 $ 759,316 g (711,398

Park (1,071,510) (242,837 (828.673)
Nonmajor

Pedestrian Trail Ways 545,086 {225,673) 770,759

2006 Municipal Improvements - 21,424 (21,4243

2007 CSAH 14 Improvements - 353,573 (353,57%)

2007 Development - 41,880 {41.880)

2007 Downtown Redevelopment 125,716 133,523 {7.807)

CDBG Water Services (5,400} - {5,400)

Total § (358,190 3% 841,206 1,199,396}

The City should annually evaluate the status of each project to determine if the fund should be closed or if additional funding
sources will be needed for deficits. Each deficit indicates a funding shortfall and all will eventually need to be eliminated
either by future charges or by transfers from other funds. The deficit fund baiance in the Park fund of £1,071,510 in mostly
due to a transfer out of $825,000 to the Pedestrian Trial Ways fund for the funding project plan and loan between funds.

952 8350080 ¢ Fax 952,835.3261
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Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are a type of governmental fund to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of interest
and principal on debt {other than enterprise fund debt).

Drebt service finds may have one or 2 combination of the following revenue sources pledged fo retire debt as follows:

14

Property taxcs - Primarily for general City benefit projects such as parks and municipal buildings. Property taxes
may also be used to fund special assessment bonds which are not fully assessed.

Tax increments - Pledged exclusively for tax increment/economic development districts.

Capitalized interest portion of bond proceeds - After the sale of bonds, the project may not produce revenue {tax

increments or special assessments) for a period of one to two years. Bonds are issued with this timing difference
considered in the form of capitalized interest.

Special assessments - Charges te benefited properties for various improvements.

It addition to the above pledged assets, other funding sources may be received by Debt Service funds as foliows:

Residual project proceeds from the related capital projects fund
Investment earnings

State or federal grants

Transfers from other funds

A comparison of the assets of each fund and the remaining bonds outstanding at year end are as follows:

Cash and
Temporary Total Bonds
Fund Investments Assels Qutstanding Maturity
309  Joint Police Station 20054 8 52,346 3 58,991 $ 609,439 2021
312 G.O. Improvement Bonds of 20048 540,764 840,981 1,595,060 2020
348 G.0O. Crossover Bonds of 20098 510,946 930,543 2,430,000 2018
349 G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2007A 815,815 1,239,470 2,460,000 2023
351 G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2009A 506,032 1,446,923 3,715,600 2025
Total 2425903 $ 4516908 3 10,809,439

9528350090 = Fax 952.835.3261
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Enterprise Funds
Water Fund
The results of the operations and cash position of the Water fund for the past three years are as follows:
2008 2009 2010
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent
Operating revenues § 268,403 100.0 % & 298999 100.0 % § 305,05 1060.0 %
Operating expenses 337,928 1259 367,259 122.8 345071 113.1

Operating loss (689,525) (25.9) {68,260 (22.8) (40,015} (13.13

Nonoperating revenues 57,952 21.6 45515 6.6 175,768 57.6
Income {Joss) before
contributions and transfers {11,575 4.3 {18,745} {6.2) 135,694 44.5
Capital contributions from
other funds/deveiopers 171,094 63.7 - - - -
Transfers out - . (229,121) 7% - -
Change In net assets § 159521 594 % § (247,866} (82.8) % 5 135604 44.5 4%
Cash and temporary
investments 3 733941 § 663,584 5 561881
£1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,00G
600,000
$400,000
$206.,000
$-
$(200,000)
${400,000)
2008 2009 2010
& Operating revenues # Operating expenses
& Nonoperatingrevenues & Capitalcontributions from other funds
B Change in net assets ¢ Cashand ternporary investments

The cash balance has increased over the prior year mainly due to positive cash flow from operations and an increase in
special assessment revenue. Rates are analyzed each year by steff, This is 2 good practice and should be continued.

95283500090 ¢ Fax 052,835.3261
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Sewer Fund
The results of operations and cash position of the Sewer fund for the past three years are as follows:
2008 2009 2010
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent
Qperating revenues § 312,403 1000 % 8 322,369 1000 % § 319,947 100.6 %
Operating expenses 388,502 1244 440,936 136.8 422,596 132.1
Operating loss (76,099) (24 4) {118,567 (36.8) (102,649) (32.1)
Nonoperating revenues 123,048 394 82,101 255 60,832 19.0
Income {loss) before
contributions and transfers 46,949 15.0 {36,466} (11.3) {41,81H {13.H
Capital contributions from
other funds/developers 212,226 67.9 - - - .
Transfers cut - - (140,492) (31.9) ~ -
Change in net assets $ 259175 82.9 % $ (176.958) (43.2) % §  {41.817) (13.1) %
Cash and temporary
investments ¥ 1472675 $ 1,046,290 § 169273
$1,600,000
$1,400,000
31,200,000
$1,000,006
860,000
$600,000
$400,000
£200,000
$" E&:M:
$(200,000)
$(400.,000)
2008 2009 2010
e Operating revenues & Operating expenses
# Nonoperatingrevenues & Capital contributions from other funds
% Changein net assets ¢+ Cash and temporary investments

The decrease in cash and in nef assets is mainly due to interfund borrowing of $940 thousand to other City funds for
project costs. In total, the Sewer fund has borrowed $2 million to other funds over the past few years. Repayment terms
have been established for all agreements. Similar to the Water fund rates are reviewed annually,

052 8359090 ¢ Fux 952.835.3261
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Storm Water Fund
The resuits of operations and cash position of the Storm Water fund for the past three years are as follows:
2008 2009 2016
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent

Operating revenues 5 30,478 1060.0 % 5 61,911 0.0 % & 62,392 100.6 %
Operating expenses 47,317 1552 85,168 137.6 122 475 196.3
Operating loss (16,83%) (35.2) (23,257) (37.6} (60,083) (96.3)
Nonoperating revenues 19,234 63.1 17,846 28.8 5,206 8.3
Income (loss) before

contributions and transfers 2,395 7.8 (5411 (8.8) {54,877} {88.0)
Capital contributions from

other funds/developers 260,862 954.3 - - - -
Transfers out - - {99,500} - (209,500 (335.8)
Change in net assets § 293287 962.2 % % (104,911 {£.8) % 5 (264377) (423.8} %
Cash and temporary

investments § 652,640 & 566,773 $ 189770

$800,000

$600,000

$400,000

§200,000

5-

${200,0005

$(400,000)
2008 2009 2010

& Operating revenues & Operating expenses Nonoperatingrevenues

& Chanpe in net assets B Cash and temporary investments

The storm water fund cash balance decreased during the year, mainly due to transfers out of $209,500 for project costs
and an increase in operating expenses,
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Ratic Analysis

The following captures a few ratios from the City’s financial siatements that give some additional information for trend and peer
group analysis. The peer group average is derived from information available on the website of the Office of the State Auditor.
Different peer group averages were used for Cities of the 4™ class (population 2,500 — 10,000). The majority of these ratios
facilitate the use of economic resources focus and accrual basis of accounting at the government-wide level, A combination of
liquidity (ability to pay its most immediate obligations), solvency (ability to pay its long-term obligations}, funding (comparison of
financial amounts and economic indicators to measure changes in financial capacity over time) and commen-size {comparisen of
financial data with other cities regardless of size) ratios are shown below.

Ratio Caleulation Source 2007 2008 2005 2010

Debt to assets Total liabilities/total assels Government-wide 330 8% 33%% 8%
i6% 4% 249 Al

Debt per capita Bonded debt/population Government-wide & 1,394 £ 2848 § 2047 & L15g
§ 2673 § 2677 $3.713 P

Taxes per capita Tax revenues/population Government-wide § 485 & 562 & 51 & 433
£ 38z £ 481 5 3e0 A

Current expenditures per capita ~ Governmental fund current Governmental funds  § 595 § £38 § 545 § 525
expenditures/population K 553 g 663 £ 825 M4

Capital expenditures per capita  Governmental fund capital Governmental funds & SHG % 564 5 &6 & 376
expenditures/population £ 148 & 323 53t 7
Capital assets % left to Net capital assets/ Govemnment-wide 82% #1% 81% Bi%
depreciate - Governmental gross capital assets 0% 6% 8% Ry
Capital assets % Iefi to Net capiial assets/ Government-wide T8 8% TEYe TE%
depreciate - Business-type gross capital assels 8% 6§7% £7% M

Hepresents (he City of Centerville
Peer Group ratio

Debt-to-Assets Leverage Ratio {Solvency Ratio)

The debt-to-assets leverage ratio is a comparisen of a city’s total Habilities to its total assets or the percentage of total assets that
are provided by creditors. It indicates the degree to which the City’s assets are financed through borrowings and other long-term
obligations (i.e. a ratio of 50 percent would indicate half of the assets are financed with outstanding debt).

Bonded Debt per Capita (Funding Ratio)
This dollar amount 15 arrived at by dividing the total bonded debt by the population of the city and represents the amount of

bonded debt obligation for each citizen of the city at the end of the year. The higher the amount, the more resources are needed in
the future to retire these obligations through taxes, assessments or user fees,

952.835.9090 = Fax 952.835.3261
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Texes per Cepite (Funding Ratio)

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total tax revenues by the population of the city and represents the amount of taxes
for each citizen of the city for the year. The higher this amount is, the more reliant the city is on taxes to fund its operations.

Current Expenditures per Cepita (Funding Eatio)

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total current governmental expenditures by the population of the City and
represents the amount of governmental expenditure for each citizen of the City during the year. Since this is generally based on
ongoing expenditures, we would expect consistent annual per capita results.

Capital Expenditures per Capita (Funding Ratio)

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total governmental capital outlay expenditures by the population of the City and
represents the amount of capital expenditure for each citizen of the City during the year. Since projects are not always recurring,
the per capite amount will fluctuate from year to vear.

Capital Assets Percentage (Commeon-size Ratio)

This percentage represents the percent of governmental or business-type capital assets that are left to be depreciated. The lower
this percentage, the older the city’s capital assets are and may need major repairs or replacements in the near future. A higher
percentage may indicate newer assets being constructed or purchased and may coincide with higher debt ratios or bonded debt per
capita.

Future Accounting Standard Changes

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements have been issued and may have an impact on
future City financial statements:

GASE Statement No, 54 - Fund Belance

This statement was issued in March of 2009 and is effective for periods beginning afier June 15, 2010. This new standard is
intended to improve the usefulness of information provided to financial report users about fund balance by providing clearer,
more structured fund balance classifications, and clarifying the definitions of existing governmental fund types.

GASB No. 54 distinguishes fund balance between amounts that are considered non-spendable, such as fund balance
associated with inventories, and other amounts that are classified based on the relative strength of the constraints that control
the purposes for which specific amounts can be spent. The following classifications and definitions will be used:

Restricted - amounts constrained by external parties, constitutional provision, or enabling legislation
Committed - amounts constrained by a government using its highest level of decision-making authority
Assigned - amounts a government infends to use for a particular purpose

Unassigned - amounts that are not constrained at alf will be reported in the general fund.

LI - I ]

In addition to the classifications of fund balance, the standard clarified the definitions of individual governmenta) fund types,
for example, special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital project funds.

952.8350090 « Fax 952.835.3261
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GASE Statement No. 5% ~ Financicl Instruments Ompibus

Summary

The objective of this Statement is to update and improve existing standards regarding financial reperting and disclosure
requirements of certain financial instruments and external investment pools for which significant issnes have been identified
in practice. This Statement provides for the following amendments:

¢ Statement 31 is clarified to indicate that a 2a7-like pool, as described in Statement 31, is an external investment pool
that operates in cenformity with the Securities and Exchange Commission's {SEC) Rule 2a7 as promulgated under
the Investment Company Act of 1840, as amended.

e Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, is amended to indicate that interest rate risk information
should be disclosed only for debt investment pools—such as bond mutual funds and external bond investment
pools—that do not meet the requirements to be reported s a 2a7-like pool.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2010, Earlier
application is encouraged.

How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporiing

The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by providing more complete information, by improving
consistency of measurements, and by providing clarifications of existing standards. Emphasizing the applicability of SEC
requirements to 2a7-like external investment pools provides practitioners with improved guidance. Finally, limiting interest
rate risk disclosures for investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments to debt
investment pools provides better guidance regarding the applicability of interest rate risk disclosures.

L B

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Council, management, others within the City, and the Minnesota
Office of the State Auditor, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

The comments and recommendation in this report are purely constructive in nature, and should be read in this context. Our audit
would not necessarily disclose all weaknesses in the system because it was based on selected tests of the accounting records and
related data.

If you have any questions or wish to discuss any of the items contained in this letter, please feel free to contact us at your
convenience. We wish to thank you for the epportunity to be of service and for the courtesy and cooperation extended to us by

vour staff.

March 24, 2011 ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota Certified Public Accountanis

ey
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Council
City of Centerville, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Centerville, Minnesota {the City), as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is te express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit. The prior year comparative information has been derived from the City’s 2009 financial statements
and, in our report dated May 19, 2010, we expressed unqualified opinions an the respective proprietary fund financial statements,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each mator fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City as of December 31, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General fund for the vear then ended in conformily with accounting principles generaily
accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
on pages 13 through 23, and the Schedule of Funding Progress on page 75 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economie, or historical context. We have applied certain Hmited procedures fo the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s respornses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

952.835.9020 = Fuu 952.835.3261 RN
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements that collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules, and supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 2 required part of the basic
financial statemenis. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly fo the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the zudit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing znd reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In cur opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole, The introductory section and supplementary
information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

March 24, 2011 ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota Certified Public Accountants

9528359090 ¢ Fus 9538353261
WWLARTIO PSS, OO
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Centerville, Minnesota, (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this namrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2010.

Financial Highlights

&

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $21,117,555 (net assets). Of
this amount, $4,540,260(unrestricted net asseis) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
greditors.

The City’s total net assets decreased by $683,818. A further breakdown of net assets in chronicled under Government
wide financial statement analysis.

As of ihe close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$2,837,564, a decrease of $3,058,911 in comparison with the prior year, Approximately 25.7 percent of this total
amount, $729,670, is available for spending at the City’s discretion.

At the end of the current fiscal vear, unreserved fund balance for the General fund wag $1,063,198. While these funds
are not legally reserved, they are designated for future cash flow purposes.

The City’s total debt decreased §2,884,850, during the current fiscal year. The decrease was mainly due to the crossover
refunding bond payment of $2,565,000 and other schedule principal payments.

Overview of the Financizl Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic
financial statements comprise three components: 1} government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This analysis contains other supplemental information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.
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The financial statements also include notes that explain seme of the information in the financial statements and provide more
detailed data. The statements are followed by & section of combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules that
further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. Figure I shows how the required parts of this annual
report are arranged and relate {0 one another. In addition 1o these required elements, we have included a section with combining
and individual fund financiel statements and schedules that provide details sbout nonmajor governmenta! funds, which are added
together and presented in single columns in the basic financial statements,

Figure 1
Reguired Components of the
City’s Annual Financial Report

Management's Basie Finapcial Required
Discussion and Statements Supplementary
Analysis Information

//\

Governmeni-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Finzncial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary = s Pretail
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Figure 2 suimmarizes the major {eatures of the City’s financial statements, including the portion of the City government they
cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis
explaing the structure and contents of cach of the statements,

Figure Z

Wiujor features of the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Goverpment-wide
Stetements

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Scope

Entire City government
{except fiduciary funds) and
the City’s component units

The activities of the City that
are not proprietary or
fiduciary, such as police, fire
and parks

Activities the City operates
similar to private businesses,
such as the water and sewer
syster

Required financial
statements

e Statement of Net Assets
¢ Statement of Activities

« Balance Sheet

e Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund
Balances

e Statements of Net Assets

e Statements of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Assets

e Statements of Cash
Flows

Accounting Basis and
measurement focus

Accrual accounting and
cConomiic resources focus

Modified accrual accounting
and current financial
respurces focus

Accrual accounting and
economic reseurces focus

Type of asset/liability
information

All assets and ligbilities, both
financial and capital, and
short-term and long-term

Only assets expected to be
used up and liabilities that
come due during the year or
soon thereafter; no capital
assets included

All assets and liabilities, both
financial and capital, and
short-term and long-term

Type of in flow/out flow
information

All revenues and expenses
during vear, regardiess of
when cash is received ar paid

Revenues for which cash s
received during or soen afier
the end of the year;
expenditures when goods or
services have been received
and payment is due during
the year or soon thereafter

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regarcless of
when cash 1s received or paid

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business,

The statement of net asseis presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net asseis may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
posizion of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal vear, All
changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of

related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows
in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and eamed but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supporied by taxes and
intergevernmental revenue (governmental activities} from cther functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion
of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activitiesy. The governmental activities of the City include general
government, public safety, public works, economic development, culture and recreation, miscellaneous and inferest en long-term
debt. The business-type activities of the City include water, sewer, storm water and recycling.

The povernment-wide financial statements start on page 27 of this report,

15

56




Fund Finanpcial Statements

A fimd is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City, like other State and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements, All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds,

Governmentol funds. Governmental funds are used (o account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activifies in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-rerm inflows and outflows of spendable vesources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal vear. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requiremens,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact by the government’s
near-term financing decisions, Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmmental funds and
governmental activities.

The City maintains 17 individuzl governmental funds, 6 of which are Debt Service funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the General, Debt Service, Park and 2009 Street & Utility Improvements funds, Data from the other 8 governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds
is provided in the form of combining statements or schedules elsewhere in this repozt.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the
General fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial staternents start on page 32 of this report.
Proprietary fund. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type acrivities in the government-wide financial statements, The City uses enterprise funds to zecount for

its water, sewer, storm water and recycling.

The proprietary fund provides the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the enterprise funds.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements start on page 40 of this report.
Motes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additiona! information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements start on page 49 of this report,

Other Information

The combining staternents referred fo earlier in connecticn with non-major governmental funds are presented following the notes
to financial statements. Combining and individual find statements and schedules start on page 70 of this report.
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Government-wide Finanelal Anslysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of & government’s financial position. In the case of the City,
assets exceeded labilities by $21,117.555 at the close of the most recent fiscal year,

By far, the largest portion of the City's net assets ( 59 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets {e.g., land, buildings,
machinery and equipinent); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of refated debi, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these Habilities,

Summery of Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Increase Increase
2010 2009 {Decrease) 2010 20609 (Decrease)
Assels
Current and other assets & 5,654,390 § 9,338,395 $ {3,684,005) § 3,597.296 $ 3,701,352 S (104.056)
Capital assets 16,118,270 15,829,115 289,155 7,186,009 7,502,889 (316,8803
Total assets 21,772,660 25,167,510 {3,394 850) 10,783,305 11,204 241 {420,938)
Liabilities
Noncurrent Habilities outstanding 10,852,586 13,140,170 (2,887.584) 13,897 16,631 {2,734
Other liabilities 559,903 553,851 6,052 12,024 259,726 {247, 702)
Total liabilities 11,412,489 14,294,021 {2,881,532) 25621 276,357 {250,436)
Wel assets
Invested in capital assels,
net of related debt 5,308,831 4,725,463 583,368 7,186,009 7,502,889 (316,880}
Restricted for
Future expansion - - - 71,631 71,631 -
Debt service 4,010,824 3,887.817 123,007 - - -
Unrestricted 1,046,516 2,260,209 {1,219.693) 3,499,744 3,353,364 146,380
Total net assets § 10,360,171 $ 10,873,489 § (513318 §10,757.384 5 10027884 § ({170,500}

An additional portion of the City’s net assets { 19.3 percent} represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. The remaining balance of wiresiricted ner assets (34,540,260} may be used to meet the City’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and eredifors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of nef assets, bath for the
City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior
year.
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Governmental activities, Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assefs by $513,3 18, thereby accounting for 75.1 of
the total decrease in net assels of the City., Key elements of this decrease are as follows:

Changes in Nef Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Increase Increase
2610 2009 {Decrease) 2010 2009 {Decrease)
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 402377 $ 351650 5 50,727 $ 687407 §  6B4.655 & 2,752
Operating grants and contribufions 70,805 74,978 {4.173) - - -
Capital grants and contributions 232,360 1,804,492 (1,572,132) 201,120 54,418 146,702
General revemies
Taxes
Property taxes/iax increments 1,678,263 1,979,834 (3G1,541) - - -
Property taxes, levied for debt service 482,219 - 482,219 . - -
Other taxes 753 - 753 - - -
Graznts and contributions
not restricted fo specific programs 18,665 18,551 114 - . -
Unrestricted investment earnings 31,954 64,482 (32,528) 40,615 93,608 (53,053)
Miscellaneous 4,692 - 4,692 - - -
Total revenues 2,922,118 4,293,987 (1,371 ,869) 929,142 832,741 96,401
Expenses
General government 536,362 526,015 106,347 - - -
Public safety 1,058,361 1,070,645 (11,284} - - -
Public works 1,333377 753,640 579,737 - - -
Culture and recreation 231,500 169,555 61,945 - - -
Economic development 15,078 21,277 (6,199} - - -
Inierest on Jong-ferm debt 469,258 438,303 30,955 - - -
Water - - - 345,071 367,258 (22,188}
Sewer - - - 422,596 440,936 (18,3407}
Storm Walter - - - 122,475 85,168 37,307
Recyeling - - - - 11,238 {11,238}
Total expenses 3,644,936 2,579,435 665,501 890,142 904,601 (14459
Increase (decrease] in
net assets before transfers (722,818} 1,314,552 (2,037,370 39,060 (71,860} 110,860
Transfers 209,500 469,113 (259.613) {209,500} {469.113) 259,613
Change in net assets (513,318) 1,783,665 (2,296,983 {170,500) {540.973) 370,473
Net assets, January 1 10,873,489 9,089,824 1,783,665 10,927,884 11,468,857 (540,973)
Net assets, December 31 5 10,360,171 § 10,873 489 $ (513318 § 10757384 $ 10,927 884 §  (170.500)

Capital grants and contributions decreased due to the adoption of new assessments to finance the 2009 street and utility
improvernents in 2009.
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The following graph depiets various governmental activities and shows the program revenues and expenses directly related to
those activities.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
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For the most part, increases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth in the demand for services,



Business-type activities. Business-type activilies decreased the City's net assets by $170,500, therefore accounting for 24.9 of
the total decrease in net assets. Kev elements of this decrease are as follows:

The City’s Sewer fund had one time permanent fund transfers of $209,500.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities
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Financial Analysie of the Governmen®’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,

unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal vear.

Activity in the City's major governmental fimds is discussed below:

Fund Balance (Deficit} December 31,

Increase
Mezjor funds 20140 2009 {Pecrease)
General $  1,068411 § 1231326 $ (162,915)

The general fund balance has decreased mainly due to the budget cutting the City did in anticipation of lost funding. The fund
balance is still strong relative to the following years budget (52 percent).

Bebt Service $ 2,102,681 § 3,803,087 £ (1,700,408)

The debt service fund balance decreased $1,7G0,406. The decrease is due to the crossover refunding payment of about $2.5
million. This was anticipated since the City manages cash flow in all debt service funds and ensures adequate resources exist
to fund future obligations

Park $ (1,071,510)  $  (242.837) $ (828,673

The park fund balance decreased about $82%,000. This was mainfy due to a transfer out in the amount of $825,000 to the
Pedestrian Ways Trail fund as part of an interfund loan.

2009 Street & Utility Improvements § 47,918 g 759,316 3 {711,398)

The decrease in fund balance {§711,398), was mainly due to expenditures for the sireet and utility improvement project.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reporied combined ending fund balances of $2,837,564, a
decrease of $3,058,911 in comparison with the prior vear, Approximately 25.7 percent of this total amount or $729,670
constitutes unreserved find balance, which is available for spending at the City's diseretion, The remainder of fund balance is
reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed to pay debt service and
prepaid expenses in the amount of $2,107,894,

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprictary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, byt in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to §3,49%,744, The total decrease in net assets for
the funds was $1798,500. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the
City’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The City's General fund amended budget called for a $156,830 decrease in fund balance. This was primarily driven by an

advanced seal coating project and a capital equipment purchase. At year end, expenditures exceeded revenues and other financing
sources by $162,915, therefore falling reasonably close to the budgeted decrease in fund balance.
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Capitel Asset snd Debt Administration
Capital Assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
December 31, 2010, amounts to 23,304,279 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
structares, improvemenis, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways and bridges.
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
«  Purchase of a new skid lnader.
e Trail easements
s {Completion of CSAH 14 — Anoka County project

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 3D start on page 59 of this report.

Capital Assets Net of Depreciation

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Inecrease Increase
2010 2009 {Decrease} 2010 2009 (Decrease)

Land $ 3,308.023 $ 3,253,120 3 54,903 § 196,255 & 186,000 $ 10,255
Buildings 1,006,562 1,046,852 (37,290} 389 R50 368,130 (8,280
Construction in progress 4,038,169 4,469,754 {431,585} - - -
Infrastructure 7,374,440 6,635,508 738,832 6,498,897 6,793,611 (294,714)
Machinery and equipinent 188,076 423,881 (35,805) 101,007 125,148 (24.141)

Total $16,118270 §15,820,118 % 289,158 5 7,186,008 $ 7,502,889 S (316,880

Long-term debht. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $10,809,439, While all of
the City’s bonds have revenue streams, they are all backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The decrease was mainly due fo
the crossover refunding bond payment of $2,565,000 and other scheduled principal payments.

Outstanding Debt
Governmental Activities Business-type Aclivitieg
Increase Increase
2010 2009 {Decrease]) 2010 2009 (Decrease}
General obligation bonds $ 10,805,439 $13,691,543 § (2,882,104 % - § - 5 -
Compensated absences payable 43,147 33,859 9,288 13,897 11,967 1,930
Other postemployment henefits payable - 14,768 {14,768} - 4,664 (4,604}
Total § 10,852,586 § 13,740,170 § (2887584 % 13,897 § 16,631 & (2,734}

Minnesota statutes Hmit the amount of net general obligation debt a City may issue to 3 percent of the market value of taxable
property within the City. Net debt is debt payable solely from ad valorem taxes. The taxable market value totals $342,844,400,
which calculates to a debt margin of $10,285,332. Debt financed partially or entirely by special assessments is not applied against
the City’s debt limit, nor is debt financed by proprietary fund revenues. Currently the City has $609,439 of general obligation
debt cutstanding leaving a debt margin of $9,675,893,

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3F start on page 61 of this report,
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Econemic Factors and Newt YVear's Budoetc and Hates
g

¢ Residential building activity is expected to continue its slowdown reflecting the metropalitan twin cities area
construction downturm.

¢  Reduced payments from the State of Minnesota in regards 1o the Market Value Homestead Credit will cause more
difficulty in providing services at current levels.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2011 fiscal year.
Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an interest in the City’s

finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this repert or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the City Administrator, City of Centerville, 1880 Main Street, Centerville, Minnesota, 55038,
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF CENTERVILLE
CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2610
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA

ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Accrued interest
Delinguent taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from other governments
Internal balances
Inventories
Prepaid items
Deferred charges
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries payable

Contracts payable

Due to other govemments

Accrued interest payable

Deposits payable

Unearned revenue

Noncurrent Habilities - due within one year
Compensated absences payable
Bonds payable

Noncurrent labilities - Due in more than one year

Compensated absences payable
Bonds payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for
Future expansion
Debt service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totel

§ 4,922,253 $ 1,320,924 §  6,243.177
15,122 - 15,122
107,883 - 107,883
61,651 183,782 245,433
2,173,970 144,382 2,318,352
133,582 . 133,582
(1,928,474} 1,928,474 -
- 3,411 3411
13,708 16,323 30,032
154,694 - 154,694
7,346,192 196,255 7,542,447
8772078 6,986,754 15,761,832
21,772,660 10,783,305 32,555,065
92,527 1,604 94,221
26,592 7,292 33,884
71.11¢% - 71,119
114 3,038 3,152
134,750 - 134,750
46,301 - 46,301
188,500 - 188,500
37,424 12,384 49,813
843,854 - 843,854
5,718 1,513 7,231
0,965,585 - 8,965,585
11,412,489 25,921 11,438,410
5,308,831 7,186,009 12,494,84C
- 71,631 71,631
4,010,824 - 4,010,824
1,040,516 3,499,744 4,540,260
3 10.360.17% $ 10,757.384 $ 21,117,555




CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmentel activities
General government & 536,362 3 59,813 $ - 5 -
Public safety 1,059,361 161,219 70,655 -
Public works 1,333,377 165,208 - 232,360
Culture and recreation 231,500 13,207 - -
Economic development 15,078 2,930 1590 -
Interest on long-term debyt 469,258 - - -
Total governmental activities 3,644,936 402,377 7,805 232,360
Business-type activities
Water 345,071 305,068 - 165918
Sewer 422396 319,947 - 35,202
Storin water 122475 62,362 - .
Total business-type activities 890,142 687,407 - 201,120
Total $ 4,535,078 $ 1089784 b3 70,805 3 433 480

General revenues
Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Gambling taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment eamnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers - internal activities

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net asseis
Net assets, January 1

Net assets, December 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

28

69



Net (Expenses) Revenues
and Changes in Net Assels

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
5 (476,549 § - {476,549
(827,487 - (827,487}
(935,80%) - (935,809}
(218,293} - {218,293}
(11,998} - (11,598)
(469,25%) . (469,258)
(2,939,394) - (2,539,394
- 125,915 125,915
- (67,447) (67,447
- (60,083} {60,083)
- (1,615) (1,615)
{2,939.394} (1,615} (2,941,009
1,678,293 - 1,678,293
482,219 - 482,219
753 - 753
18,665 - 18,665
31,954 40,615 72,569
4,692 - 4,692
209,500 (209,300) -
2,426,076 (168,885) 2,257,191
(513,318) (176,560) (683,818)
10,873 485 10,927 884 21,801,373
$ 18,360,171 § 10,757.384 $ 21,117,555

20,
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DECEMBER 31,2010

-31.

72



CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2010

ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Accrued interest
Delinguent taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from other governments
Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries paysble

Advances from other funds

Due to other governments

Contracts payable

Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Reserved for
Debt service
Prepaid items
Unreserved
Designated for, reported in the General fund
Working capital
Undesignated, reported in
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
-32-
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Debt

General Service
$  1.608,058 $ 2425903
15,122 -
104,674 3,209
11,366 8,563
160,918 2,073,052
18,735 -
5,213 6,151
5 1,864,086 $ 4,516,908
$ 126,444 3 -
26,203 -
448,828 371,334
114 -
194,086 2,042,893
795,675 2,414,227
- 2,096,530
5,213 6,151
1,663,198 -
1,068,411 2,102,681
5 1.864.086 $ 4,516,908




402 453
2008 Other Total
Street & Utility Governmental Governmental
Park Improvements Funds Funds
b8 36,802 § 114,888 s 736,602 § 4,922,253
- - - 15,122
- - - 107,883
- - 41,692 61,651
- - 114,847 2,288,817
- - - 18,735
- - 2,345 13,749
$ 36,802 3 114,888 g 895,486 § 7428170
3 - $ 1,251 & 11,133 § 138,828
- - 389 26,592
1,108,312 - - 1,928,474
- - - i14
- 65,718 3,400 71,119
- - 188,500 2,425,479
1,108,312 66,970 205,422 4,590,606
- - - 2,096,530
- - - 11,364
- - - 1,063,198
- - 24,662 24,662
(1,071,510} 47,918 665,402 {358,190)
(1,071,510} 47,018 690,064 2,837,564
$ 36,802 3 114,838 5 895 486 $ 7428170

.33

74



THIS PAGE IS LEFT BLANK

INTENTIONALLY

34~

75



CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2018

Total fund balances -~ governmental

Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds.
Cost of capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long-term liabilities at year end consist oft

Bond principal payable

Less deferred charges net of accumulated amortization
Compensated absences payable
Other postemployment benefits payable

Some receivables are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures,
and therefore are deferred in the funds
Special assessments
Drelinguent taxes

Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest until due and payable

Total net assets - governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement,
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20,120,390
(4,002,120)

(10,809,439)
154,694
(43,147)

2,143,811
93,168

(134,750}



CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

18l 304's
Debt
General Service
REVENUES
Taxes
General property $ 1651153 & 482,219
Gambling 753 -
{icenses and permits 57,207 -
Intergovernmental 155,003 55789
Charges for services 4,408 .
Fines and forfeitures 36,028 -
Special assessments 28,090 630,591
Interest on investments 13,677 21,713
Miscellaneous 21,325 4,600
TOTAL REVENUES 2.007.644 1,194,912
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 518,632 -
Public safety 1,054,045 -
Public works 354,194 -
Culture and recreation 84,961 -
Economic development 399 -
Capital outlay
General government 3.601 -
Public works 174,584 -
Culare and recreation - -
Debt service
Principal - 2,882,104
Interest and other 6,633 475,515
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,197,049 3,357,619
DEFICIENCY GF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (189.405) 2,162,707}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 26,490 462,301
Transfers out - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 26,490 462,301
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (162,915} (1,700,406}
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JANUARY 1 1,231,326 3,803,087
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), DECEMBER 31 §  1,068411 § 2,102,681

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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402 451
2009 Other Total
Street & Utility Governmental Governmental
Park Improvements Funds Funds
k3 - ¥ - § 14,679 5 2,148,053
- - - 753
- - - 97207
- - 327,013 537.805
- - - 4,408
- - - 36,028
- 850 . 659,531
314 5,701 6,657 48,262
- ~ 12,157 38,082
514 6.551 360,506 3,570,127
- - - 518,632
- - 1,054,045
- - 450 354,644
- 8,578 93,539
. 14,679 15,078
- - - 3,601
- 698,689 428,929 1,302,262
- - 128,358 128,358
- - 2,882,104
4,187 - 486,335
4,187 698,680 580,994 6,838,538
(3,673) {692,138} {220,488) (3.268.411)
- - 935,000 1423791
{825,000} (19,260} (370,031} €1.214,291)
{825,000} £19,260) 564,969 209,500
{828.673) (711,398} 344,481 (3.058.911)
(242,837) 759,316 345,583 5,886,475
$ (L071,310) % 47,918 g 690,064 $ 2837564
-37-
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESGTA
RECCONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

TGO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

et change in fund balances - governmentz! funds

Amounts reported for governimental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Book value on disposat of assets

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while
the repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, disceunts and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities,
Principal repayments
Amortization of deferred charges

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmerital fund because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due,
and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of activities, however
interest expense is recognized as the inferest accrues, regardless of when it is due,

Certain revenues are recognized as soon as they are earned. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting certain revenues cannot be recognized until they are available
to liquidate liabilities of the cwrrent period.
Special assessments
Property taxes

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Compensated absences payable

Other postemployment benefits payable

Change in net assets - governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$  (3,058.911)

795,975
(505,460}
(1,360)

2,882,104
(14,257)

15,026

(644,162)
12,461

(13,789)
19,055

$ (513318



REVENUES
Taxes
General property
Gambling
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Special assessments
interest on Investments
Misceilaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Eeonomic development
Miscellaneous

Capital outlay

Debt service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

DEFICIENCY OF REVENULES
UNDER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (UUSES)
Transfers in

Transfers out

TOTAL GTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31

CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
ETATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Finial Budget
§  1,646.56] § 1,653,000 §  1.651,153 § (1.847)
. - 753 153

131,560 96,650 97.207 557
177.883 154,550 155,003 453
2,060 4,600 4,408 (192
33,500 33.500 36,028 2,528

- 28,000 28,090 o0

36,000 20,000 13,677 (6,323
136,500 37,300 21,325 (15,9753
2,157,944 2,027,600 2,007,644 (19,956}
543,654 513,130 518.632 (5,502}
1,089,753 1,852,750 1,054,045 (1,295}
250,208 348,500 354,194 (5,694
73,386 80,600 84,961 (4,361}
2.000 600 399 201
5,500 5,850 - 5,850
83,003 176,500 178,185 (1.685)

- 6,500 6,633 {133}
2,047,594 2,184,430 2,197,049 {12.619)
116,350 (156,830} (189,405) (32,575)

- - 26,490 26,490
(99.500) - - -
{99,500} - 26,490 26,490
10,850 (156,830) {162,915} (6,085}
1,231,326 1,231,326 1,231,326 -
$  1,242.176 § 1074406 § 1.068411 g {6,085}

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESGQTA

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Accounts
Special assessments
Current
Delinguent
Advances to other funds
Inventories
Prepaid ifems

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Special assessments receivable - deferred
Capital assets
Land
Buiidings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Due to other governments
Compensated absences payable
Unearned revenue

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances from other funds
Other postemployment benefits payable

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LJABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for future expansion
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The notes to the financial statements are an inlegral part of this statement.

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMEER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Business-fype Activities - Enterprise Punds

661 662
Water Sewer
2010 2009 2010 2009

§ 961,881 $ 663,584 $ 169,273 §  1,045.200
70,995 68,393 94,349 94,151
158 . 158 -

6,124 4,438 - 689

- - 2038474 1,087,187

3411 3,460 - -

- - 16,323 15,217
1,042,569 739,884 2,318,577 2243514
85,639 83,851 52,303 49118
72,255 62,000 124,660 124,000
138,000 138,000 276,060 276.000
4,966,141 4,966,141 3,442,482 3,442,482
187,200 191,118 96,742 98,099
(1,420,254) (1,243,846 (1,300,445 (1,182,877
3,943,342 4,113,413 2,638,779 2.757.704
4,028,981 4,197,264 2,691,082 2,806,822
5,071,550 4,937,148 5,009,659 5,050,336
1.228 1,484 466 227
3,380 3,145 3,380 3,145
935 817 2,079 -

6,348 5,429 6.348 5,428
11,9135 106,875 12,273 8.801

- 2,332 - 2,332

- 2,332 - 2.332

11,915 13,207 12,273 11,133
3,043,342 4,113,413 2,638,779 2,757,704
- - 71,631 71.631
1,116,293 810,528 2,286,976 2,209,868
§ 5050635 § 4,923 941 5 4,597 386 § 5039203
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds - Continued

415 617
Storm Water Recyeling Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

5 189,770 S 566,773 5 - 5 - §  1,320.924 § 2,276,647
18,438 18.212 - - 183,782 180,756
- - - - 3i6 -

- - - - 6,124 5,127

- - - - 2,038,474 1,087,167

- . - - 3.411 3,469

- - - - 16,323 15,217
208,208 584,985 - - 3,560,354 1,568,383
- - - - 137,942 132,964

- - - - 196,255 186,000

. - - - 414,000 414,000

- - - - 8,408,623 8,408,623
697,106 697,106 - - 081,048 986,323
(93,218) {65,334} - - (2,813,917 (2,492,057}
603,888 631,772 - - 7,186,009 7,502,889
603,888 631,772 - - 7,323,951 7.635,858
812,096 1,216,757 - - 10,893,305 11,204,241
- 895 - - 1,694 2,606

532 513 - - 7,292 6,803

- - - - 3,038 817

1,201 1,109 - - 13,897 11,967

- 249,500 - - - 249,500

1,733 252,017 - - 25,921 271,693
116,000 - - - 116,060 -
. . - - - 4,664
110,000 - - - 110,600 4.664
111,733 252,017 - - 135,921 276,357
603,888 631,772 - - 7,186,009 7,502,889
. “ - - 71,631 71,631

96,475 133,968 - - 1,499,744 3,353,364
5 700,363 b3 964,740 % - B3 - 5 10757384 § 10.927.884

-41-
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2006

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

661 602
Water Sewer
2010 2009 2010 2009
OFPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services § 305,056 % 288,999 $ 319,947 5 322.36%
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 80,448 90,959 90,334 88,055
Supplies 20,248 35,488 1,522 2,968
Other services and charges 38,982 47,481 26,233 52,061
Utilities 15,068 13,005 2,977 2,877
MCES - disposal charges - - 182.604 176,048
Trepreciation 180,325 180,326 118,926 118,927
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 345,071 367,259 422,596 440,936
OPERATING LOSS (40,015} {68,260) (102.649) {118,567)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest earnings 9,779 21,070 25,630 54,752
Special assessments 109,992 22.960 23,889 19,213
Hook up fees and unit charges 55,926 5,485 11,313 8.136
Miscellaneous revenue 12 . - -
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES) 175,709 49,515 60,832 82,101
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 135,694 (18,745} (41,817) (36,466}
TRANSFERS OUT - {229,121} . (140,492)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 135,694 {247,866} (41.817) (176,958)
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 4,923.941 5,171,807 5,039,203 5,216,161
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 § 5059635 $ 4,923,941 $ 4,997,386 $ 5,039,203

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds - Continued

415 617
Storm Water Recycling Totals
2010 2809 2010 2609 2010 2009

3 62.392 & 61,911 5 - § - py 687,395 b 683,279
18.259 13,629 - - 199,081 192,043
1,269 - - . 23,039 38.45¢6
75,023 44,255 - 11,238 140,238 155,035

- - - - 18,045 15,882

- - - - 182,604 176,048

27,884 27.884 - - 327,135 327,137
122,475 85,168 . 11,238 890,142 904.601
{60.083) (23,257} - (11,238} (202,747} (221,322)
5,206 17.846 - - 46,615 93,668

- - - - 133.8%81 42,173

- - - - 67,239 13.621

N - - . 12 "

3,206 17,846 - - 241,747 149,462
(54,877} (5411} - (11,238} 35,006 {71.860)
(209,500) (99.500) - - {206,500) {469,113y
(264,377} (104,911) - (11,238) {170,500) (540,9733
964,746 1,069,651 “ 11,238 10,927,884 11,468,857
$ 700.363 & 864,740 5 - 5 - 3 10757384 § 10927.884
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESGTA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEARS ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

601 662
Water Sewer
2410 2009 201G 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users b 302,466 Y 287.41% g 319,749 g 314,753
Payments fo suppliers (76,686} (93,7243 (214,456} (233,854
Payments to employees (89,2843 (88,881 {89.180) (85.975)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 136,486 104,813 16,113 (50763
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in advances to other funds - - (951,307 (360,007
Grants received . - - .
Transfers to other funds “ (225,121) - {140,492%
NET CASH USED BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (228.121) (951,307 {500,499}
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets (10,255) - - -
Hook up fees and unit charges received 35,926 3,485 11,313 8,136
Special assessments received 106,360 27,3960 21,235 16,302
NET CASH PROVIDEDL BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 152,031 32,881 32,548 24,438
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investmenis G, 780G 21070 25,629 54,752
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 298,297 (70,357) (877.017) (426,385}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, IANUARY ! 663,584 733,941 1,046,250 1,472,675
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 5 061,881 g 663.584 s 169,273 & 1.046,290

The notes o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds - Continued

435 617
Storm Water Reeycling Totals
2010 2609 2010 2009 2010 2009

¥ 62,166 & 52,410 5 - & - b 684,381 & 654,581
(77.187) (43,860} - (13,238) {368,329} (3B2,676)
(18,188} (12,763} - - {196.662) {187.619)
(33,206} {4,213} - (11,238) 119,390 84,286
110,000 - - - (841,307} (360,067)
{249.500) - - - {249,500} -
{209,500) {99,500) - . (209,500} {469,113)
{249,000) {99,500) - - €1,300,307) {829,120;

R - - - (10,255) -

- . - . 67,239 13,621

- - - 11,238 127,565 54,936

- - - 11,238 184,579 68,557

5,206 17.846 - - 40,615 93,668
(377,003} {85.867) - - {555,723) (582.609)
566,773 652,640 - - 2,276,647 2,859,256

5 188770 5 366,773 b3 - § - § 1320624 5 2.7276647
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESCTA
STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS - CONTINUED
FROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEARS ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2016 AND 2009

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

601 6402
Water Sewer
2010 2009 2010 2009
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TONET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss hJ (40.015) & (68,260) §  (102,64%) § (118567
Other income related to operations 12 . - -
Adjustments 1o reconcile operating loss to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation 180,325 180,326 118,926 118,927
(Increase) decreass in assets:
Accounts receivable (2.602) (11,381 {168} (7.616}
Inventories 58 5,018 - -
Prepaid items - - (1,106 (5513
increase {decrecase) in liabilifies:
Accounts payable (256) (5.918) 239 (23}
Accrued salaries pavable 235 8952 235 954
Compensated absences payable 919 1,126 919 1,126
GCrher postemployment benefits pavable {2,332) 2,332 {2.332) 2,332
Due to other governments 142 818 2,079 (1,658)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED}
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5 136,486 $ 104.813 $ 16,113 § {5.076)

The notes to the financia! statemenis are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds - Continued

415
Storm water Recveling Totals
2010 2009 2010 2609 2010 2009
(60.083) & {23,257y % b3 (1L,238) & 202947y 0§ (221,32D)
- - - 12 .
27.884 27,884 - 327,133 327.137
(226) (9,501} - (3,026) (28,698}
. - - 58 5,018
- - - (1,106) (551}
(895} 395 - {912} {5,546)
1% 159 - 489 2.065
g2 167 - 1,936 2.359
- - - {4.664) 4,664
- - - 2,221 (840}
(33,20%) % (4,213) & s (11.238) § 119,390 h 84,286
-47-
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESCTA
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Mote It BUMMARY OF SICHIFICANT ACCOURNTING POLICIES
A. Heporting entity

The City of Centerville, Minnesota (the City}, operates under the “Optional Plan A” form of government as defined
in the State of Minnesaota statutes. Under this plan, the government of the City is directed by a Council composed of
an elected Mayor and four elected Council Members. The Council exercises legislative authority and determings all
matters of policy. The Council appoints personnel responsible for the proper administration of all affairs relating to
the City. The City has considered all potential units for which it is financially accountable, and other organizations
for which the natore and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the
City’s financizl statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB)
has set forth criteria o be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing 5
voting majority of an organization’s governing body, and (1) the ability of the primary government to impose its will
on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on the primary government. The City does not have any component units.

B. Government-wide snd fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information
on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City, Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants whe purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operationzl or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
Items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues,

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columas in the fund financial
statemernts.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Reveres are recorded when eamed
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmenzal fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafler to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be availabie
if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generaily are recorded when
a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

~4G.
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Mete 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and Interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible 10 accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Culy the portion of
special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as
revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and aveilable only when cash
is received by the City,

Revenue resulting from exchangs transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
year in which the resources are measurable and become available.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include
property taxes, grants, entitlement and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the year for which the tax is levied. Revenue from grants, entitlemtents and donations is recognized in the vear in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which
specify the year when the resovrces are required to be used or the year when use is first permitied, matching
requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified acerval basis
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

2

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied, Grants
and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as deferred revenue. On the
modified accrual basis, receivables that will not be collected within the available period have also been reported as
deferred revenue in the fund financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

The City reports the following major governmenta] funds:

The General fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the City, except
those required 1o be sccounted for in another fund,

The Debr Service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on
leng-term general obiigation debt of governmental funds.

‘The Park fund captures all park capital items and receives all the City’s park dedication fees.

The 2009 Street and Utility Improvements fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
the street and utility improvements started in 2009,

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water fund accounts for the activities of the water distribution system the City maintains.
The Sewer fund accounts for the activities of the City’s sewage collection operations.

The Storm Water fund accounts for the activities of the City’s storm water collection operations.



CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESGTA
NOTES TCO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Mote 1: SUMMARY OF SICHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of GASB. Governments also have the oprion of fellowing subsequent
private-sector guldance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same Hmitation. The
City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s waler and sewer function and various other functions
of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1} charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contribution, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments. Infernally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues,
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items, Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City enterprise funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, libilities and net assets or equity
Deposits and investments

The City's cash and cash eguivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investmenis with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Cash balances from all funds are pooled and invested, to the extent available, in certificates of deposit and other
authorized investments. Earnings from such investments are allocated on the basis of applicable participation by
each of the funds.
The City may also invest idle funds as authorized by Minnesota statutes, as follows:
1. Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies.
2. Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and
received the highest credit rating, rated in one of the two highest rating categories by a statistical rating

agency, and have a final maturity of thirteen months or Jess.

3. General obligations of a state or local government with taxing powers rated “A” or better; revenue
ghligations rated “AA” or befter.

4. QGenersl obligations of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency rated “A” or better,

5. Bankers® acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System.
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CiTY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010

Mete Ir SUMMARY OF BICGKIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

6. Commercial paper issued by United States banks corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, of highest
quality category by af least twe nationally recognized rating agencies, and maturing in 270 days or less,

7. Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements with financial institutions
qualified as a “depository™ by the government entity, with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve
System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a primary reporting dealer in U.S. government
securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or cerfain Minnesota securities broker-deslers.

8. (Guaranteed investment contracts (GIC's) issued or guaranteed by a United States commercial bank, 2
domestic branch of & foreign bank, 2 United States insurance company, or its Canadian subsidiary, whose
similar debt cbligations were rated in one of the top two rating categories by a nationally recognized rating
agency.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable include amounts billed for services provided before year end. Unbilled utility enterprise fund
receivables are also included for services provided in 2010. The City annually certifies delinguent water and sewer
accounts to the County for collection in the following year. Therefore, there has been no allowance for doubtful
aceounts established.

Interfund recetvables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements cutstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
“advances to/from other funds™ (i.2., the non-current portion of interfund leans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds,” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances.”

Property taxes

The Council annually adopts a tax levy in December and certifies it to the County for collection in the following
year. The County is responsible for collecting all property taxes for the City. These taxes attach an enforceable lien
on taxable property within the City on Jaruary 1 and are payable by the property owners in two installments. The

taxes are collected by the County Auditor and tax settlements are made to the City during January, Jaly and
December each vear.
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Heote 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Taxes payable on homestead property, as defined by Minnesota statutes, were partiaily reduced by a market value
credit aid. The credit is paid to the City by the State of Minnesota (the State) in liew of taxes levied against the
homestead property. The State remits this credit in two equal installments in October and December each year.

Delinquent taxes receivable include the past six vears® uncollected taxes, Delinquent taxes have been offset by a
deferred revenue lability for delinquent taxes not received within 60 days afier year end in the fund financial
statements.

Special assessments

Special assessments represent the financing for public improvements paid for by benefiting property owners. These
ASSESSMENtS are recorded as receivables upon certification to the County. Special assessments are recognized as
revenue when they are received in cash or within 60 days afier vear end. All governmental fund special assessments
receivable are offset by a deferred revenue liability in the fund financial statements.

Inventories and prepaid ifems

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFQ) method, Inventories of governmental funds are
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certair payments iG vendors reflect costs applicable to fufure accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items
in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capitel assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets {e.g., roads, bridges, sidewaiks,
and similar items) are, reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost
of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

In the case of initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental activities) the
City chose to include ttems dating back to June 30, 1980. The City was able to estimate the historical cost for the
initial reporting of these assets through back trending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the
infrastructure to be capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year
or estimated acquisition year). As the City constructs or acquires capital assets each period, including infrastructure
assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and
repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency
of the item or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate. In the case of donations the City values these
capital assets at the estimated fair value of the item at the date of its donation. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the
assets constructed.
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DBECEMBER 31, 2010

Mote 1+ SUMBMARY OF BIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES —~ CORTINUED

Property, plant and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method aver the following
estimated useful lives:

Useful Lives
ASSELS in Years
Land improvements 41025
Other improvements 101020
Buildings and improvements 10 to 50
Systemn improvemenis/infrastructure 201050
Machinery and eguipment 31020
Vehicles Jto 10
Other assets 3015

Compensated absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused paid time off benefits to a maximum of
192 hours. All paid time off pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary funds. A liability
for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations and retirements, Union employees are allowed severance egual to their unused compensatory time. In
governmental fund types the cost of these benefits is recognized when payments are made to the employees. The
General fund is typically used to liguidate governmental compensated absences,

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-
type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Beginning January 1, 2003, for governmental funds,
bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using
the straight-line method. Bond issuance costs are reporied as deferred charges and amortized over the {erm of the
related debt.,

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recegnized bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund egquity

Tn the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not
available for appropriation or are legally restricted by cutside parties for use for g specific purpose. Designations of
fund balance represent tenfative management plans that are subject to change.

54

85



CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note I: SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
Net assets
Met assets represent the difference between assets and Habilities. Net assets are displayed in three components:

@ Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
reduced by any outstanding debt attributable to acguire capital assets.

b, Restricted net assets - Consist of net assets restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

¢.  Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in
capital assets, net of related debt”,

Comparative data/reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for the individual enterprise funds in the fund
finencial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position and operations of
these funds. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year have been reclassified in order to be consistent with
the current year's presentation,

Mote 2: STEWARBSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTARBILITY
A. Budgetary information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America for the General fund. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. The City does not use
encumbrance accournting.

In May of each year, all departments of the City submit requests for appropriations to the City Administrator so that
a budget may be prepared. Before September 15th, the proposed budget is presented to the Council for review. The
Council holds public hearings and a final budget is prepared and adopted in early December.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City’s department heads, with the
approve! of the City Administrator, may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of
appropriations between departments require the approval of the Council. The legal level of budgetary controt is the
department fevel. The budget was amended during the vear, These amendments results in a projected decrease in
fund balance of $156,830, compared to an original budgeted increase in fund balance of $10,850.

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the year ended December 31, 2010, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following fund:

Excess of
Expenditures
Final Actual Over
Fund Budpet Amounts Appropriations
General $ 2184430 $ 2.197.049 5 {12619)

These over expenditures were funded by transfers from other funds,
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
Kete Z: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY - CONTIRUED

C. Deficit fund equity

The following funds had a deficit fund balance as of December 31, 2010:

Fund Amount
Major Funds
Capital projects
Park $ 1071516
Nonmaior Funds
Capital projects
CDRG Water Services 5,400

These deficits will be eliminated with future transfers.
Mote 3: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FURDS
A. Deposits and investments
Deposits
Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits
and investments may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of
an outside party. In accordance with Minnesota statutes and as authorized by the Council, the City maintains

deposits at those depository banks, all of which are members of the Federal Reserve System.

Minnesota statutes require that all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond, or collateral. The market
value of collateral pledged must equal 110 percent of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds.

Authorized collateral in lieu of a corporate surety bond includes:
e United States government Treasury bills, Treasury notes, Treasury bonds;

e [ssues of United States government agencies and instrumentalities as quoted by a recognized industry
quotation service available to the government entity;

s General obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers which is rated “A” oz
better by & national bond rating service, or revenue obligation securities of any state or local government
with taxing powers which is rated “AA™ or better by a national bond rating service;

¢ (General obligation securities of a local government with taxing powers may be pledged as collateral against
funds deposited by that same local government entity;

e Irrevocable standby letters of eredit issued by Federal Home Loan Banks to a municipality accompanied by
written gvidence that the bank’s public debt is rated “AA” or better by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or
Standard & Poor’s Corporation; and

¢ Time deposits that are fully insured by any federal agency.

Minnesota statutes require that all collateral shall be placed in safekeeping in a restricted account at a Federal
Reserve Bank, or it an account at 2 trust department of a commesrcial bank or other financia! institution that is not

owned or controlled by the financial institution furnishing the collateral. The selection should be approved by the
City.
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Mote 3: DETAILED KOTES ON ALE FUKNDS - CONTINUED

At year end, the City’s carrying amount of deposits was §5,993,555 and the bank balance was 56,103,388, Of the
bank balance, §250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and $5,853,388 was covered by collateral held
by the City’s agent in the City’s name.

Carrying amount of deposits $ 5,993,558
investments 249273
Petty cash 349

Total S 6243177

A reconciliation of cash and temporary investments as shown on the statement of net assets for the City follows,

Firvestments

As of December 31, 2010, the City had the following investments that are insured or registered, or securities held by
the City or its agent in the City’s name.

Fair Value
Credit Segmented Concentration and
Quality/ Time of Carrying
Investment Type Ratings (1) Distribution {2} Credit Risk Amount
Pooled investments
Broker money market N/A N/A WN/A $ 1,273
Nonpocled investments
Brokered CDs N/A I -3 years 99% 248,006
Total investments § 249273
i, Ratings are provided by various credit rating agencies where applicable to indicate associated credit risk.

2. Interest rate risk is disclosed using the segmented time distribution method.
/A Indicates not applicable or available.

The investments of the City are subject to the following risks:

s Credit Risk. The credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment
will not fulfill its obligations. Ratings are provided by various credit rating agencies and where applicable,
indicate associated credit risk. Minnesota Statutes limit the City's investments to the list on pages 24 - 25 of

the notes.

e Custodial Credit Risk, The costodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or
coliateral securities that are in the possession of an cutside party. Generally, the City limits its securities
purchases to those insured and registered under the City’s name,

e Concentration of Credit Risk, The concentration of credit risk for investments is the risk of loss attributed
to the magnitude of & government’s investment in & single issuer. The City has 99 percent of its portfolio
invested in brokered CD¥'s at vear end.

s Interest rate risk. The interest rate risk for investments Is the risk that changes in interest rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an Investment.

The City does not currently have a formal investment policy that addresses the above mentioned risks,
-57-
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESGTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2016

Note 3: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - CONTINUED
. Beferred revenue

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered 1o
be available to liquidate Habilities of the current peried. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal vear, the
various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Uneamed

General fund

Taxes receivable % 93,168 $ .

Special assessments recelvable 108,918 -
Debt service funds

Special assessments receivable 2,042,893 -
Non-major governmental funds

Unearned grant - 188,500

Total $ 2236979 § 188500
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CiTY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Mete 3: BETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDE - CONTINUED

B. Capitsl sssets

Capital asset activity for the year ended Diecember 31, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance increases Decreases Balance
Governmentsl sctivities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land § 3,253,120 L3 54,903 hy - 5 3,308,023
Construction in progress 4,469,754 713,609 (1,145,194} 4,038,169
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 7,122,874 768,512 (1,145.194) 7,346,192
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 1,627,438 - - 1,627,438
Infrastructure 9,204,462 1,145,164 - 10,349,656
Machinery and equipment 786,741 27,463 {17,160) 797,104
Total capital assets
being depreciated 11,618,641 1,172,657 {17,100) 12,774,198
1ess sccumulated depreciation for
Buildings {580,586) (37,290} - {617,876)
Infrastructure {2,568,954) (406,262) - (2,975,216}
Machinery and equipment {362,860) (61,908) 15,740 (409,028)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,512,400) (505,460) 15,740 (4,002,123
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 8,106,241 667,197 {1,360} 8,772,078
Goveramental activities
capital agsets, net % 15829115 8 1.435709 § (1.146.554y _§ 16,118.270
55
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Mote 3; DETAILED NOTES CN ALL FUKDE - CONTINUED

Bepinning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 5 186,000 10,255 - $ 196255
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 414,600 - - 414,000
Infrastructure 8,105,729 - - 9,185,729
Machinery and eguipment 289,217 ~ {5,275) 283,942
Total capital assets
being depreciated 9,808,946 - {5,275) 5,803,671
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings {15,870} {8,280} - (24,150}
Infrastructure (2,312,118} (294,714) - {2.606,632)
Machinery and eguipment {164,069) {24.141) 5,275 (182,935}
Total accumulated depreciation (2,492,087} (327,135) 5,275 (2.813.917)
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 7,316,889 (3271353 - 6,989,754
Business-fype activities
capital assets, net I 7502589 {31688 - $ 7.186.009
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as foliows:
Goverpmentsl activities
General government 3 16,445
Public safety 6,887
Public works 417,129
Culture and recreation 64,995
Total depreciation expense - governmenta! activities 505460
Business-type activities
Water % 180,325
Sewer 118,926
Storm water 27,884

Total depreciation expense - business-fype activities

60
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
Rote 3: DETAILED NOTES OGN ALL FUNDSE « CONTINUED
E. Long-term debt

General oblipation bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acguisition and construction of major capital
facifities. General obligation bonds have been issued for governmental activities.

General cbligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. General obligation
bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

General obligation Improvement bonds

The following bonds were issued to finance various improvements and will be repaid primarily from specizl
assessments collections and tax levies.

Balance
Authorized Interest Issue Maturity at
Description and Issued Rate Date Date Year End
(.0, Improvement
Bonds of 2004B $ 2,200,000 3.60-440 % 06/01/04 02/01/26 5 1,595,000
G.0. Improvement
Bonds of 2005 827.75¢ 3.50-4.30 04/27/05 01/01/21 609,439
G.0. Improvement
Bonds of 2007A 2,600,060  3.60-425 12/01/47 06/01/23 2,460,000
G.G. Improvement
Bonds of 20094 3,715,000 23-560 08/19/09 08/01/25 3,715,000
.0, Crossever
Bonds of 20098 2.430,000  2.00-3.00 10/29/09 09/01/18 2,430,000
Total General Obligation Improvement Bonds 3 10.809.439

Annual debt service requirements for general obligation improvement bonds are as follows:

General Obligation Improvement Bonds

Year Ending Governmental Activities
December 31, Principal Tnterest Total
2011 § 843,854 § 414,382 § 1,258,236
2012 635,604 397,600 1,033,204
2013 658,958 377,942 1,036,900
2014 805,854 354,709 1,160,563
2018 834,208 327,575 1,161,783
20162020 4,804,833 1,050,688 5,855,521
2021-2025 2,226,128 253,557 2,479,685
Total 3 10,809,439 $ 13176453 $ 13,985 807
61-
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2010

Neote 3: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - CONTINUED

Changes in Long-term: Liabilities. During the vear ended December 31, 2010, the following changes occurred in
noncurrent Habilities:

Beginning Ending [hue Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental gctivities
Bonds payable

General obligation

honds § 13,601,543 $ - % (2.882,104)  § 10,809,439 § 843,854

Compensated absences

payable 33,859 66,388 {57.100) 43,147 37429
Other postemployment

benefits payable 14,768 - (14.768) - -

Governmental activities
long-term liabilities § 13.740.170 b 66,388 § (29539727 _§ 10.852.586 § 881283

Business-type activities
Compensated absences

payable k3 11,967 5 17,515 $ {15585 % 13,897 b 12,384
Other postemployment
benefits payable 4,664 - (4.664) - -

RBusiness-{ype activities

long-term liabilities 3 16631 $ 17,515 5 {20.249) % 13.897 £ 12,384
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
Note 3: DETAILED BOTES OGN ALL FUNDS - CONTINUED
F. Interfund bazlances and fransfers

The following is & schedule of interfund transfers as of December 31, 2010

Transfer in

2016
General Debt Service Other
Fund Fund Funds Governmental Total
Transfer out
Park g - b3 - § 825,000 $ 825000
2009 Street & Utility Iuprovements 19,260 - - 19,260
Storm Water - 96,500 116,000 208,500
Other Governmental 7,230 362,801 - 370,031
Total 5 26,490 § 462301 § 935000 9 1423791

« A transfer of $825,000 from the Park fund to other governmental funds for the funding project plan and
loan between funds.

e A transfer of $110,000 from the Storm Water fund to cther governmental furds for the project funding plan
and loan between funds.

e A transfer of £339,965 from other governmental fimds to Debt Service funds to close the fund.
e A transfer of $22,836 from other governmental funds to Debt Service funds to close the fund.

e A transfer of $19,260 from the 2009 Street & Utility Improvements fund to the General fund for wages
paid relating to the projects.

s A transfer of §7.230 from the other governmental funds to the General fund for wages paid relating to the
projects.

e A transfer of $99,500 from Storm Water fund fo Debt Service funds for debt service payments related 1o
drainage system improvements,
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CiTY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
Mete 3: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - CONTINUED

Advances from/to other funds

The following is a schedule of interfund advances:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Enterprise
Sewer General $ 443,828
Sewer Park 1108312
Sewer Bebt service 371,334
Sewer Storm water 110,000
Total § 2038474

¢ The Sewer fund advanced the Park fund an additional $825,000 during the year to provide temporary
financing to cover the costs of improvements to the property until funds are available from developer fees
for parks. In the cvent that park fees are insufficient to make payments on the advance, the required funds
shall be included in the operating levy.

¢ The Sewer fund advanced the Downtown Storm Water Reclamation fund $110,000 to provide monies for
the project funding plan. The advance will be repaid upon the complefion of the project.

All of the above interfund advances have associated amortization schedules, of which current payments are being
made.

G. Fund equity

Certain reservations and designations have been made in the following funds:

Fund Purpose Amount
Fund balance - Reserved
Debt Service Debt service on bonds issued §  2.096,530
Prepaids 6,151
Generat Prepaids 5213
Total reserved fund balance 5 2.107.8%4

Fund balanee - Unreserved - Designated
General Working capital 5 1,063,198

[ Ot Bttt Lo el IS
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESGTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Mote 4: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - STATEWIDE
A, Flan description

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City are covered by defined benefit plans administered by the
Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). PERA administers the General Employees
Retirement Fund (GERF), which is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement plan. The plan is established and
administered in accordance with Minnesota statutes, chapters 353 and 356.

GERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by
Soctal Secwrity and Basic Plan members are not. All new members must participate in the Coordinated Plan.

PERA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to survivors upon death of
eligible members, Benefits are esiablished by Minnesota statute, and vest after three years of credited service. The
defined retirement benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of
allowable service, age and years of credit at termination of service.

Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA’s Coordinated and Basic Plan members. The retiring member
receives the higher of a step-rate benefit acerual formula (Method 1) or a Jevel acerual formula (Method 2). Under
Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.2 percent of average salary for each of the first 10
years of service and 2.7 percent for each remaining year, The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is
1.2 percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years and 1.7 percent for each remaining year. Under Method 2,
the annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary for Basic Plan members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated
Plan members for each year of service.

For all GERF members hired prior to July 1, 1989 whose annuity is calculated using Method 1, a full annaity is
available when age plus years of service equal 90. Normal retirement age is 65 for Basic and Coordinated members
hired prior to July 1, 1989. Normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66 for
coordinated members hired after July 1, 1989. A reduced retirement annuity is also available to eligible members
seeking early retirement.

There are different types of annuities available o members upon retirement. A normal annuity is a lifetime annuity
that ceases upon the death of the retiree - no surviver annuity is payable. There are also various types of joint and
survivor annuity options available which will reduce the monthly normal annuity amount, because the annuity is
payable over joint lives. Members may aiso leave their contributions in the fund upon termination of public service
in order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Refunds of contributions are available at any time to
members who leave public service, but before retirement benefifs begin.

The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current provisions and apply to active
plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are not receiving them yet are bound
by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public service.

PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary

mformation for GERF. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.mnpera.org, by writing to PERA at 60
Empire Drive, Suite 200, St. Paul, Minnesota 55103-2088 or by calling 651-296-7460 or 1-800-652-5026.
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Noted: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - STATEWIDE - CONTINUED
B, Funding policy

Minnesota statutes, chapter 353 sefs the rates for employer and employee contributions. These statutes are
established znd amended by the State legislature. The City makes annuval contributions to the pension plans equal 1o
the amount required by Minnesota statutes. GERF Basis Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were
required to contribute 9.10 percent and 6.0 percent, respectively, of their annual covered salary in 2010, In 2010, the
City was required to contribute the following percentages of annual covered payroll: 11.78 percent for Basic Plan
GERF members and 7.00 percent for Coordinated Plan GERF members. Employer contribution rates for the
Coordinated Plan will increase to 7.25 percent, effective January ¥, 2011, The City’s contributions to the GERF for
the year ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were $44,431, 540,832, and $35,321, respectively. The City's
contributions were equal to the contractually required contributions for each year as set by Minnesota statute. The
City only has coordinated members and will begin contributing 6.25 percent of their salaries to PERA starting in
2011.

Nete 6: JOINT POWEERS AGREEMENTS
A. Centennial fire district

The Centennial Fire District {the District) was formed under the authority of Minnesota statutes 471.59 in 1985 by
agreement of the member cities of Centerville, Lino Lakes and Circle Pings. The district was created to provide fire
protection services to the residents of the member cities. The District {s managed through a three tier system
consisting of a fire chief, a steering committee, and the Councils of the member cities. The fire chief is an appointed
position. Each member city appoints two commissioners. One of these commissioners must be an elected official of
the city. Each member city contributes funds to cover the budgeted costs of operations as determined by the
commissioners. The amount of contributions required by each member is based on each ¢ity’s population, number of
fire calls, and assessed valuations. Contributions made by member cities for 2009, the most recent data available,
were as follows:

City of Centerviile § 114,302 1537 %

City of Circle Pines 128,527 17.28

City of Lino Lakes 501,036 67.35
Total § 743865 100.00 %

Volunteer firefighters of the District are members of the Centennial Firefighter’s Relief Association (the
Association). The Association is a single-employer pension plan (the Pian) that operates under the provisions of
Minnesota Statutes 69 and 424, as amended. It is governed by a board of six officers and trustees elected by the
members of the Association for three-year terms. The ex-officio, non-voting members of the Board of trustees are
two representatives from the Centennial Fire Steering Committee and the fire chief of the District.

The Association issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the Centennial Fire District 7741 Lake Drive,
Lino Lakes, MIN 55014,
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESQOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

MNeote &; JOINT POWERSE AGREEMENTS - CONTINUED
B. Centennial lakes police department

The Centennial Lakes Police Department (the Department) was formed under the authority if Minnesota statutes
436.06 in 2005 by agreement of the member cities of Centerville, Circle Pines and Lexington. The Department was
created to provide police protection services to its member cities. The Department is managed through a three fier
system consisting of a2 Governing Board, an Operations comimnittee, and a chief of police. The Governing Board
consists of six members, two elected officials appointed by each member city. The Operations Commitiee is made
up of the Cify administrators from each member city and the Chief of Police. The Chief of Police is appointed by
mutual agreement of the City councils of all member cities. Annual contributions required by each member city are
calculated based on complaint history, population, and staffing formulas. Contributions made by member cities for
2009, the most recent data available, were as follows:

City of Centervilie § 679,048 3216 %

City of Circle Pines 848 283 4018

City of Lexington 583,866 27.66
Total $ 2111197 100,00 %

C. Summary financial information of the joint powers agreements entities

The contribution to the ioint fire district and the joint police commission are reflected as expenditures in the City’s
General fund. The fire district and police commission’s assets, liabilifies, eguity and operations are excluded from
the City’s financial statements as further explained in note 1A,

The following information is from the financial statements of the District and the Department as of December 31,
2009, the most recent audited information available at the time of this report. The amounts reported for the District
are those presented in its government-wide financial statements, These financial statements are available for viewing
at the Centerville City hall,

Centennial
Centennial i.akes Police
Fire District Department
Total assets $ 1,283,432 NA
Total lisbilities 105,158 NA
Total net assets 1,178,274 NA
Total revenue 203,687 NA
Total expenses 779,010 NA

NA- not available

Volunteer firefighters of the District are members of the Centennial Firefighter’s Relief Association (the
Association}. The Association is a single-emplover pension plan (the Plan) that operates under the provisions of
Minnesota Statutes 69 and 424, as amended. 1t is governed by a board of six officers and trustees elected by the
members of the Association for three-year terms. The ex-officio, non-voting members of the Board of trustees are
two representatives from the Centennial Fire Steering Committee and the fire chief of the District,

The Association issues a publicly available financial report that inciudes financial statements and required
supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the Cenfennial Fire District 7741 Lake Drive,
Lino Lakes, MN 55014,
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NCOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Hete 7: OTHER INFORMATION
A, Risk management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the City carries insurance. The City obtains
insurance through participation in the League of Mimmesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT), which is a risk sharing
poo! with appreximately 800 other governmental units. The City pays an annual premium to LMCIT for its workers
compensation and property and casualty insurance. The LMCIT is self sustaining through member prentiums and
will reinsure for claims above a prescribed dollar amount for each insurance event. Settled claims have not exceeded
the City’s coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has ocourred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated, Liabilities, if any, include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNRs). The
City’s management is not aware of any incurred but not reported claims,

B, Legzal debt margin

In accordance with Mimmesota statutes, the City may not incur or be subject to net debt in excess of 3 percent of the
market value of taxable property within the City. Net debt is payable solely from ad valorem taxes and, therefore,
excludes debt financed partiaily or entirely by special assessments, enterprise fund revenues or tax increments. The
market value of taxable property is $342,844,400, which leaves a debt margin of $10,285,332. The City has ne
outstanding debt against this limit.

C. Tayxincrement distriets

The City is the administering authority for tax increment financing district No.1-6, The district is a redevelopment
district established in 2005. The property in the district is tax exempt, therefore there is no tax capacity.

The City’s tax increment districts are subject to review by the State of Minnesota Office of the State Auditor (GSA).
Any disallowed claims or misuse of tax increments could become a liability of the applicable fund. Management has
indicated that they are not aware of any instances of noncompliance which would have a material effect on the
financial statements.

D. Subseguent event

On April 14, 2011, the City issued $2,760,000 of G.O. Improvement Refunding Bonds, series 201 L A, refunding the
G.C. Improvement Bonds, Series 2004B and the G.O. Improvement Bonds, Series 20074.

Mote 8: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In 1997, the City entered into & Joint Powers agreement with the Anoka County Housing and Redevelopment Authority
{ACHRA) to provide senior housing within the City. The ACHRA has issued $1,290,000 of Housing Development
Revenue Bonds to provide for construction costs of the project. The City has reserved $71,631 in the Sewer enterprise
fund in accordance with the agreement with ACHRA. This armount is to be used in the event revenue is not sufficient to
cover operating expenses and debt service. The City would also be liable for any deficit above the amount reserved. This
commitment expired on December 31, 2010. No expenses were incurred relating to the commitment in 2010,
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CiTY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NONMAIOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Special Revenue Funds

614 Z15
Northern
Forest
Cable T.V. Products Total
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments {deficiis} 5 12,894 $ - g 12,894
Receivables
Accounts - - -
Due from other governments 12,157 . 12,157
Prepaid items - - .
TOTAL ASSETE g 25051 $ - g 25,051
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
LIABILITIES
Accounis payable b3 - i - $ -
Contracts payable - - -
Accrued salaries payable 389 - 389
Deferred revenue - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 389 . 389
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS}
Unreserved
Undesignated 24,662 - 24,662
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $ 25,051 $ - 5 25,051
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Capital Projects

414 449 458 452 453
2006 2007 2007
Pedestrian Municipal CSAH 14 2607 Downtown
Trail Ways Improvements Improvements Bevelopment Redevelopment
£ 546,996 $ - 5 . by - $ 279,386
. - - - 41,692
2,345 - - . .
& 549341 3 - Y - § - b 321,078
$ 4,255 5 - g - 5 - § 6,862
- - - - 188,500
4,255 - - - 195,362
545,086 - - - 125,716
3 549,341 $ - § - 5 - 3 321,078
-71-
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOT A
NOWMAIOR GOVERNMENTAL FURD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Capital Projects - Continued

478 Total
CDBG Nonmajor
Water Governmental
Services Total Funds
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments {deficits) £ {102,674y % 723,708 g 736,602
Receivables
Accounts - 41,692 41,692
Due from other governments 102,690 162,690 114,847
Prepaid items - 2,345 2,345
TOFAL ASSETS $ 16 3 870,435 g 895 486
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable § ) S 11,133 $ 11,133
Contracts payable 5,400 5,400 5,400
Accrued szlaries payable - - 189
Deferred revenue “ 188,500 188,500
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,416 205,033 205,422
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Unreserved
Undesignated (5,400} 665,402 690,064
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $ 16 $ 870,435 3 895 486

A
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NONMAIOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Special Revenue Funds

614 215
Northern
Forest
Cable T.V. Products Total
REVERUES
Property taxes § - 3 14,679 i 14,679
Intergovernmental - - -
Interest on investments 227 - 227
Miscellaneous
Refunds and reimbursements 12,157 . 12,157
TOTAL REVENUES 12,384 14,679 27,063
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public works
Supplies - - “
Culture and recreation
Personal services 8,200 - §.200
Supplies 343 - 343
Other services and charges 35 - 35
Economic development
Other services and charges - 14,679 14,679
Capital outlay
Public works - - -
Culture and recreation - - .
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,578 14,679 23,257
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 3,806 - 3,806
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in - - .
Transfers out - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) . - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3,806 - 3,806
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JANUARY | 20,856 - 20,856
FUND BALANCES {DEFICITS), DECEMBER 31 $ 24,662 s - $ 24,662
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Capital Projects

414 448 450 452 453
2006 2007 2807
Pedestrian Municipal CSAH 14 2007 Downtown

Tratl Ways Improvements Improvements Drevelopmert Redevelopment
3 - $ - $ - § - L3 -
£1.082 - - - -

265 213 2,563 611 2,778

81,347 213 2,563 611 2,778

- - 450 - -

- 21,637 15,721 19,655 120,585

128,358 - - - -
128,358 21,637 16,171 19,655 120,585
(47,011} {21,424 {13.608) {19,044) {117,807}
825,000 . - - 110,000
(7.230} - {339.,965) (22,836) -
§17,776 - {335,965) {22,836) 110,000
770,759 (21,424) {353,573} {41,880) (7,807)
(225.673) 21,424 353,573 41,880 133,523

3 545 086 $ - 3 - $ - b 125716
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
NONMAIOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Capital Projects - Continued

4740 Total
CDBG Nonmajor
Water Governmental
Services Total Funds
REVENUES
Property taxes 5 - $ . i3 14,679
Intergovernmental 245,031 327,613 327013
Interest on investments - 6,430 6,657
Miscellanecus
Refunds and reimbursements - - 12,157
TOTAL REVENUES 245,931 333,443 360,506
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public works
Supplies - 450 450
Culture and recreation
Personal services - - 8,200
Supplies - - 343
{ther services and charges - - 35
Economic deveiopment
Other services and charges - - 14,675
Capital outlay
Public works 251,331 428,929 428929
Culture and recreation - 128.358 128,358
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 251,351 557,287 580,994
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) GF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {5,400} (223,844} (220,488}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 935,008 935,000
Transfers out - {370,031) {370,031)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - 564,969 564,969
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (5,400 340,675 344,481
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JANUARY 1 . 324,727 345,583
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), DECEMBER 31 3 (5400 § 665,402 % &690.,064
77
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
{With comparative actual amounts for the year ended December 31, 2009)

2010 2009
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Taxes
General property § 1,646,561 § 1,633,000 § 1,651,153 g {1.847) & 1,961,993
Gamhling - - 753 733 -
Total 1,646,561 1,653,000 1,651,906 (1,084) 1,961,993
Licenses and permits
Business 20,000 20,250 21,774 1,524 20,090
Nonbusiness 111,500 76,400 75.433 (367} 118,031
Total 131,500 96.650 97,207 557 138,121
Intergovernmential
State
Property tax credits - - 692 692 668
State grants aid 1,333 1.36G 1,333 33 11,333
Police aid 35,600 35,000 34,627 (373) 35613
2% Fire relief aid 125,000 11,700 101,711 i1 118,294
County - other 16,350 16,550 16.640 90 16,550
Total 177.883 154,550 155,003 453 182,458
Charges for services
General government - 1.500 1,400 (100) 1,240
Culture and recreation - 3,000 2,930 (70} 2,340
Other 2,060 100 78 (22} 27
Total 2,000 4,600 4,408 (192} 3,607
Fines and forfeitures 33,500 33,500 36,028 2,528 28,836
Special assessments . 28,000 28.090 o0 43,864
Interest on investments 30,000 20,000 13,677 (6.323) 16,387
Miscellaneous
Refunds and reimbursements 36,004 28,100 7,539 (20,561 30,100
Other 100,500 9,200 13,786 4,586 4,952
Total 136,500 37,300 21,325 {(15,975) 35,052
TOTAL REVENUES 2,157,944 2,027,600 2,007,644 {19,956) 2,404,328
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES «
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(With comparative actual amounts for the year ended December 31, 2000}

2610 2509
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with Actual
Criginal Final Ameunts Tinal Budget Amounts
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Mayor and Council
Personal services N 29,711 & 29700 i 29,927 & {227) 29,792
Other services and charges 2,100 100 199 {99} 659
Total 31,811 29,800 30,126 {326) 30,451
Elections
Personal services 2,293 5,850 5,784 66 -
Supplies 300 100 85 15 -
Other services and charges 5,400 GO0 847 53 -
Total 7,993 6.850 6,716 134 -
Planning and zoning
Other services and charges 2,000 2,380 1,397 983 2,518
Administration
Personal services 203,638 283,050 286,793 (3,743) 266,050
Supplies 7.000 3,500 2,615 885 4.411
Othier services and charges 79,000 62,550 55,314 7,236 57,779
Total 379,638 349,160 344,722 4,378 328,240
Assessing
Other services and charges 17,500 15,500 15.429 71 15,371
Legal and auditing
Other services and charges 75,000 91,000 103,958 (12,958) 100,056
General government building
Personal services 4,412 2,760 1,859 841 1,936
Supplies 300 300 186 it4 191
Other services and charges 25,000 15,500 14,239 1,261 21,356
Total 29,712 18,500 16,284 2,216 23,483
Total general government 543,654 513,130 518,632 (5,502} 500,119
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2610

{With comparative actual amounts for the year ended December 31, 2009)

2009
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED
Current - Continued
Public safety
Police protection
Other services and charges b 690,877 b3 690,950 690,941 & 2 679,468
Fire protection
Remittance to relief association 125,000 103,700 101,711 {(11) 117,294
Other services and charges 112,753 113,008 112,947 53 110,799
Total 237,753 214,700 214,658 42 228,093
Building inspection
Personal services 145,123 132,600 135,387 (2,787) 135,118
Supplies 5,000 1,700 1,653 47 1,954
Other services and charges 8,560 9,800 9,364 436 14,222
Total 158,623 144,160 146,404 {2,304y 151,294
Civil defense
Other services and charges 1,500 2,000 1.5G6 494 455
Animal control
Other services and charges 1,606 LOGG 536 464 601
Total public safety 1,089,753 1,052,750 1,054,045 (1,265} 1,066,001
Public works
Streets
Personal services 114,515 212,300 210,146 2,154 217428
Supplies 16,500 28.600 33,748 {5,148) 23,101
Other services and charges 101,000 83,900 85,407 {1,507 92,460
Total 232,015 324,800 329,301 {4,507) 332,989
Recycling
Personal services 4,193 4,200 4,129 71 4,226
Supplies 100 100 921 (821} 166
Other services and charges 1,900 12,100 11,589 511 11,357
Total 6,193 16,400 16,639 {239 15,683
-B0-
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CiTY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(With comparative actual amowunts for the year ended December 31, 2009}

2010 2609
Budgeted Anmounts Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amaounts Final Budget Amounts
EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED
Current - Continued
Public works - continued
Engineering services
Other services and charges § 12,000 & 7,300 & 8,254 % (9543 15.062
Teotal public works 230,208 348,500 354,194 (5,694} 366,734
Cuiture and recreation
Parks and recreation
Personal services 31,856 31,500 33,361 (1,461} 31,360
Supplies 6,000 7.500 6,985 515 3,365
Other services and charges 35,530 41,200 38,783 2,415 64,683
Total parks and recreation 73,384 80,600 79,131 1,469 00 408
City Festival
Other services and charges 5,500 5,850 5,830 20 16,516
Total culture and recreation 78,886 86,450 84,961 1,489 115,924
Feonomic development
Supplies - 100 %9 i 126
Other services and charges 2,000 500 300 204 6,407
Total economic development 2,000 600 399 201 6,533
Total current expenditures 1,964,501 2,001,430 2,012,231 {10,801 2,049,311
Capital outlay
General government 10,000 3,500 3,608 (101 -
Public works 73,093 173,000 174,584 (1.584) 11,104
Culture and recreation - - . - 617
Economic development - - - - 155,195
Total capital outlay 83,003 176,500 178,185 {1.685) 166,916
Debt service
Principal - 6,500 6,633 (133) -
Interest and other - - - - 6,535
Total debt service - 6,500 6,633 {133} 6,535
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2.047.594 2,184,430 2,197,049 (12,619) 2,222762
81~
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE CF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
{With comparative actual amounts for the year ended December 31, 2669}

2010 2009
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with Actual
Criginal Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY ) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES $ 110,350 § (156,830} & {189.405) b {32,575} § 181,566
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 26,490 26,490 250,144
Transfers out (99,5000 . - - {357.5003
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (99,500} - 26,490 26,49 (107,756)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 10,850 (156,830) (162,915} (6,085) 73,810
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1 1,231,326 1,231,326 1,231,326 . 1,157,516
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31 § 1242176 § 1074496 § 1068411 b {6,085y § 1231326
-83-
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010

30¢ 31z 346 348
Joint G.O. G.0. .0,
Police Improvement Improvement Improvement
Station Bonds of Bonds of Bonds of
2005A 20041 2004A 20064
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments & 52,346 b 546,764 % - $ 510,946
Receivabies
Delinquent taxes 494 783 - -
Accounts - - - -
Special assessments
Current - 5,125 - -
Delinquent - 2,906 - 8,559
Deferred - 291,403 - 411,038
Prepaid items 5,151 - - .
TOTAL ASSETS £ 58,991 b 840,981 $ - 5 930,543
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Advances 1o other funds $ - % - $ - £ 371,334
Deferred revenue - 294,309 - 431,038
TOTAL LIABILITIES . 294,309 - 782,372
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Debt service 52,840 546,672 - 148,171
Prepaid items 6,151 - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 38,991 546,672 - 148,171
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 58.991 $ 840,981 $ - $ 930,543
-84-
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34¢ is1
G.O. G0,
Improvement Improvement
Ronds of Bonds of
2007A 20094 Total
& 815,815 & 506,032 2,425.903
1,137 795 5,200
8,593 - 8,593
- - 5,125
15,511 3,008 29,984
398,414 037,088 2,037,843
- - 6,151
$  1,239.470 § 1,446,923 4.516.908
§ - $ - 371,334
358,414 939,132 2,042,893
398,414 939,132 2,414,227
841,056 507,791 2,086,530
- - 6,151
841,056 507,791 2,102,681
$ 1239470 § 1,446,023 4,516,908

-85.
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CiTY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESCTA

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

REVENUES
Property taxes
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Interest on invesiments
Miscellancous

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES

GTHER FINANCING SCURCES
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31

309 31z 346 348
Joint G.O. G.0. G.0.
Police Improvement Improvement Improvement
Station Bonds of Bonds of Bonds of
20054 20048 20044 20064
h 74,232 $ 117,661 5 - & -
- 53,660 2,476 248315
440 5,687 " 4,741
- - " 4,600
74,672 177,008 2,476 257,656
47,104 130,000 - 2,565,000
26,693 69.096 - 111,603
73,797 199,096 - 2,676,603
875 (22.088) 2,476 (2,418,947
- - - 99.500
875 {22,088) 2,476 {2,319,447)
58,116 568,760 2,476} 2,467,618
$ 58,991 5 546,672 3 - b 148,171
-86-
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349 351
G.O. G.0.
Improvement Improvement
Bonds of Bonds of
2007A 20094 Total
§ 170,752 $ 119,574 b 482,219
150,928 i75.212 630.591
- 55,789 55,789
6,147 4,698 21,713
- - 4,600
327,827 355,273 1,194,912
140,006 - 2,882,104
99,913 168,210 475,515
239,913 168,21¢ 3,357,619
87,914 187,663 (2,162,707)
362,801 - 462,301
450,715 187,063 {1,700,406)
390.341 320,728 3,803,087
¥ 841,056 £ 507,791 5 2102681

w87
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)

CITY OF CENTERVILLE
CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA
SUFPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL OPERATIONS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Percent
Total Increase
2010 2009 {Decrease)
REVENUES
Taxes § 2,148,804 § 1,974,663 8.82 %%
Licenses and permits 97,207 138,121 (29.62)
Intergovernmerital 537,805 182,458 194,76
Charges for services 4,408 3,607 22.21
Fines and forfeitures 36,028 28,836 24.94
Special assessments 659,531 701,070 (5.93)
Interest on investments 48,262 80,549 (40.08)
Miscetlaneous 38,0682 48,293 {21.14)
TOTAL REVENUES $ 3,570,127 §  3.157.597 13.06 %
Per Capita § 920 § 826 11.32 %
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government g 518,632 hS 500,119 370 %
Public safety 1,054,045 1,060,001 {0.56)
Public works 354,644 375,036 {5.44)
Culture and recreation 93,539 126,809 (26.24}
Economic development 15,078 19,203 (21.48}
Capital outlay
General government 3,601 - -
Public works 1,302,202 2,791,460 {53.35)
Culture and recreation 128,358 211,381 {39.28)
Economic development - 155,195 {100.00)
Debt service
Principal 2,882,104 305,354 B43.86
Interest and other 486,335 326,513 48.95
Bond issuance costs - 61,692 160.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES § 6,838,538 $ 5932763 1527 %
Per Capita h 1,762 § 1,553 1349 %
Total Long-term Indebtedness § 18,809,439 § 13,691,543 {21.05) %
Per Capita 2,785 3,583 {2227
General Fund Balance - Decemnber 31 §  1,068411 $ 1,231,326 £13.23) %
Per Capita 275 322 {14.57)

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of financial information concerning the City of Centerville to interested
citizens. The complete financial statements may be examined at City Hall, 1880 Main 81, Centerville, MN 55038, Questions
about this report should be directed to City Hall at (651) 429-3232.

-91-
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GTHER REQUIRED REFORTS

CITY OF CENTERVILLE
CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2010
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EICK &
MEYERS up

viified Public Arcountunts & Cosdumnts

201 Bden Avenue
Kuite 250
Tding, MN 55438

REPORT ON MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Honorable Mayor and Council
City of Centerville, Minnesota

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaiming fund information of the City of Centerville, Minnesota (the City), as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon, dated
March 24, 20611.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Local Government, promulgated by the Minnesota Office of the
State Auditor pursuant to Minnesota statuate, section 6.65, Accordingly, the audit included such tests of the accounting records and
such other auditing procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances,

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Local Government covers seven main categories of compliance to be tested:
contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, tax
increment financing, and miscelfaneous city provisions. Cur study included all of the listed categories.

The results of our tests indicate that for the jtems tested, the City complied with the material terms and conditions of applicable
legal provisions.

‘This report is intended selely for the information and use of the Council, management, others within the City and the Minnesota
Office of the State Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

March 24, 2011 ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota Certified Public Accountants
§32.835.0000 ¢ Fax 952.835.3261 -95.
SN “'.é:lvé‘!ﬁ!'f)ﬂﬁ.(‘fﬂli
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Twin Town Home Association of Eagle Pass
Cerdendlle, Minnesota 55038

fdiarch 26, 2011

To: Mayor Thomas Witharbor

City Council Members: Ben Fehrenbacher, Steve King, D. Love, and Jeff Paar

Re: Curbstop breskage at 1742 Ojibway Drive §7,227.17

On February 2, 2014, the curbstop broke at 1742 Ojibway Drive and was leaking water out info the
street The Centennial Lakes Police promptly responded to a call. The police nofified the City of
Centervilie, who in tum were able fo turn the water off. The city then proceeded to get someone o fix
the problem after notifying me in Texas. In addition, | would like to thank the Centennial Lakes Police

for their assistance in notifying the city and the residents of the association of the broken pipe.

The City estimated it would cost about $4,000.00 based on past experiences. However, we received a
bilf for $7,227.17 apparently the difference is due o the extremely cold weather. We understand the bill

for $7,227.17 does not include repairing the huge hole in the driveway.

Our Homeowners Assocsat;on feels that the City shouid assume the responsibility in this matter. It is
our understanding that it was the curbstop itself that broke and not the pipe. The City instalis the
curbstop and the developer hooks up to the curbstop. 1t is speculated that the frost in the ground
caused the ground to raise and break the curbstop. If the pipe would have broken on the homeowners
side it would be possible to understand this to be the responsibility of our association. However, it

appears as though the curbstop the city installed broke.

Our Association has had some unfortunate incidents with the City of Centervilie in the pastand we
have felt we were not trealed fairly.
1. When you had NSP run the power lines on the west side of our property and destroyed numerous

trees. The City Administrator said he would ask the council to approve putting in a few pine trees fo act
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as g bufter. The Councl said no. Our Assoclation then had to pay to have some pine fress planted to
act s 2 buffer or screen.

2. Sealcosting Dupre. | had asked the Clty Administrator and Public Works Director on more than

one occasion o let us know when the city was going to seal coat Dupre, so the assosiation could piggy
back on the Cities confracts and have Ojibway Drive done at the same time and save the citizens some
money. ! found out about Dupre being seal coated when i read about it in the paper. 1 called the

City Adminisirator who said they must have forgot. He told me io call the contracior, which | did but

they never did anything, as we were foo late in the process.

As you can ses, our dealings with the City have not always gone well. However, we have had some

gowxi dealings with staff on other issues,

Gur Associstion feels that ihe city has responsibility in this curbstop issue and would ask that you help

us financially.

Sincerely,

o nn /M

Jim VanHoudt

President, Twin Town Homes of Eagie Pass

Ralph Karlinski

Property Manager (Resident) Twin Town Homes of Eagle Pass

CC: . Larson, City Administrator
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§51.09 RULES AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO WATER SERVICE.

(A) Deficiency of water and shutting off water. The city is not liable for any
deficiency or failure in the supply of water to customers whether occasioned by shutting
the water off for the purpose of making repairs or connections or by any other cause
whatever, In case of fire, or alarm of fire, water may be shut off to insure a supply for
firefighting. In making repairs or construction of new works, water may be shut off at
any time and kept off so long as may be necessary.

(B) Repair of leaks. 1t is the Tes onsﬁnlzty Of the consumer or
service pipe from and [nelud
case of failure upon the part of any consumer or owner to repair any leak occurring in hIS
or her service pipe within 24 hours after oral or written notice has been given the owner
or occupant of the premises, the water may be shut off and will not be turned on until a
reconnection charge has been paid and the water service has been repaired. When the
waste of water is great or when damage is likely to result from the leak, the water will be
turned off if the repair is not proceeded with immediately.

i ‘tam the

(C) Abandoned services penalties. All service installations connected to the water
system that have been abandoned or, for any reason, have become useless for further
service shall be disconnected at the main. The owner of the premises, served by this
service, shall pay the cost of the excavation. The city shall perform the actual
disconnection and all pipe and appurtenances removed from the street right-of-way shall
become the property of the city. When new buildings are erected on the site of old ones,
and it is desired to increase the old water service, a new permit shall be taken out and the
regular tapping charge shall be made as if this were a new service. It is unlawful for any
person to cause or allow any service pipe to be hammered or squeezed together at the
ends to stop the flow of water, or to save expense in improperly removing the pipe from
the main. Also, the improper disposition thereof shall be corrected by the city and the
cost incurred shall be borne by the person causing or allowing the work to be performed.

(D} Service pipes. Every service pipe must be laid a minimum of seven feet deep
and in such manner as to prevent rupture by settlement. The service pipe shall be placed
below the surface and in all cases so arranged as to prevent rupture and stoppage by
freezing.  Frozen service pipes between the main and the building shall be the
responsibility of the owner. Service pipes must extend from the curb stops to the inside
of the building; or if not taken into a building then to the hydrant or other fixtures which
they are intended to supply. A valve, the same size as the service pipe, shall be placed
close to the inside wall of the building, ahead of the meter and well protected from
freezing. Joints on copper tubing shall be flared and kept to a minimum. Not more than
one joint shall be used for a service up to 70 feet in length. All joints shall be left
uncovered until inspected. Minimum size connection with the water mains shall be one
inch in diameter. Service line installations shall conform to the Minnesota Plumbing
Code.
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fiinriesota Lawful Gambling

LG216 Lease for Lawful @ammmg Activity

Check applicable iem:

}_2_1. Kew spplication. Submit lease with new premises permit application.

2. Hew owner. Effective dale Submit new lease within 10 days afier new lessor assumes ownarship,
3. New lezse, {Do not submif existing lsase with amended changes).

Date that changes wilf be effective. Subrit changes at lsast 10 days before the effective dale of the change.

12110

Fage 1ol 2

i i3
name /U AT addrese

) A

Organization

c vl

> fj? Covle Sy M 5

Deytime phons

£12-259-\985%

License number,

50)Y 3757

Name of leased pre fses Slreet address (Qz] State | Zip Daylime phone
uts Aorner (1099 Centeredle Rl Gontervd le | 155038 | 651453141 3

Qame of }@)gai owher of premises Business/street address State Zips Daytime phone

5hs ik (oo 1148 Contera e Rall el |11n |90 | S

 Name of lessor (if same as Eega! Business/streef address State | Zip Daylime phone

awpier, write in “SAME

\/ [) ﬁf\'}t/w

’ mn‘w& ;«t

ﬁleui -tabs [JPul

Buoth operation - sales of gambling equipment by an employes
{or volunteer) of & licensed organization within & separate endosure
that i distinct from areas where food and beverages sre sold,

If you answeredyes to the question above, rent limits are
based on the following combinations of operation:

= Booth opergtion

. Bogoth operation and pull-tab dispensing device

. Booth operaticn and bar operation

- Booth operation, bar operation, and pull-tab dispensing device

The maximum rent allowed may not exceed $1,750 in total
par month for all organizations at this premises.

COMPLETE ONE OPTIGHK:
Opton A: { to 10% of the gross profits per month, Percentage

to be paid %

Uption B: When gross profits are $4,000 or less per month, $0
to $400 per month may be paid, Amourt to be pald §

Gption Cr $0 to $400 per month on the first $4,600 of gross
profit, Amount to be paid §

Plus, 0% to 10% of the gross profits may be paid per month on
gross profits over $4,000. Percentage to be paid

%

Bar operstion - sales cf gambhng equnpment within & leased
premises by an employee of the lessor from 2 common area where
food end beverages are also sold,

If you answered (¥ to the question ebove, rent fimits are
based on the following combinations of operabion:

- Bar operation

- Bar operation with pull-tab dispensing device

- Puli-tah dispensing device only

COMPLETE ORE OPTION:
Option A { to 20% of the gross profits per
month. Percentage to be paid ' Yo

Option B: When gross profits are $1,000 or Jess per month, $0
to $200 per month may be paid. Amount to be paid § .

Option C: $0 to $200 per manth on the first $1,000 of gross
profits, Amounttobepaid§__ .

Plus, 0% to 20% of the gross profits may be paid per month on
gross profits over $1,000, Percentage to be paid %

Cption D! 0 to 10% of the gross profits per month from all
lawful gambling activities held during bingo cecasions, exduding

bar bingo. Percentage to be paid %

Opton E: A rate based on a cost per square foot, not to exceed
110% of a comparable cost per square Tool for leased space, as

be pald for bar bingo. Rate to be paid §

the proanization to the lessor,

approved by the director of the Gambling Centrol Board. No rent may
per square foot,

"The jessor must attached documentation, verified by the organization,
to confirm the comparable rate and alf applicable costs to be paid by

){ Opbion F: No rent may be pald for bingo
conducted In & bar.

For any new hingo activity not previcusly
included in a Premises Permit Application, attach
& separateishest of paper fisting the days and
hours that bingo will be conducted.
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Leese Vel

Tre {erm of this leese agresment will be conturrent with the
premises permit issued by the Gambling Control Board
{Boarg).

Manspement of fambling Frohlbited
The owner of the premises or the lessor will not menage the
conduct of gambling &t the premises.

Perifcipation as Players Prokhibited

‘The lessor will not perticipste directly or indirectly as & playver
i any lawful gambling conducted on the premises. The
lessor's immediste family will not participste directly or
ndirectly as & plaver in @ pull-tab, ipboard, or paddlewhee
game conducted on the premises,

illege! Gembling

The lessor Is eware of the prohibition sgains? ilegsl gambling
in Minnesota Statutes 609,75, and the penelifes for llegsl
gambling violations in Minnesotz Rutes 7865.0220, Subpart 5.
Irs addition, the Board may authorize the organizalion to
withhald rent for & perdod of up to 20 days If the Board
deterines that llegs! gambling cocourred on the premises or
that the lessor or e employees partidpated in the iegat
gambling or knew of the gambling end did not take prompt
aciion to stop the gambling. Continued tenancy of the
organization ks authorized without payment of rent during the
time period determined by the Board for violations of this
provision, as authorzed by Minnesota Statutes 345,18,
Subdivision 1(a).

To the best of the lessor’s knowiedge, the lessor affirms that
any and all games or devices located on the premises are not
being used, and are not capable of belng used, in & manner
that violates the prohibltions against iflegal gambling in
Minnesota Statutes 609.75. Notwithstending Minnesota Rules
78650220, Subpart 3, an organization must continus making
rent payments under the terms of this lease, If the
organization or its agents gre found to be solely responsible
for any ilegal gambling, conducted at this slte, that is
prohiblted by Minnesots Rules 7861.0260, Subpart 1, item H
or Minressta Stetutes 605,75, unless the organization's
agents responsible for the llegal gambling activity ere also
agents or employees of the lessor,

The lessor must not modify or terminate the lease in whole or
in part because the organization reported, to & state or local
Iaw enforcement authorty or the Board, the conduct of iegal
gambling sctivity at this site in which the srganizetion did not
participate.

e

Cther Frohibitions

The fessor will not Impose restrickions on the orgenizetion with respec
to providers {distributors) of gembling-related equipment and services
or In the use of net profits for lewful purposes, The [essor, eny parson
regiging in the seme household a8 the lessor, the lessor's rmmediate
family, and eny agents or employvees of the lessor will not reguire the
orparizetion to perform Bny action that would viclste staliste or rule.
The lessor must not modify of terminste this lease In whole or in pert
due to the lessor's violation of this provision. If there i & dispute g to
whether & vidlstion noourred, the Jease will remsin in effect pending 2
finel determination by the Compliance Review Group (CRG) of the
Gambling Control Board, The lessor sgrees to erbitration when
viclation of this provision (s alleged. The srbitretor shell be the CRG.

Eccess to permitted premises

The Board and lts agents, the commissioners of revenue and public
cafety and thelr agents, and law enforcement personne! have access {o
the permitied premises st any reasonsble time during the business
haure of the lessor, The organization has access t the permitted
premises during any ime reasonable and when necessery for the
conduet of fawful gambling on the premises.

Lessor records

The lessor must maintain & record of all money received from the
organization, snd make the record avallable to the Board and ite
anents, and the commissioners of revenue ahd public safety and thelr
agents upon demand. The record must be maintalned for 3-1/2 years,

Rent eli-inclusive

Araounts paid as rent by the organization to the lessor are all-inclusive
Ne other services or expenses provided or contracted by the lesser
may be paid by the organization, including but not limited to:

- trash removal - janitorisl and deaning services
~ electriclty, heat - pther utiides or services
- storage « gaeurity, security monitoring

- snow removel - lawr servicas

- int the case of bar cperations, cash shorisges
Any cther expenditures made by an organization that is related fo &
ieased premises must be approved by the director of the Gambling
Control Board, Rent payments may not be made to an individual,

Changee in lease

If & change in ownership cocurs, the organization will submit an
amended lease to the Board within 10 days sfter the new lessor has
assumed ownarship. IF the lease is smended with ro change In
ownership, the organization will submit the amended lease to the
Board at least 10 davs before the effective date of the change.

-
“

le

Acknowiedgment of Lease Terms Iaffim that this
iy

organization, and that ali obligations and ggreements are conta

director of the Gambling Control Board, The lease mey be terminsted by e

written notice.

age is the total and only agreement between the lessor and the
ed in or stiached to this lease and are subject to the approval of the
lther party without cause with & 30-day

grrher terms:

Signafure of lessor Dale

7/

Dale

25y

ratore /of crgghization /r.;ﬁ?gza& (lessea)

L L Gk

Print name and tite of lessor

55"%@ 4/5/;# 4
(/ 4

Prnt name and titie of [2ssee

. —7
\ictvrie L 5%’{@{2

Tehn (5. O %f‘ﬁ(/gw

fuestions? Contact the Ucensing Séct%art, Gambling Controf Bo
Thie publicstion will be mads available in altemative format {le}
Dets privacy netice:
information when received by the Board, and will be used to determ)
and rules governing lewful gambling activities.

The information requested on this form and any attachments will become pubtic

ard, at 651-635-4000.
arge prnt, Brailfe) upon request.

ine your compliance with Minnesota stetutes
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Bradley #
Guzzetta, LLC

1976 Wooddale Drive
Suite 3A
Woodbury, MN 55125
P/ {651} 379-0560
F/{(651)379-0999

Aftorpeys at Law
Michael R. Bradley{®
Stephen 1. Guzzetta®

Telecommunications
Consuliant
Laura E. Bergus

www.bradleyguzzetlta.com

Tadsa adwmitted i Wiscorsin
*Also admitted in Massachasens
and the District of Columbia
sk Ged Neviral under Rale 114 of the
Minnesola General Rules of Praciice

April 6, 2011

TO: North Metro Telecommunications Commission Member Cities

FROM: Stephen J. Guzzetta
Counsel to the North Metro Telecommunications Commission

SUBJECT:  Final Connectivity Service Agreement from Anoka County

On Friday, April 1, 2011, Kurt Glaser, City Attorney for Lexington and
Centerville, Scott Baumgartner, City Attorney for Anoka and Andover, and I, on
behalf of the North Metro Telecommunications Commission (“NMTC”), were
able to meet with various Anoka County (“County”) officials, including County
Attorney Thomas Palumbo, Assistant County Attorney Kathryn Timm, County
Commissioners Rhonda Sivarajah and Robyn West, and County Project
Manager David Minkie, to talk about the implementation of the Connect Anoka
County project, the connectivity service agreement template prepared by the
NMTC and the County’s relationship with municipalities going forward. After
discussing our concerns about the County’s March 28, 2011, version of the
connectivity service agreement with the County representatives, they agreed that
negotiations were not closed (as had been previously stated by County
Commissioner Kordiak), at least with respect to matters not exclusively
governed by the August 17, 2010, Wholesale Master Service Agreement
(“MSA”) executed by the County and Zayo Bandwidth, LLC (“Zayo”). At the
conclusion of our April 1 meeting, it was agreed that the County and municipal
representatives would meet again on April 4, 2011, to see if a consensus could
be reached on certain issues outside the scope of the MSA. On April 4, 2011,
this group assembled again, and now included Tom Sweeney, City Attorney for
Blaine, and the County’s information technology consultant.

Because most of the important issues are locked into and dictated by the MSA
(e.g., service speeds, network reliability, network design, co-location site
specifications, limitations on liability, billing, etc.) and due to the time
restrictions imposed by the County, there were very narrow parameters for
discussions on April 4, particularly since the County remains unwilling to re-
open the MSA 1o rectify problems that it acknowledges exist. Moreover, the
County was unwilling to discuss certain matters regardless of whether they were
controlled by the MSA, such as warranties, reimbursement of costs that may be
incurred by municipalities as a result of providing access to co-location sites,
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damage to third party equipment at co-location sites caused by Zayo, and improved definitions of
important contract terms. With the foregoing caveats and limitations in mind, the parties were
able to reach agreement on certain identified areas of concern, as reflected in the April 4, 2011,
“final” connectivity service agreement prepared by the County (the “Final Agreement”} and as
summarized below:

¢ The reference to “rights-of-way agreements” in the definition of “underlying rights” was
eliminated, which helps clarify that the connectivity service agreement in and of itself is
not intended to grant Anoka County or Zayo access to public rights-of-way (i.e., local
permitting requirements and right-of-way management ordinances must be followed).
The definition of underlying rights was also modified to reflect that only the right to
access co-location sites is being conferred and that the specific nature of that right
(including any applicable limits and conditions) will be described in a new Attachment I
to the connectivity service agreement. These changes narrow the scope of the
connectivity service agreement and, in conjunction with other provisions, significantly
mitigate the risk that the agreement could be construed to authorize Zayo to operate a
cable system and provide cable service without a franchise.

¢ The definition of “permitted use” was amended to make clear that municipalities can use
the Zayo system for any quasi-governmental, governmental, educational or public safety
purpose, as long a specific use does not compete with Zayo in commercial markets. This
particular change is important because it clarifies that local governments can provide
services to themselves over the Zayo network for permitted purposes, even if Zayo also
offers those same services (e.g., VoIP telephony). As currently written, the concept of
permitted uses only proscribes municipalities from using connectivity services on the
Zayo system to offer video, voice or data services to the commercial marketplace in
competition with Zayo.

¢ Section IL.B connectivity service agreement now specifies that “underlying rights” are
only being granted for the provision of telecommunications services under Chapter 237
of Minnesota Statutes (as opposed to cable service under Chapter 238 of Minnesota
Statutes) and that Zayo must follow local ordinances in exercising the “underlying rights”
(e.g., by obtaining necessary easements, permits, etc.). This revised language, in
conjunction with other language in the Final Agreement, affirms, preserves and protects
local governments’ right-of-way management and cable television franchising authority.

e Language was added to Section VI of the connectivity service agreement which states
that Zayo must remove its equipment from co-location sites at a municipality’s request
upon termination or expiration of the agreement within a mutually agreed upon
timeframe not to exceed 180 days. Previously, Section VI was drafted in such a way that
Zayo could decide to leave its equipment in co-location sites after the connectivity
service agreement is terminated or expires, which would arguably obligate a municipality
to continue providing access and security (and possibly expose the municipality to
ongoing costs and potential liability for damage to equipment, service outages, etc.).
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Section VI, as revised, also empowers a municipality to require Zayo to remove ite
equipment from a co-location site, upon request, if the municipality cancels conmectivity
service at that site, within an agreed upon timeframe not to exceed 180 days. The
underlying right to use a co-location site would terminate with the removal of Zayo’s
equipment.

The County revised the insurance language in the connectivity service agreement to
comport with recommendations made by the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust.

Section XIV of the connectivity service agreement was revised to enable municipalities
to terminate connectivity service at a particular co-location site (and cease payment of
associated fees) without terminating the entire agreement, after providing 60 days’
written notice o the County and Zayo.

Notwithstanding the foregoing changes and improvements, the Final Agreement still contains
some major deficiencies, as a result of the County’s unwillingness to address fundamental
preblems in the MSA and other issues that apparently were not contemplated at the time the
Connect Ancka County project was initiated. For example:

e

Zayo still is not a party to the Final Agreement, even though it remains responsible for
almost all performance under the Final Agreement (e.g., provision of service, repair and
maintenance of the network, responding to service problems, etc.). Because Zayo is not a
party to the Final Agreement, it is likely that enforcement issues will arise over time
because the municipalities will likely only have legal recourse against the County, which
may be ineffective in many cases (e.g., if there is a service deficiency, the County cannot
directly rectify it, because the County is not providing the connectivity service).
Moreover, the County’s ability to require Zayo to perform is circumscribed by its flawed
MSA with Zayo, which further compounds potential enforcement problems and delays.

The concept of “connectivity services” is still not well defined in the Final Agreement.
Accordingly, it is not clear precisely what services municipealities would be buying and
receiving, and what expectations they could have concerning connectivity services.

Zayo and Anoka County are not guaranteeing service speeds or quality of service in the
Final Agreement. Consequently, municipalities could be paying for services they are not
actually getting, or receiving services that do not consistently meet their needs,
particularly for mission critical applications. That said, the Final Agreement now
contains language that permits a municipality to terminate service at a particular site after
providing 60 days’ written notice to the County and Zayo. However, this early
termination option may not be helpful if & municipality has come to rely on the Zayo
system or if alternative services are 100 expensive.

Anoka County’s and Zayo’s proposed service level standards would allow portions of the

Zayo system and certain connectivity services to be down for approximately 500 minutes
a year, which could lead to serious problems for mission critical applications and

144



There are no esteblished standards, policies or mechanisms for resolving network
congestion problems that will ultimately arise.

The Final Agreement Iikely contains hidden costs associated with meeting the security,
environmental and technical requirements for co-location sites (e.g., for possibly re-
wiring co-location sites, adding necessary outlets, providing back-up power, improving
heating and air conditioning systems, and re-configuring space to accommodate
equipment).

The Final Agreement may also pose logistical, financial and legal issues for
municipalities. For example, if the Zayo system is unavailable in a city hall at 3 am. ona
Saturday morning, who is going provide Zayo with access and who is going to pay for
any costs associated with such access? If the equipment in City Hall is used to serve
commercial customers, will a municipality be liable to Zayo or the customers for
damages, costs, etc. associated with any delay in providing access?

The “act of God” language in Section X the Final Agreement is extremely broad, and can
be used to excuse most non-performance,

The limitations on liability enjoyed by Anoka County and Zayo under Section IX of the
Final Agreement leave little recourse for municipalities to recover damages they may
incur as a result of the County’s and Zayo's acts and omissions.

Many important terms and concepts are not defined in the Final Agreement (e.g.,
demarcation point, excused outage, network availability, fiber optic network, etc.). This
will inevitably lead to contract interpretation and enforcement issues down the road. The
County has consistently suggested that terms in the connectivity service agreement
should have their common technical meaning or the meaning ascribed to them in other
agreements. However, those definitions and contracts are not incorporated into the Final
Agreement, and would therefore have little or no force or utility in a dispute.

Thus, despite our repeated attempts to educate and work with the County to improve the
connectivity service agreement, the Final Agreement remains seriously flawed and poses a
variety of risks to municipalities, as outlined above. These risks and flaws must be weighed
against the potential benefits of entering into the Final Agreement. Such benefits may include:

Below-market rates for the services proposed (bearing in mind transmission speeds and
quality of service are not guaranteed).

Transmission speeds that are significantly faster than those currently available and/or
enjoyed (bearing in mind transmission speeds and quality of service are not guaranteed).
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¢ No direct network construction or equipment costs for stated capabilities other than any
costs associated with preparing co-location sites to meet stated specifications (at least for
the first seven years or unless network upgrades are necessary).

¢ The ability to communicate with other entities on the Zayo system.

¢ Potential economic development benefits of having high-speed data transmission
facilities and services available to businesses.

¢ Narrowing the gap between information “haves” and “have-nots” in Anoka County.

In the end, each municipality must independently gauge its own tolerance for risk against the
actual or perceived benefits of executing the Final Agreement. This calculus may vary from city
to city. However, any municipality that does decide to enter into the Final Agreement should, at
a minimum:

¢ Participate in any network governance or policy group that is established to manage the
ZLayo system;

¢ Carefully monitor network traffic and congestion, and document network unavailability
and service deficiencies;

¢ Maintain adequate insurance and liability limits to protect against costs and damages that
may arise out of the Final Agreement;

¢ Regularly evaluate what alternative services are available and at what cost (particularly in
the event a municipality needs to terminate service at a co-location site using the 60-day
termination provision and to quickly find a new service provider);

¢ Carefully consider and plan for current and future bandwidth needs, and assess whether
those needs can be met or are best met by the Zayo system, considering its capabilities
and limitations;

s Precisely and comprehensively define the underlying rights being granted to the County
and Zayo for co-location sites in an agreement or other legal instrument (which would be
included in Attachment I to the Final Agreement); and

e Ensure that permits and easements granted to Zayo contain adequate protective language
or conditions, and do not authorize the construction or operation of a cable system or the
provision of cable service without obtaining a franchise, to the extent required by
applicable law. We would recommend that all municipalities in the County utilize the
same language and conditions, to the extent possible.

L

As always, please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns you may have.
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Conneclivity Services Agreement
With Community Anchor Instifution{s)
For Broadhand Services
At Co-locetion Service SHels)
This Agreement, entered into by and between:
1. COUNRTY of Anoka (Ancka Counly), 2100 Third Avenue Norih,
Ancka, Minnesota 55303, anc
2. . {Entity), : , Minnesota, 55 )
WHEREAS, ZAYO Bandwidih LLC (ZAYQC) was recently awarded a grant

from the National Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA)

which is to be combined with matching funds from ZAYO and Anoka County o
build & fiber oplic network in Anoke County to provide high-speed brozdband
services to Community Anchor Institutions; and

WHEREAS, Ancka County has recenily entered intoc a Master Fiber
Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) Agreement and a Wholesale Master Service
Agreement with ZAYO in order to facilitate the purposes of the grant obtained by
ZAYO; and

WHEREAS, Anoka County and ZAYO have identified multiple Community
Anchor Institutions to be connected by the Core Backbone and Distribution
Network which will comprise the fiber optic network; and

WHEREAS, Ancka County desires to arrange for co-location service sites
at various Community Anchor Institutions which have been identified for the
purposes of building the fiber-optic network; and

WHEREAS, Connectlivity Services will become available to each of the
Community Anchor Institutions at the co-location service sites as a result of the
fiber-optic network built by Anoka County and ZAY(Q,; and

WHEREAS, the Community Anchor institutions will have the option of
accepting Connectivity Services initially, or aliowing the eguipment to be installed
and reserving the acceptance of Connectivity Services until a later time; and

WHEREAS, Entity is a2 community anchoer institulion which owns, leases,

controls, renis or administers a designated co-location service site; and _,( Deleted: §
Deteted: March 28
/7 [peteted: Final
R
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WHEREAS, it is in the interest of Enfity fo work together with Ancka

County io fadilitate the construcion of the ZAYQ Svstem In order 1o encoursge -

ihe  oontnved  deploviment  and  aveilebiitv of sdvenced and  relizble

telecommiynications cepghiliies in Ancka County end snd scoess o such

cepabiliies af affordable raies,
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereio agree as follows:

L DEFINITIONS

JAhe parties agree lo the following definitions for terms used in this -

Agreement:

a) Community  Anchor institutions: quasi-government,
government, educational and pubtic safety institutions.

by Co-locstion service siies: designated physical sites iccated
in various Community Anchor institutions located in and around Anoka County.
{See Attachment A)

c} ZAYO System: an integrated multi-cable, multi-ring fiber
optic communication system comprised of cables and ducts, lateral connections,
and the manholes and handholds locates therein, and related equipment
required to provide Connectivity Services as provided through the NTIA grant.

d} Conneclivity Services: As described in Article V.

e) Underlying Rights: all deeds, IRUs, {exclusive or non-

interests o use real properly of any third person, which are reasonably
necessary for the construction, placement, location, installation, operation, use,
IRU, rental, maintenance, repair or replacement by ZAYO or Anoka County, as
the case may be, of the ZAYO System, Ducts, County Equipment, Cable or

County Dark Fibers to the co-location sites. (See specific identified rights for this

Community Anchor institullon In atfschment D).
£ IRU: Indefeasible Right of Use.

l Final Areement ss Aprl &, 2011, ________ e
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gl Eqguipment:  electronics, oplronics, and cther devices as
necessary (o deliver the Connectivity Services,

) Permitted use: Connectivity services shall only be used by
Community  Anchor Institulions  for  quasi-governmental, governmental,
educational or public safety purposes and shall not be used to directly or

indirectly compete with ZAYG [n the commercial markets.

i ZAYC Stefi:  Emplovees, consultants, and other sub-
contractors working under the direction of ZAYO to install and support the ZAYO
System.

i SCOPE OF SERVICES

A, Anoka County will provide, through its contract with ZAYQ,
Connectivity Services to Entity through the fiber aptic network built by ZAYO.
Once the fiber optic network is built and the system is instalied in the various co-
focation service sites, Anoka County, through its agreemeni with ZAYO, its
successors and/or assigns, will provide ongoing suppert for the provision of
Connectivity Services fo Entity. Only site locations identified with fee amounts on
Attachment A will receive Conneclivity Services. Any mulually agreed changes
te Connectivity Services will require a modification to Attachment A pursuant to

section XH.

B. Entity shall provide space for a co-location service site where
ZAYO, on behalf of Ancka County, can install equipment fo be connected to the
ZAYD system in order to build the Fiber Optic network., Entity shall provide

Underlying Rights to the co-location site to ZAYO _only pursuant to Minnesote

Statutes Chapler 237 and local ordinances for the purpose of building the Fiber

Optic network to the point of demarcation.

Final Agreement as April 4, 2011,

149

{ Deleted: Ancka County

[ Deleted: ¢

/ { Deteted: March 28

7/ { peleted: Final




C. Nothing in this agreement affects or limits Entity's cable franchising
authority or other authority fo manage and regulate ZAYQ's use of public rights of

Way.

[t COETE AND COMPENSATION

will pay Ancka County & monthly fee as detailed in Atiachment A. Fees reflect
the actual costs to provide the Conneclivity Services. For entities receiving
connectivity services, the initial fee is established at $75.00 per month per site for
100 mbps and $400.00 per month per site for 1 gbps. Fees will be periodically
reviewed 1o reflect current costs, but will not be modified without the agreement
of both parties. Initially the fees will primarily be used to pay the proportionate
share of the county's maich fo the project. Once the proporiionate share of this
match is recovered, it is expected the fee amount will decrease if other factors
remain constant. Fees will be invoiced starting the month following when
Connectivity Services begin. Entity will provide payment within 30 days of receipt

of an invoice. Nonpayment shall be grounds for default.

B. Entity shall not charge Anoke County, or ZAYO through Anoka
County, for the Underlying Rights in the co-location site used by Anoka County
and ZAYC to build the Fiber Optic Network. Additionally, Entity shall not charge
rent, access fees, lease payments, or any other fee to Anoka County or ZAYO for
the co-location space provided for the instaliation and housing of Egquipment

proviged for connectivity service for Entity.
V. PHYSICAL ACCESS TO CO-L.OCATION SITE
A, Entity shall provide co-location space at co-location service sites

indicated on Attachment A where ZAYO, on behalf of Ancka County, can install
EBquipment to provide services. Security shall be maintained at the site as
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indicated in Atachment B. | Entity shall provide adequate power and temperature
control ag may be further detailed on the service order Aftechment B. Entity shall
provide &ll Underlying Rights and rights of access necessary for ZAYO to enter
the premises and fo construct and maintein fiber connections across the co-
location service site whether the site is owned, leased, rented or administered by
Entity.

B. ZAYQ, on behalf of Ancka County, shall provide, install, maintain,
repair, operate and control its Equipment, as necessary. Unless specifically
provided in Attachment A, there shall be no cost to Entity for the purchase and/
or instaflation of the ZAYC Equipment. Any ZAYQO Equipment shall be
rmaintained and replaced at no expense to Entity until the eariier of August 17,
2017, or this confract is otherwise terminated. Thereafier, if the ZAYOD
Equipment deteriorates, or no longer supports the provisioning of services, Enity
agrees that i shall pay the prorata costs incurred in the replacement of such
ZAY O Ecuipment.

C. ZAYO, through Ancka County, may request permission to place
additional ZAYO Eguipment at the co-location service site indentified in
Attachment A to solely service commercial customers. If Entity elects to allow
such instailation for commercial service at the co-location service site, ZAYO
shall pay to Entity $250 per month for the first device, and $100 per month for
each additional device. No co-ocation fees will apply if ZAYO Equipment used
o provide services to Entity and to Anoka Counly if such ZAYO Eguipment is

also used to serve a commercial cusiomer.

D. The ZAYO Equipment shali remain the sole and exclusive property
of ZAYO, and nothing contained herein shall give or convey to Entity any right,
title or interest whatsoever in the ZAYO Equipment. The ZAYO Equipment shall
remain persenal property, notwithstanding that it may be or become atiached to,
or embedded in, realty. The ZAYO Equipment shall not be considered a fixture
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of that real property. Neither Ancka County nor Entity shall tamper with, remove
or conceal any identifying plates, tags, or labels identifying ZAYO's ownership
interest in the ZAYO Equipment.

E. Equipment end service beyond the point of demarcation and/or
interconnection between ZAYCO's facilities and Entity terminal Equipment and the

wiring at the point of demarcation shall be the responsibility of the Entity.

F. Entity shall provide access to ZAYO on behalf of Anoka County to
provide services for purposes of installation, maintenance and repair of ZAYO
Equipment. ZAYQ, on behalf of Ancka County, shall resirict access to the co-
location site space to authorized ZAYO staff. ZAYO staff shall abide by any
physical security requirements provided to ZAYO in writing. ZAYO shall make
reasonable attempts {o provide at least two days notice prior to entering the co-
location site to install, maintain, or repair any of the ZAYO Equipment. If it is not
reasonably possible to provide such notice, or in an emergency, ZAYC shall
provide notice ag soon as practicable, but in all events prior to entering the co-

location site. See Aftachments B and D.

G. i Entity provides its own Equipment, Anoka County, or ZAYO on
Anoka County’'s behalf, shall have no abligation fo install maintain or repair the
Equipment. If, on responding to an Entity inifiated service call, Anoka County,
ZAYQ and Entity jointly determine that the cause of the service delinquency was
a failure, malfunction or the inadequacy of Entity's Equipment, Entity shall
compensate Ancka County/ZAYO for ZAYO's actual iime and materials

expended during the service call.

H. Neither party shall adjust, align, attempt fo repair, relocate or
remove the other party's Equipment, or ZAYO's Equipment, except as expressly
authorized in writing by the other party or ZAYO.

Final Aureement as Aorf 4 2044
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|

i Prior to any installation of the ZAYOD ¢

Entity enfrance and construction pians specifying the location, construction and
method of installation related to the System.  Entity shall respond to the plans
with any objections as soon as reascnably possible, but in any event no Ilater
than 60 days. Entity shall immediately provide notice to ZAYO of known
asbestos or other hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants as defined
by the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act
(CERCLA), Title 42, U.S. Code, or similar siate or federal law.

J. Entity shall provide to Anoka County 24-hour contact information for
the purpose of gaining co-location service site aceess. This information shall be
used for both business hour and non-business hour services access. Entity will
review and update the information provided as needed, but at least on an annual

basis. See Aftachment D.

K. Entity shall not arbitrarily or capriciously require ZAYO to relocate
ZAY(Q Equipment. However, upon ninety (90) days written notice, or, in the event
of any emergency, Entity may reguire ZAYO fo relocate co-located ZAYO
Equipment; provided, however, the site of relocations shall afford comparable
environmental conditions for the ZAYO Eguipment and a comparable
accessibiiity to the ZAYO Equipment,

Y. CONNECTIVITY SERVICE LEVEL REQUIREMENTS

A Ancka County, through its agreement with ZAYQO, shall provide
Conneclivity Services to Entity at the capacity level indicated in Attachment A.
Any upgrades o service will be dependent on costs of Equipment, fees to ZAYQ,
capacity limitations of the network, and other relevant factors. Entity recognizes

that the network has a total bandwidth of 10gbps on the core ring and Jgbpson

distribution rings and distribution laterals. This total capacity is shared among

other Community Anchor Institutions which are part of this project. Entity agrees

Final Agreementas Apdl 4. 2014 T T,
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to work with Anoka County to manage bandwidth and eguitably resclve capacity

issues on the network,

8. Dark fibers will be instalied &t each co-location service site as
indicated in Attachment A. These dark fibers will be terminated at the site and
are reserved for future use. This agreement neither contemplates nor conveys to
Entity present or future rights to the use of the dark fiber. Any future use will be

by & separate agreement and af an additional cost.

. Entity may use the network only o provide service to itself, and
agencies and depariments of the Entity in keeping with the Permitted Uses of this

Agreement,

o Transport Availability: The transport services being provided will
meet or exceed 99.098% network availability for protected optical service,
99.98% for protected TDM based services such as DS3s and DS1s and 99.0%
for unprotected services as measured on a monthly basis, If Network Avaiiability
is below the percentage above in two out of the three preceding calendar months
not due to an Excused Outage, the same shall constitute an event of default

hereunder.

E. Ethernet Availability: The Ethernet Services being provided will
meet or exceed 98.9% network availability for unprotected service and 99.95%
for protected service as measured on a monthly basis. If Network Availability is
below 89.8% for unprotected circuits and 99.95% for protected circuits in two out
of the three preceding calendar months not due to an Excused Outage, the same

shall constitute an event of default hereunder.

F. Mean Time To Repair (MTTR): ZAYO's MTTR will be four hours
for protected services and eight hours for unprotected services as measured on a

monthly basis for outages of the services provided or any part of the services
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provided; for example an individual D83 or group of DS83s. If ZAYO's MTTR for
all protected services is greaier than four hours in two out of the three preceding
months not dues fo & Force Majeure Event such ocourrence shall constitute an
Event of Defauit on the part of ZAYO, on behalf of Ancka County, for the affected

circuit.

¥i. TERHK

This Agreement will be for a period commencing on the date of signing by
both parties, and continuing until August 16, 2018 (initial Term), with up fo 2 fotal
of three (3) renewal periods of additional five (5) years terms (Renewal Terms)
upan written amendment. Both parties shall provide written notice of intent to
renew this agreement not less than one hundred eighty days (180} before the
end of the Initial Term or Renewal Term. For purposes of this agreement, written
notices shall be sent to the addresses of each of the Parties as indicated above.
Upon the termination or expiraticn of this Agreement, Anoka County shall have
no further obligation to provide Services and no further liability to Entity. Upon
termination or expiration of this agreement, ZAYO shall be provided a reasonable
opportunity o retrieve its eguipment from the co-location service site(s). At the

request of the entity, ZAYC will remove equipment from Individug! terminated co-

location siles within & mutually sgreed time not io exceed 180 dave. Upon

termination of Entitv's connectivity service from_a co-location_site, without

ferminaling this entire agresment, ZAYD, at the recuest of the entily. shall

remove ifs equipment from said co-location siie within & mulually agreed time not

io exceed 180 davs and anv underiving righis for that co-locstion site shall

terminate with the removal without further action or notice by anv party.  Any

underlying rights granted by the Entity under this Agreement shall terminate or
expire with the Agreement without need for further action or notice by any party,

Vil. INDEMNIFICATION

FinalAgreement as Aprit 4, 201
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To the extent permitied by law, each parly shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless the other perly, it's commissioners, council members, school
board members, superintendents, directors, officers, employees and agents,
successors and assigns, from &l damages, costs, expenses and liabilities,
including reasonable attorney’s fees and disbursements, sustained in any action
commenced by any third party in connection with the indemnifying party's
perfermance of its obligations and duties under this Agreement except those
damages, costs, expenses, and liabilities arising from the negligence or willful
misconduct of the other party. The indemnified party shall promptly noiify the

other party in writing of any such law suit or claim,

Under no circumstances shall a party be required to pay on behalf of itself
and other parties, any amounts in excess of the limits on liability established in

Minnesota Statutes, Chapler 466, or any similar statutory limits on tort liability.

Vill. INSURANCE

During the Initial Term, and during each renewal term, each party shall

obtain and maintain not less than the insurance set forth in Attachment C.

X, LIABILITY AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

A Entity shall be liable for any loss of or damage to the ZAYO
Equipment at the co-location site caused by Entity's negligence, intentional acts,
willful misconduct or unauthorized maintenance subject to statutory fimits. Entity
shall reimburse Anoka County on behall of ZAYO for the reasonable cost of
repair of the ZAYO Equipment, or the replacement thereof, within thirty (30) days
after receipt by Entity of a written request for reimbursement.

B. Anoka County shall be liable for any loss of or damage to Entity’s

equipment caused by Ancka County or ZAYO's negligence, intentional act, willful

14
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migconduct or unauthorized maintenance. Anoks County shall reimburse Entity
for the reasonable cost of repair of the equipment, or the replacement thereof,
within thirty (80} days after a written reguest for reimbursement and ZAYO has
reimbursed Ancka County for the loss or damage pursuant to Ancka County's
Agreement with ZAYO.  Ancka will make reasonable effort to pursue
reimbursement on the Entity’s behalif,

C. Anoka County shall not be liable for delays in instaliation,
commencement or restoration of the service; for any temporary or permanent
cessation of service; for errors, malfunctions, delays or defects in transmission of
the service; for ioss or damage occasioned by a Force Majeure Evert. Anoks
Counly's Hability for any and all causes and claims whether based in contract,
warranty, negligence or otherwise shall in no event exceed: 1) an amount
equivalent to the proportionate charge by Ancka County to Entity for the period of
service affected, or 2} if applicable, the replacement value of any Entity
equipment which s lost or damaged as a resuit of Anoka County's gross

negligence or willful misconduct.

D. ANOKA COUNTY NEITHER ASSUMES NOR MAKES ANY
WARRANTY, EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE AS TO THE
DESCRIPTION, QUALITY, MERCHANTIBILITY, COMPLETENESS OR
FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE OF THE SERVICE,
LOCAL ACCESS OR ANY OTHER MATTER, EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS
AGREEMENT. SUCH WARRANTIES ARE HEREBY EXCLUDED AND
DISCLAIMED.

X.  FORCE MAJEURE
Neither party individually and Anoka County on behalf of ZAYO shall be

liable for any failure of performance hereunder due to causes beyond its

reasonable control including, but not limited o acts of God, fire, explosion,

1L
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vandalism, cable cut, flood, storm, or other similar catastrophe, any law, order,
regulation, direction, action or reguest of the government, or any department,
agency, commission, court, or bureau of a government, or any civit or military
authority, national emergency, insurrection, riot, war, sirike, lockout, of work
stoppage (each a "Force WMajeure event”). The parly claiming relief under this
section shail nolify the other party of the occurrence or existence of the Force
Majeure event and of the termination of such event. In the event Ancka County
through ZAYO is unable to deliver services as a result of & Force Majeure event
which precludes ZAYO from performing, the other party shall not be obligated to
pay for the services so affected for as long as ZAYO is unabie to deliver the

Services.

Al COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

In providing all services pursuant to this Agreement, the pariies shaii abide
by all statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations pertaining to or regulating the
provision of such services, including those now in effect and hereafter adopted.
Any violation of said statutes, ordinances, rules, or regulations shall constitute a
material breach of ihis Agreement and shall entitie the Parlies to terminate this

Agreement immediately upon delivery of written notice of termination.

X,  MODIFICATIONS

Any material alterations, modifications, amendments, or variations of the
terms of this Agreement shali be valid and enforceable only when they have

been reduced to writing as an amendment and signed by the parties.

X, DATAPRIVACY

A Deleted: <
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I collecting, storing, using and disseminating data on individuals in the
course of providing services hereunder, the parties agree to abide by 2!l pertinent
state and federal statutes, rules and regulations covering date privacy, including,
but not limited io, the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act and =l rules
promuigated pursuant thereto by the Commissioner of the Department of

Administretion.

All data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, or
disseminated by the parties in performing this Agreement is also subject to the
provisions of Minn. Stat. § 13 el. seq. {the Minnesola Government Daia Practices
Act) and, pursuant to that statute, the parties must comply with the requirements
of that statute. All remedies set forth in Minn. Stat. § 13.08 shall also apply to the

parties.

AV, EARLY TERWMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated n_entirety by either party at any time,
with or without cause, upon One Hundred Eighty (180) days written notice
delivered by mail or in person. If nolices are delivered by mail, they shall be
effective two days after mailing.

Termingtion of an Enfity's conpectivity service, and obligation to pay

therefore, may be {erminated on sixiv (60 davs writien notice, as orovided for in

this agreement.

w------"1 Formatted: Right
XV, DEFAULT AND REMEDY
A Default by Entity: Entity is in default of the agreement if Entity:
1} is more than 15 days past due in paying for services as

agreed in this Agreement, or any invoice pursuant to its terms, excluding those

(N L S

amounts which Entity has notified Anoka County as reasonably being in dispute; ( Detoted: 1
or /| Deleted: March 28
// { peleted: Final
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2} materiglly fefis to observe or perform any non-monetary
obligation or covenant hereunder; or

3) files or initiates proceedings or has proceedings filed or
initiated against it, seeking liguidation, reorganization or other relief(such as the
appointment of & trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or such other official)
under any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law; or

43 violates the permitied uses.

In the event of default by Entity, notification of Default shall be sent to the
address provided beiow in Section XVI. Entity shall have five days to cure &
moenetary breach, or thirty days to cure a non-monetary breach. If the Default
remains uncured, Anoka County may suspend services until Entity remedies the
Pefault, terminate or suspend services under this agreement andfor the
applicable services being provided under the service order.

If Ancka County terminates this Agreement pursuant to this article of the
Agreement, Anoka County shall have the right to seek full payment for amounts

due for services rendered pricr to the date of termination.

B Ancka County shall be in default under this Agreement if it:

1) fails to arrange for ZAYQ fo provide the services in accordance
with the Service Order (see Exhibit E) or otherwise fails to cure any breach of the
Agreement after receiving writien notice of default from Entity; or

2) defaults on ifs agreement with ZAYO and does not cure said
default within five days for a monetary breach or thirty days of a non-monetary
breach of that agreement: or

3) fails to notify Entity of default by ZAYC within five days of said
Default, or fails to nofify Entity that ZAYO has alleged that Anoka County is in
Default, within five days of receipt of notification from ZAYO.

Notification of Default by Anoka County shail be sent to the address
provided below in Section XVi. Anoka County shall have five days to cure a
monetary breach and thirty days to cure an non-monetary breach of the

agreement,

Final Aoreemenl as April 4, 201%
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If Ancka County ie caused to be in default of this agreement by the breach
of ZAYO, Anoka County shall nolify ZAYC in writing and ailow ZAYO thirty days
to cure, or such longer pericd of time as may be reasonably necessary (o0 cure as
long as the cure Is initiated and diligently pursued within such thirty days or
provice notice of & dispule about the existence such defeult. However, Entity
and Anoka County mey terminate this agreement upon written nolice if ZAYO
causes Anoka Couniy fo defaull by not meeting the terms of Article V.
CONNECTIVITY SERVICE LEVEL REQUIREMENTS as noted ahove,

XV, NOTICES
Notices shalt be sent to the parties at the following:
Anoka County:
information Technology Director
Anoka County Government Center
Information Technology Department
2100 Third Avenue North Ste. 300
Ancka, Minnesota 55303

Entity:

, Minnesotfa 55

XVIll. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

In accordance with Ancka County's Affirmative Action Policy and the
County Commissioners’ policies against discrimination, no person shall illegally
be excluded from full-time employment rights in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination in the program which is the subject of this

15
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Agreement on the basis of race, creed, color, sex, sexua! orientation, marital

status, public assistance status, age, disability, or national origin.

KVl SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.

The representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements of the
parties under this Agreement, and the remedies of either party for the breach of
such representations, warranties, covenants, and agreement by the other party

shall survive the execution and term of this Agreement.

KB, WAIVER.

The waiver of any of the rights and/or remedies arising under the terms of
the Agreement on any one occasion by any party hereto shall not constitute &
waiver of any rights or remedies in respect (o any subsequent breach or default
of the terms of the Agreement. The rights and remedies provided or referred to

under the terms of the Agreement are cumulative and not mutually exclusive.

#X.  GOVERNING LAW.

This Agreement shail be interpreted and construed according to the laws
of the State of Minnesote, excluding the State of Minnesota’s choice of law
provisions.  Jurisdiction and venue shall reside in the County of Anoka,

Minnesota.

X¥E SEVERABILITY.
The provisiens of this Agreement shall be deemed severable. If any part
of this Agreement Is rendered void, invalid, or unenforceable, such rendering

shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement,

¥XH. HORIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES.

16
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Except for specific provisions as related to ZAYO acting through the
auspices of Anoka County, nothing in this Agreement is intended to confer any

rights or remedies on other than the parties to the Agreement

WL ATTACHMENTS AND EXHIBITS.

The foliowing Exhibils are atteched to this agreement and are
incorporated inlo this agreement by reference:

Attachment A Capacily and costs for each co-location service site

Ettachement B: Co-location service site requirements

Attachment C: Insurance Reguirements

Attachment D: Building Access Contact information

Attachment E: Service Order Form

Attachment F.  Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

{ Deleted: §

Attachment l:  ldentification of Undetlying Rights.

The following Attachments are included for reference in this agreement
and are informational exhibits, but do not confer any rights onto the Entity unjess
also specifically included in this agreement:

Attachment G; Wholesale Master Service Agreement, Ancka County
Contract #2010-0238

Aftachment H: Master Fiber IRU by and between ZAYO BANDWIDTH,
LLC and Ancka County, Minnesota dated August 17, 2010 (this exhibit does not
include 20 pages of photographic exhibits which are included in the original, and

are available to Entities on request.)

XXV, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND RETENTION OF RECCORDS

Both parties agree to make availabie to duly authorized representatives of
the other and of the State of Minnesocta, for the purpose of audit examination
pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, any books, documents, papers, and records of
the party that are pertinent to the provision of services hereunder. Both parties

further agree to maintain all such required records for six (6) years after receipt of { peteted: ¢

final payment and the closing of all other related matters. /| Deleted: narch 28

{ Beleted: Final
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KRV, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

A Anckes County has enfered into a separate contract with ZAYO for
the construction of the ZAYO system/ffiber opiic network. See informational
Exhibits G and H. ZAYO remains an independent contractor, however, and
neither that agreement nor this one creates a parinership, joint venture or agency
relationship between Zayo or the Ceunty. Ancka County has no authority to bind
ZAY0 beyond the obligations and responsibilities of those contracts.

E. It is agreed by the parties that at all imes and for all purpeses hereunder,
the relationship of the County to the Entity is that of an independent contractor and nof
an employee or agent of the Entity.

C. it is agreed by the parties that at ali times and for all purposes hereunder,
the relationship of the Entity to the County is that of an independent contractor end net
an employee or agent of the County

XXVI ENTIRE AGREEMENT

It is understood and agreed by the parties that the entire agreements of
the parties is contained herein and that this Agreement supersedes all oral
agreements and negotiations between the parties relating to the subject matter
hereof as well as any previcus agreements presently in effect between the Anoka
County and Entity relating to the subject matter hereof. The parties hereto
revoke any prior oral or written agreement between themselves and hereby
agree that this Agreement is the only and complete agreement regarding the

subject hereof,

ANOKA COUNTY MINNESOTA

18
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By

Fhonda Sivargjah, Chalr
County Board of Commissioners

Dated:

ATTEST

By:

Terry L. Johnson
County Administrator

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By

Kathryn M. Timm
Assistant Counly Atiorney

Dated:

By;

Dated:

ATTESTY

By:

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:

Dated:

[Deie%ed March 28
(DeEete{i Final
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sttachments

Attachment A: Capacity and cosls for each co-location service site

Attachment B! Co-locetion service site requirements

Aftachment C: Insurance Requirements

Attachment I Building Access Contact Information

Attachment E: Service Order Form

Attachment F:  Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Attachment G Wholesale Master Service Agreement, Anocka County
Contract #2010-023¢

Attachment H: Master Fiber IRU by and between ZAYO BANDWIDTH,
LLC and Ancka County, Minnesola dated August 17, 2010 (this exhibit does not
include 20 pages of photographic exhibits which are included in the original, and

are avallable to Entities on request.)

| peteted: §

! Note Bene, the MSA has two attschments which will be amended, but have not been 8o at the time of this
writing, The list of 145 co-location sites has been altered since the MSA was signed on August 17, 2010,
Once the final sites arc approved by the NTLA, this attachment will be amended. Additionally, there is an

attachment which details minimum power requirements at the co-locations site of 48 volts DC. The County { Deleted: ©

and Zayo verbally agreed that these requirements will be changed to standerd 110 AC. This verbal

agreement has not been reduced to writing as of the date of this writing, but is expected shortly, / 4 beleted: March 28
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ATTACHMENRNT A

Capacity end Costs for Co-location Sites

1. Entily Hame: MINNESOTA

2. Entity Contact Informstion:

Principal Contact:

Name:

Position:
Office Phone:
Ceil Phone:
Home Phone:
Fager:
Emait:

pomon, b i P
v ot d e L

Secondary Contact:

Name:

Position:
Office Phone:
Cell Phone:
Home Phone:
Pager:
Emait:

P gy e, A,
W R Y

Billing Contact:

MName;

Position:
Office Phone:
Celi Phone:
Home Phone:
Pager:
Email:

T NP S
s oo S et

3. Foliowing are the site locations Included for equipment co-location:

Site # Location Address City Service Monthly oo o p

Capacity Costs

Deleted: March 28
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Stschment B

Co-Locaiion Service Sie reguirements

A Security Reguiremenis.

Entity shall provide best practices physical securily fo the co-location
service site in the form of traditional lock service, key card, numeric access code,
or electronic security system equal to that which Enfity provides for its own
assets. Keys, key cards, numeric access codes and the electronic security
systems shall be maintained according to industry standards. Entity shall take all
reasonable precautions to ensure the integrity of the security of the co-location
service site. Ancka County shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that its
employees and agents, including ZAYO, follow all written instructions at the co-
location site as provided by the Entity.

B. Temperature and Environmental Control Requirements.

Space provided to ZAYO for the housing of the ZAYO system and
equipment in the co-location service site shall meet industry standards for
temperature controls, humidity, lighting, and protection from power surges and
outages. Entity shall ensure that the co-location service site temperature
remains in & constant range between 68°F and 83°F, and humidity remains in a
constant range of 40%--60%. Entity shall use best efforts to implement a
protection plan ensuring that the ZAYC System remains functional in the event of
a power outage or similar emergengy.

C. Environmental Space Reguirements.

Entity shall provide sufficient cubic space for the installation of the ZAYO
system and equipment in & secure area. ZAYOQ shall provide the space
specifications for each co-location service site directly to Entity. Entity shall
ensure that the space provided to ZAYO for the installation of the ZAYO System
and equipment will aiso include sufficient space for ZAYO to access the
equipment for repairs, maintenance and upgrades. The space will be convenient
to the demarcation point, and will include any necessary space to install cable,
conduit, fiber, and or circuitry from the demarcation point to the equipment.

4 Deleted: §

{ Daleted: March 28
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Eftechment C
Insurance Recuirements

Insurance Limite. During the Term, each party shall ebiain and maintain not
less than the insurance set forth below:

Worker's Compensation:

Statutory limits.

Automobile Liability Insurance:

Such policy coverage will include coverage for all vehicles owned, hired, non-
hired, non-owned and borrowed by the party in the performance of the
obligations covered under this agreement; Combined single limit: $1,000,000.00

Commercial General Liability and for Umbrella Liability:

All liability insurance must meet the requirements of Minn. Stat § 466.04
subdivision 1 (&) (3) or $500,000.00, minimum liabitity for claims of death by
wrongful act or omission and $500,000.00 to any claimant in any other case,
whichever is greater.

Al liability insurance must meet the reguirements of Minn. Stat. § 466.04
Subdivision 1 (&) (7) or $1,500,000.00 minimum liability for any number of claims _.--{ Deteted:

arising out of @ single occurrence, whichever is greater.

All umbrelia insurance must meet the requirements of Minn. Stai. §466.04 Subd.
1(&} (8). Umbrella insurance coverage must be on a "follow-form” hasis,

| The above limits may be satisfied using a combination of primary and excess .1 Deleted: . |

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" | The above minimum requirements as 3

¢ o Insurance coverage shall not fimit |

i the liability of either party under this §
Each Party shall obtain and maintain the insurance policies required above with | Bgreement.
insurance and /or reinsurance companies authorized to insure risks in Minnesota.
With the exception of Worker's Compensation, each party, its Affiliates, and their
officers, directors and emplovees and any other person entitled to indemnification
hereunder, shall be named as additional insured to the extent of such
indemnification. Each Party shall provide the other party with & certificate of
insurance showing that the parly has complied with the insurance requirements
of this Attachment. Each insurance policy shall contain a provision providing

such other party with thirty days advanced notice of any canceliation or material

| Deleted: )
/| peleted: March 28
/| Deleted: Final

S, N

23

2o 1

Fingl Agreement gs Aprit 4, 2014

169



change in coverage et which lime such party will notify the other party
immediately of such cancellation or material change in coverage.

Deductible/ Sell Insured Retentions: All proof of insurance shall clearly set
forth deductible or self insured retentions. Each Party shall be responsible for its
deductibie and/or self insured retentions.

fingl Agreement as Aori 4. 2044,
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ETTACHMENT D

Bullding Access Contact Informetion
Entity shall provide 24 hour, seven day & week access to ZAYO for the ZAY O
System equipment housed in the Co-location service site for the purposes of
maintenance, service, upgrade and repairs of the equipment and system. Such
access will include the name and contact information of co-location site key-
holder for business and non-business hour access, All access shall comply with
written instructions provided to ZAYO and County (see saction IV.F).

Flezze provide confects below.

Business Hour Contacis) — List contacts in the order you would like them to be
called. Provide a mfnfmum of 2 contacts (you may provide as many as you
would fike}.

Contact #1

Name:
Position:
Office Phone:
Cell Phone:
Home Phone:
Pager:

Email:

S ma N
S R P

Contact #2

Name:
Position:
Office Phone;
Cell Phone:
Home Phone:
Fager:

Emai:

[ S

S

e A

Contact #3

Name:
Position:
Office Phone:
Cell Phone;
Home Phone:
Pager:

prome, o o A
e o I

Email; { Deleted: «
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Ken-Business Hour Conteci{e) - List contacts in the order vou would like them

to be calied. These contacts should have keys for building access to the co-
location equipment area and be aveilable after hours. Select people you would
like called In case of such emergencies as equipment failures, fiber hits, storm
damage, emergency locates, etc. Provide a minimum of Z contacts (you may
provide as many as you would like),

Name:

Contact #1

Position:
Office Phone:

Cell Phone:

Home Phone:
Pager:

Email:

Name:

Condact #2

Position:

Office Phone:

Celi Phone:

Home Fhone;

Pager:

Email:

Name:

Contact #3

Position:
Office Phone:

Cell Phone:

Home Phone:
Pager:

Email:

Final Agreement as April 4,201,
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Updates may be submitted tc Ancka County IS at address provided in the
Notices Section,
Attechment |

leentiication of Underiving Richis

For Co-jlogation sites

1, Enitity:

Co-Location Bite £1;

Tvoe of Underiving Rioht oiven:

Co-Location Site #2-

Twpe of Underiving Right oivern:

Co-Location Site #3:

Tvpe of Underlving Riaht given:

Co-Location Site gé:

Type of Underiving Right glven:

Co-location Site #5:

Tvpne of Underiving Richt oiven:

Co-Location Site #E:

Type of Underlving Right given:

Co-Location Site 27

Type of Underlving Right given:

{ peleted: 5
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Delize Lareon

From: Paul Palzer

Seni: Tuesday, April 05, 2011 3:03 P4
To: Pslias Larson

Co: Greg Burmelster

Zubjsct: Feplacement of bolts for tralf project

#Hello Dallas —

I have received guotes from Burshville Censtruction and Olson Sewer Service for the
replacement of bolts on 3 hydrants and 8 gate valves that are along the trall proiect and
not directly in the path, within 5 feet of the project. Like in the past, the city has
replaced the original bolts with blue bolts in our hydrants and gate valves due to a 20%
failure rate in the bolts from electrolysis action from the soil., The typical repair cost
for emergency work is about $4,000 - $8,000 per item depending on its location and the
extent of the repair to the surrounding streets and yards. The guotes were as followe:

Burshville construction $28,625.00

Olson BSewer Service 530,162.08

I would reccmmend hiring Burschville on a time & material rate not to exceed their
criginal guote. Their crew rate is $5480.00 per hour and the cost of the bolts in minimal
compared to the total project ceost. We will have to keep track of the hours and have a
person inspecting the job. Please let me know how to proceed? '

Faul

1 agree with Paul's recommendation.

Dallas Larson, Admin,
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STATE OF MINNESOTA
COUNTY OF ANOKA
CITY OF CENTERVILLE
Heg, #1144
ARESOQLUTION AUTHORIZING CLOSED FUND

WHEREAS, 2 certain debt service fund (Fund Number 312} was established to account
for revenue and expenses related to debt service requirements for the 2004 Street
Improvement Project, and

WHEREAS, the remaining debt associated with the 2004 Improvement Project (Fund
Number 312) has been refinanced in combination with the 2007 Improvement Bonds
{(Fund Number 349), and

WHEREAS, it is no longer necessary to account for the two bond issues in separate
funds.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
CENTERVILLE, MINNESOTA.

The Council hereby authorizes closing of Fund Number 312 to Fund Number 349
with all account balances transferred accordingly.

Adopted by the City Council this  day of April, 2011.

Tom Wilharber, Mayor

Attest:
Teresa Bender, Clerk
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CITY OF CENTERVILLE
MORTHLY ENGINEER'S REPORT

For the April 13, 2011 City Councii Meeting

Itafics = New information,
Normal = No change from last report,

ko

Z.

L

21 Lvenve/Backage Road (000616-08143-0). On bold pernding possible sppesl,

TE Grant Trall Project (000616-08365-0). Construction will begin in the spring. The contracior
has been submitting shop drawings and materials informetion for cur review. 4 spring pre-construction
conference will be held in the coming weeke,

2008 Downtown Storm Water Improvemente (000616-08167-0). Installation of the infet
screen wil is complete; meaning Contract A js mostly complete with the exception of some restoration,
The irrigation syster construction can begin in the spring when conditions allow.

We are close to & finalized agreement with the Rice Creek Watershed District for the credit system
which will allow downtown redevelopment to utiiize the storm water reclamation system to meet their
PErMIt requirernents.

Peltier Leke Drive Area Street & Utility Improvements (2009.01) {000616-09168-0), 2008
Street Improvements (2009.02) (000816-09170-0}. 7he Gty attorney will be giving an update
on our recomimendations for final payment on these fwo projects.

Community Qe%éag&rﬁ&&t Block Grant Water Services Project (0006£6-10171-0G). 7he work
is mostly complete. We will make final payment on the contract soon.
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444 Metropolitan Couneil

Metro Meetings

A weekly calendar of meelings and agenda items for the Metropolitan Courcil, ity advisory and signding committees, and regiond
Council sponsored events. The Metropolitun Council is located of 390 Roberd S1. N., i downtown St Pesl. All meetings ave hald at
this Ipcation unless otherwise noted. Meeting times and agendos are subject to change. Visit our website ol www.melrocouncit.org
Jor more information. Video of meetings of the Council and some committecs are now available live and archived for later viewing at
www metrocguncil.org

Week of Apritd — 8, 2011
onday, Aprit 4

Community Development Commitiee: 4 p.am., Chambers
- Orientation: Livable Communities Act;
- LCA Fund Distribution Plan;
- LLCA Grant Amendment Procedures — Revision of Terms and Extension Guidelines;
information
- Regional Development Framework Orientation;
- Local Planning Assistance — Implementation of the Land Planning Act Orientation; and other business,

Tuesday, April &

Metropoiitan Parks and Open Space Commission: 4 p.m., Lower Level A
- Annual Use Estimate of the Metropolitan Regional Parks System for 2010;
- 2812-17 Metro Regionel Capital Improvement Program Policy Review;
- Minnesota River Bluffs Extension & Scott County Connection Regional Trail Master Plan and Park
Acaguisition Opportunity Fund Grants, Scoft and Carver County;
- MPGSC 2011 Off-Site Meetings and Tours; and other business.

Wednesday, April 6

Techrical Advisory Committee fo the TAB: 9 a.m., Chambers
- Section 106 Process and Streamlining Measures;
- Federal Funding Status;
- TIP Amendment for Metro Transit Hybrid Buses;
- TDM Funding Recommendation;
- Solicitation Adoption;
- Functional Classification Changes, City of Maple Grove,
- Functional Classification Changes, Hennepin County; and other business,

Transportation Accessibility Advisory Committee: 12:30 p.m., Chambers
- Legisiative Update;
- Transitway Guidelines Update;
- Onboard Camera Update;
- Task Force Update-CCLRT,
- Metro Mobility Statistics; and other business.

Canceled: Committee-of-the-Whole
Thursday, April 7

No meetings scheduled



Tentative Weel of Anrit 1

Maondsy, Aprit i1

Transportstion Cemmittee: 4 p.m., Chambers
Tuesday, April 12

Envirpnment Commitiee: 4 p.m., Chambers
Wednesday, April 13

Central Corrider Management Committee: | p.m., Chambers
Mezpagement Committee: 2:30 ., Lower Level A
Wietropotitan Council: £ pm., Chambers
Thursday, April 14

TAB Policy Committes: | pm., Chambers

TAC Planning Committes: 2 pan., Lower Level A
Friday, Aprit 15

Mo meetings schedujed

~ 18, 2011



444 Metropolitan Council
24

Metro hMeetings

A weekly calendar of meetings and agenda iems jor the Metropolitan Council, its advisory and standing committees, and regional
Council sponsored events. The Metropolitan Council is located at 390 Reber! 81 N, In downrown 8t Paul, Al meetings are held at
this locaiion unless otherwise nated. Meeting times and agendas are subject to change. Visit ur website af wyw melrocouncil org
For more information. Video of meetings of the Council and some commiitees are now available live and archived for later viewing ai
www.metrocouncilorg

Weelt of March 28 — April 1, 2011
Monday, March 28

Transportation Commitiee: 4 p.m., Chambers, 390 North Robert 81, 5t. Paul

- Maetro Transit Employee Recognition;

- (eneral Manager’s Report;

- Director MTS Report;

- Approval of Transporiation Connnittee 2011 Work Plan;

- Software Support Services for Hiawatha Light Rail;

- SMARTCeM Maintenance Agreement with Trapeze;

- Regional Automatic Vehicle Location (RAVL) System Interagency Agreements;

- Authorization to Amend Contract for Diesel Fuel Supply;

- 2011-2014 TP Amendment: Include Metro Transit FTA Section 5309 Funds for Real Time Transit Arrival
Signs and Transit Signal Priority;

- 2011-2014 TIP Amendment: Metro Transit SPACMT-09-07: Maplewood Mall Trensit Center Expansion;

- 2011-2014 TIP Amendment: Add Memo Transit FTA Section 5309 Funding for Construction of a New
Paint Booth;

- 2011-2014 TIP Amendment: FTA Section 5310 Projects for Transportation for Elderly and Persons with
Disabilities;

- 2011-2014 TIP Amendment: Dakota County SP#091-090-048: Mississippi River Trail from Cahill to Pine
Bend Bluffs Trailhead;

- Rescission of BT 2010-302 and Authorization to exercise Contract Options with Motor Ceach Industries;

Information

- Park-and-Ride Survey Update;

- Central Corridor Light Rail Project Overview; and other business.

Tuesday, March 29

No meetings scheduled

Wednesday, March 30

Canceled: Seuthwest-Sorrider Manssement-Committes

Metropolitan Council Special Meeting: 4 p.m., Chambers

- Authorization to Exercise Contract Options with Gillig Corporation;

- Authorization to Exercise Contract Options with Motor Coach Industries;

- Resolution 2011-06 Authorizing Grant Execution for Minnesota Housing Agency Bridges Rental
Assistance Program;

- Eureka Township 2030 Comprehensive Plan Update;

- 2011-2014 TIP Amendment Metro Transit: TIGGER H Section 5309 Funds to Install Geothermal
Heating/Cooling System in O&M and Support Facility;

- 2011-2014 TIP Amendment City of St. Paul $P#164-030-009:Plarning for Saint Paul Complete Streets
Policy;

- 2011-2014 TIP Amendment MnDOT: SP#2750-75 Convert Existing Intersection to a Folded Diamond Half
Interchange &t TH 1689 and 93rd Ave.;



Z011-2014 TIP Amendment MnDOT SP#2750.73: Install Cable Median Barrier on TH 169 Norh of €354
Ave to South of CRAH 21 in Brooklyn Park:

Authorization to Award Contract for Armored Car Service;

nississippi West Regional Park Master Plan Update, Ancka County;

Amend Scope of Grant $G-2009-039 and Grant 5G-2009-040 Financed with FY 2010 Parks and Trails
Legacy Fund Appropristions, Minneapolis Perk & Recreation Board;

Amend scope of Grant $G-2008-055 and Future CIP Reimbursement Request for Como Posl Replacement
Project, City of St Paul:

Authorization 1o Award and Execute Construction Contract 10P052-A for Metropolitan Wastewater
Treatment Plant Primary Settling Tanks Sludge Collection System improvements, Biofilter Access
Addition, and Liguid Waste Receiving Tunnel Access;

Autherization to Reject alf Bids for Construction of the Metropolitan Wastewater Treatment Plant Dauble
Barrel Interceptar Improvements:

Authorization to Award and Execute Contract 105720 for Construction of |-MW-413 interceptor
Hehabilitation;

Authorization for Sole Source Procurement from Electric Machinery for QEM Parts;

Resolution 2011-07 Mewopolitan Sports Facilities Commission 2011 Budget Amendment;

Teamsters Labor Agreement:

Council Authorization of Claim Settlement;

Resolution 2011-08 Changing Environmental Committee Meeting Time;

Informeation

Results of the 2010 Census: and other business,

Thursday, March 31

No meetings scheduled

Friday, Aprii 1

No meetings scheduled

Tentative Week of April 4 — 8, 2011

Monday, April £

Community Development Committee: 4 p-m., Chambers

Tuesday, Aprit &

Mietropolitan Parks and Open Spaee Commission: 4 p.m., Lower Level A

Wednesday, April é

Technical Advisory Commitiee to the TAR: © a.m., Chambers

Transportation Accessibility Advisory Committee: 12:30, Chambers

Commitiee of the Whole: 4 p, Chambers

Thursazy, April 7

No meetings scheduled

Friday, April 8

No meetings scheduled






